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Australian National

Audit Office

16 August 2022

The Honourable the President of the Senate

The Honourable the Speaker of the House of Representatives
Parliament House

CANBERRA ACT 2600

Dear President
Dear Speaker

In accordance with section 28 of the Auditor-General Act 1997 and section 46 of the Public
Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013, | present to the Parliament my report on the
activities of the Australian National Audit Office (ANAO) for the year ended 30 June 2022.

As required by subsection 17AG(2) of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule
2014, | certify that:

e the ANAO has prepared fraud risk assessments and fraud control plans;

¢ the ANAO has in place appropriate fraud prevention, detection, investigation and reporting
mechanisms that meet its specific needs; and

¢ | have taken all reasonable measures to appropriately deal with fraud relating to the ANAO.

Following the tabling of the Australian National Audit Office Annual Report 2021-22, the report will be
available on the ANAO’s website, anao.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

O . A sl

Grant Hehir
Auditor-General
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About this report

This annual report documents the performance of the Australian National Audit Office (ANAOQ) in the
financial year ended 30 June 2022.

The report addresses all applicable obligations under the Public Governance, Performance and
Accountability Act 2013; the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014; the
Auditor-General Act 1997, the performance measures set out in the outcome and programs framework
in the ANAQ’s Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22 and the ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22; and
annual reporting requirements set out in other relevant legislation.

In Part 1 of the report, the Auditor-General reviews the significant issues and achievements of the
past year and reflects on the challenges for the year ahead.

Part 2 provides an overview of the ANAQO’s purpose, role and values, its organisational structure, and
its key relationships, including with the Parliament.

Part 3 outlines our performance framework and provides the ANAQO’s report on performance for
2021-22, consisting of our annual performance statements and the report on financial performance.

Part 4 provides information on the ANAQO’s organisational governance, capability and risk
management frameworks.

The appendixes contain reporting information on engagement with parliamentary committees,
transparency, resources and expenses, the ANAO workforce and other management issues.

A list of abbreviations and acronyms, a list of annual report requirements and an index are provided at
the end of the report.

This report is available online at anao.gov.au/pubs/annual-reports.

Other ANAO publications, as well as information about the ANAO, are available on the ANAO’s
website at anao.gov.au.

For more information about this report, please contact:

Senior Executive Director
Corporate Management Group
Australian National Audit Office
GPO Box 707

CANBERRA ACT 2601

Phone: (02) 6203 7300
Email: communication@anao.gov.au
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Part 1 — Foreword by the Auditor-General

As Auditor-General for Australia | am pleased to present this annual report to the Parliament. This
year has seen the Australian National Audit Office (ANAO) continue to deliver against its mandate
under the Auditor-General Act 1997, through the delivery of high-quality reporting.

A year in review

In March 2022, the JCPAA concluded the 2020 review of the Auditor-General Act 1997 (the Act) and
presented Report 491: Review of the Auditor-General Act 1997. The issue of the Auditor-General’s
independence is a clear and significant theme throughout the report. The JCPAA noted it is vital that
the Act remains fit for purpose — specifically, that the Act must continue to ensure the Auditor-
General’s independence and remit, establish clear processes, and interact consistently with other
legislation. The report made 27 recommendations, including amendments to the Act and related
legislation. | believe the report by the JCPAA provides a positive foundation to strengthen the
independence of the Auditor-General. There would be value in timely government consideration of the
report's recommendations.

Further, throughout the inquiry, the JCPAA showed an interest in the collection of evidence in the
ANAOQO’s work with the emergence of new technology within the public sector. In February 2022, the
ANAO provided an additional submission to the JCPAA outlining the complexities related to the Auditor-
General’s information-gathering powers (sections 32 and 33 of the Act), and the potential for legislative
amendments to modernise and clarify how information is requested and gathered under those powers.
More broadly, | have observed increasing complexities associated with auditing in a contestable
environment — specifically the shift towards government and service provider information being held not
only as commercial-in-confidence, but at increasingly higher levels of security classification. There have
also been more issues being raised regarding the protection of personal information. Impediments, or
perceived barriers, to this access represent a challenge to the audit process.

The role of the auditor will always be focused on transparency, and providing the information
necessary to assist the Parliament in holding the executive arm of government to account. The
efficient collection of sufficient and appropriate information — to form substantive, accurate, evidence-
based conclusions — is critical to our work. Preserving and refreshing the Auditor-General’s
information-gathering powers in the shifting environment of the public service remains a key issue for
the ANAO.

As part of the Budget 2021-22, the government announced additional funding for the ANAO. Across the
year, we utilised this funding to support the delivery of the ANAO’s mandatory financial statements
audits for inclusion within entities’ annual reports, for the scrutiny of Parliament. The ANAO also began
rebuilding performance audit capacity which had been reduced in prior years. The restoration of
capability within this area will enable the ANAO to meet a target of 48 performance audits by 2024-25.

In addition, we continued the staged implementation of our performance statements auditing program,
with the auditing of six government entities currently underway. We have also continued to look for
efficiencies in how we meet ongoing quality, data analysis, evidence extraction and data storage
requirements.

On 23 June 2022, the Australian Government issued changes to the Administrative Arrangements
Orders, which resulted in the creation of two new departments — effective 1 July 2022. Mandatory
auditing (both financial statements and the emerging performance statements program) of new
departments may have an impact on the delivery of performance audits as planned in our forward years.

While the additional funding has alleviated some budgetary pressures in the delivery of our products, the
increasing demand for audit-related expertise has led to a competitive recruitment environment, tight
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labour market and increased costs associated with contracted staff. We have identified that maintaining
resourcing requirements is a strategic risk for the organisation, across all audit disciplines.

In April 2022, we published Audits of the Annual Performance Statements of Australian Government
Entities — Pilot Program 2020-21. The report reflected on the outcome of the ANAQO’s annual
performance statements audit pilot program, and the ANAO’s preparation for the staged
implementation of an annual performance statements assurance audit program.

Performance statements auditing represents an important change for the sector — as its
implementation will improve the performance reporting to Parliament and provide assurance of its
reliability. The roll-out of the program has identified areas of improvement for both the sector and the
ANAQO. In the entities audited so far, we have observed challenges in developing a sound evidence
base for measuring performance targets, and difficulties in building the internal capability required to
compile reliable information to support performance statements reporting. For the ANAO, adapting to
a new methodology and working with entity functions unfamiliar with audit processes has been
challenging. We recognise that we need to build familiarity with this new methodology and audit
function within the sector, in addition to establishing the right posture within the delivery of these
audits. The program will remain a significant focus of the ANAO over the coming years.

While the ANAQO'’s performance and financial audits point to many areas of high quality and
effectiveness within the public sector, there continues to be evidence that the sector’s approach to
some core activities regularly falls short of expectations. This is especially prevalent in the areas of
cybersecurity, procurement, and grants administration.

Cybersecurity has been an audit focus for the ANAO for many years. These audits continue to reveal
deficiencies and risks across entities’ cybersecurity environments. We have also observed optimism
bias in reporting by entities, and little analysis or escalation of the success or otherwise of the policy
framework to government. Given the extent of audit work undertaken and the evolving risk
environment, it is fair to say these observations are disappointing.

Similarly, audits of procurements continue to identify issues in government administration. As a core
public sector activity, procurement is regulated by mandatory rules set by the Minister for Finance, the
Commonwealth Procurement Rules (CPRs). Despite this, our audits continue to find evidence of
procurement activities which fall short of meeting the intent of these rules, thereby compromising the
sector’s ability to demonstrate value for money. This often includes the absence of open competition.
Poor entity practices related to planning, record keeping, contract management, negotiation, risk
management, and probity raise questions about whether the professionalisation of procurement
should be a priority within the public sector. There is merit in focusing on both skill development and
ethical mindset — that is, delivery against the intent of the framework being of equal importance as
compliance with it.

Likewise, performance audits of grants administration indicate that there has not been consistent
compliance with the intent of the Commonwealth Grants Rules and Guidelines (CGRGs). The
ANAOQO’s audit work has shown that advice to government has not always been robust — including
insufficient attention to the authority of decision-makers and poor record-keeping in decision-making
without assessment, or rationale for decisions being documented.

Report on performance

The ANAQO’s performance during 2021-22 is reported on in detail within Part 3: Report on
Performance.

The ANAOQ'’s performance audit program continues to undertake audits to promote accountability,
transparency and improvement in public administration. In 2021-22, the ANAO successfully carried out
its Annual Audit Work Program (AAWP), presenting 40 performance audits to Parliament. In the delivery
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Part 1 — Foreword by the Auditor-General

of these performance audits, we achieved the intended coverage outlined in the program. The primary
focus of ANAO performance audits was effectiveness and economy — specifically, the extent to which
entities delivered on intended objectives and the value for money achieved in doing so.

In 2021-22, we also continued to deliver our multi-year, COVID-19 audit strategy. The ANAO tabled
five COVID-19-related performance audits in 2021-22, and commenced a further two COVID-19-
related performance audits for tabling in 2022—-23. Audits of COVID-19 response activities concluded
that public sector entities were largely effective in managing response activities. The key areas for
improvement identified by the ANAO were in planning and preparedness for crisis.

Additionally, the ANAO published two Audit Insights reports, which serve to support the focus of the
AAWP. Topics addressed were the effectiveness of entities’ management of contractors, and service
delivery through other entities.

In 2021-22, a total of 164 findings were reported to entities as a result of the 2020-21 financial
statements audits. These comprised two significant, 21 moderate and 127 minor findings, as well as
14 legislative breaches. This is an increase in the number of findings compared to the 2019-20
financial statements audits.

The highest number of findings continue to be in the categories of IT security management and user
access — in particular the management of privileged users, and accounting and control of non-
financial assets. Similar to 2020-21, the continuation of findings in relation to IT controls further
reinforces the poor delivery of fit-for-purpose cybersecurity within the sector. Additionally, there has
also been an increase in legislative breaches in executive remuneration. Findings in governance at
the top of some organisations is suggestive of cultures where entity staff may not feel permitted to
raise concerns. The appropriate governance of remuneration and management of risk in the senior
echelons of the public sector will continue to be a focus in financial statements work.

During 2021-22, the ANAO continued its performance statements audit pilot program, auditing the
2020-21 performance statements of the same three entities as in 2019-20: the Attorney-General’s
Department (AGD), the Department of Social Services (DSS) and the Department of Veterans’ Affairs
(DVA). These audits found that entities were largely compliant with the requirements of the
performance framework, and fairly presented the performance of the organisation. However, there
were some exceptions where specific measures did not meet those requirements. The ANAO made
significant findings and reported exceptions as qualifications to our audit conclusion for 14.9 per cent
of the three entities’ performance measures. Qualifications and significant findings are not unexpected
early in the delivery of a new audit program.

During 2021-22, the JCPAA conducted six inquiries based on its review of a total of 22 Auditor-
General reports throughout the year, resulting in the tabling of four reports. The ANAO provided a
total of three briefings, attended 10 public hearings, and made three submissions to assist the
Committee in undertaking its functions. In addition to the support provided to the JCPAA, the ANAO
further supported the work of the Parliament by providing submissions, information, assistance and
briefings to parliamentarians and parliamentary committees. In 2021-22, the ANAO provided 10
briefings to parliamentarians and, in support of other parliamentary committee inquiries, attended nine
public hearings, provided one briefing and eight submissions.

The year ahead

Auditing is an important profession. It is through our evidence-based, methodological disciplines that we
are able provide assurance to the Parliament. Recognising the fast-paced, rapid-implementation,
information-driven environment of the public service, the ANAO will continue to identify opportunities that
will allow us to enhance delivery on our purpose, including through the sharing of insights on our work.
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Over the next year, | look forward to continuing the staged implementation of performance statements
auditing across an increasing number of entities. Engaging with the sector and adopting the right audit
posture will be important for the ANAO, as we continue to drive improvement in the quality of
performance information provided to the Parliament. Refining the performance statements audit
methodology and continuing to pilot various approaches to completing these audits will also remain a
focus for us — especially as we look to expand the program and share insights.

The importance of ethics in the use of resources continues to be highlighted within our audits,
particularly relating to procurement and grants administration. The Public Governance, Performance
and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act) requires accountable authorities of Commonwealth entities
to govern in a way that promotes the proper use and management of public resources. The Act
defines proper use as ‘efficient, effective, economical and ethical’. The ANAO is finalising the design
of an appropriate audit framework against which to test entity compliance with ethical requirements.

In July 2022, to support our workforce requirements, we published a new workforce plan and
announced our new integrated learning program — the ANAO Academy. The plan recognises the
emerging trends within the recruitment environment, the need for us to cast our net wider for talent,
and the potential to ‘grow our own’. The challenge of recruiting and training the staff to deliver our
audit products will continue to be a significant issue for the ANAO — where quality audits depend on
highly trained, technical and specialist expertise.

The ANAO will also look towards refreshing our organisational strategy, Towards 2025. The strategy
will capture the shifts we intend to make within the ANAO, over the next several years, to continue to
effectively deliver quality audit services to the Parliament in a changing public service environment.

In December 2022, following the Federal Budget, the ANAO will review the Annual Audit Work
Program to ensure our audit strategy remains appropriate to the emerging policy and risk
environment. | look forward to maintaining effective and active engagement with parliamentarians and
committees in the year to come.

Finally, | would like to recognise the important, ongoing engagement with our national and
international audit peers — including the Australasian Council of Auditors-General, international
supreme audit institutions and our bilateral partners, Indonesia and Papua New Guinea. In 2021-22,
we continued to adapt our engagement strategy to ensure connection in an environment still impacted
by the COVID-19 pandemic. | am hopeful that 2022-23 will bring further opportunities for the ANAO to
share learnings within this professional auditing community.

O . A sl

Grant Hehir
Auditor-General
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Part 1 — Foreword by the Auditor-General

Performance measures achieved in 2021-22: Ql
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Part 2 — Overview of the ANAO

This part provides an overview of the ANAQO’s purpose, role and values, our organisational structure,
and our relationships with the Parliament and other national and international bodies.

About the ANAO

The Australian National Audit Office (ANAO) is a specialist public sector agency providing a full range of
audit and assurance services to the Parliament and entities within the Australian Government sector.

Purpose

The purpose of the ANAO is to support accountability and transparency in the Australian Government
sector through independent reporting to the Parliament, and thereby contribute to improved public
sector performance.

The ANAO delivers its purpose under the Auditor-General’'s mandate as set out in the
Auditor-General Act 1997, and in accordance with the Public Governance, Performance and
Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act) and the Public Service Act 1999.

The executive arm of government is accountable to the Parliament for its use of public resources and
the administration of legislation passed by the Parliament. The Auditor-General provides independent
assurance as to whether the executive is operating and accounting for its performance in accordance
with the Parliament’s intent.

Role

The Governor-General, on the recommendation of the Joint Committee of Public Accounts and Audit
(JCPAA) and the Prime Minister, appoints the Auditor-General for a term of 10 years. As an
independent officer of the Parliament, the Auditor-General has complete discretion in performing or
exercising the functions or powers under the Auditor-General Act 1997 (the Act). In particular, the
Auditor-General is not subject to direction in relation to:

e whether a particular audit is to be conducted;

e the way a particular audit is to be conducted; or

e the priority given to any particular matter.

In exercising the functions or powers under the Act, the Auditor-General must have regard to the audit

priorities of the Parliament, as determined by the JCPAA, and any reports made by the committee
under the Public Accounts and Audit Committee Act 1951.

Under the Act, the Auditor-General’s functions include:
e auditing the annual financial statements of Commonwealth entities, and Commonwealth

companies and their subsidiaries (section 11 of the Act);

e auditing the annual consolidated financial statements in accordance with the PGPA Act
(section 12 of the Act);

e auditing annual performance statements of Commonwealth entities in accordance with the PGPA
Act (section 15 of the Act);
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Part 2 — Overview of the ANAO

conducting performance audits and assurance reviews of Commonwealth entities and
Commonwealth companies and their subsidiaries (sections 17 and 18 of the Act);

conducting a performance audit of a Commonwealth partner (section 18B of the Act);

providing other audit services as required by other legislation or allowed under section 20 of the
Act; and

reporting directly to the Parliament on any matter or to a minister on any important matter.

The ANAO supports the Auditor-General in this role.

Values

The ANAO upholds the Australian Public Service (APS) Values as set out in the Public Service

Act 1999. The ANAO places particular focus on respect, integrity and excellence — values that align
with the APS Values and address the unique aspects of the ANAQO’s business and operating
environment. The ANAO'’s values guide the office in performing its role objectively, with impartiality
and in a manner that supports the Parliament.

Organisational structure

To deliver on its purpose, the ANAO is organised into six functional areas:

Assurance Audit Services Group' provides independent assurance on the financial statements
and financial administration of all Australian Government entities. It also conducts assurance
reviews.

Corporate Management Group leads corporate strategy and change for the ANAO. It provides
services based on specialised knowledge, best practices and technology that enable the delivery
of the ANAO’s purpose and audit outcomes.

Performance Audit Services Group conducts performance audits and assurance reviews of
Australian Government entities and their activities, and produces related publications and other
information reports.

Performance Statements Audit Services Group conducts audits of Australian Government
entities’ performance statements and measures.

Professional Services and Relationships Group provides technical accounting, audit and legal
advice and support to the Auditor-General; establishes, manages and monitors the
implementation of the quality assurance framework; and manages the ANAQO’s external relations.

Systems Assurance and Data Analytics Group provides IT audit and data analytics support to
the ANAO’s assurance and performance audit work and other information reports.

The ANAOQO’s organisational structure at 30 June 2022 is shown in Figure 2.1.

1

Assurance Audit Services Group will be renamed ‘Financial Statements Audit Services Group’ from 1 July 2022,
consistent with the ANAO’s Portfolio Budget Statements 2022-23.
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Figure 2.1: Organisational structure at 30 June 2022
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Part 2 — Overview of the ANAO

Relationships

In pursuing its purpose, the ANAO maintains key relationships with the Parliament, various national
bodies and counterparts, as well as international counterparts, as described below.

The ANAO invests in a number of professional relationships through the two-way exchange and
sharing of information and practices, and supports other nations through peer-to-peer institutional
capacity development. The ANAQO’s engagement strategy details the ANAQO’s approach to key
relationships with the public sector auditing community.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the public sector auditing community continued to influence
the ANAQ’s implementation of its engagement strategy and programs. This impacted the nature of
engagement with international and national peers, with the continued use of virtual meetings and forums
to exchange ideas and information, and to learn from and support audit offices in other nations.

The ANAO website contains further information about the ANAO’s relationships.

Parliament

The ANAQO’s primary relationship is with the Australian Parliament and the ANAO’s key interaction with
the Parliament is through the Joint Committee of Public Accounts and Audit (JCPAA). The Auditor-
General's reports assist the Parliament to hold government entities to account and to drive
improvements in public administration. The Auditor-General and ANAO support the work of the
Parliament by providing independent reporting, assurance and assistance. This assistance includes the
provision of submissions and information, appearances before parliamentary committees, and briefings
to parliamentarians. The Parliament and its committees also scrutinise the work and administration of
the ANAO.

Joint Committee of Public Accounts and Audit

Among its responsibilities, the JCPAA considers the operations and resources of the ANAO, including
the ANAO draft budget estimates, about which it makes recommendations to both houses of
parliament. The JCPAA is required to review all ANAO reports that are tabled in the Parliament and to
report the results of its deliberations to both houses of parliament. The committee’s functions in
relation to the ANAO are specified in the Public Accounts and Audit Committee Act 1951. The JCPAA
of the 46th Parliament commenced on 2 July 2019 and ceased on 11 April 2022 following the
dissolution of the House of Representatives following the announcement of the federal election, which
was held in May 2022.

The JCPAA conducted six inquiries on its review of Auditor-General reports throughout 2021-22,
resulting in the tabling of four reports. Two inquiries lapsed due to the dissolution of the House of
Representatives on 11 April 2022.

On 2 September 2020, the JCPAA resolved to undertake a review of the Auditor-General Act 1997. In
2021-22, the ANAO supported the review by attending three public hearings, making one primary
submission and attending one private briefing. The JCPAA tabled Report 491 Review of the Auditor-
General Act 1997 on 31 March 2022. In its report, the JCPAA recognised the important role the
ANAO plays in examining the expenditure and administration of government programs, and the
ANAQO'’s critical support for the work of the JCPAA and the Parliament. The report included 27
recommendations (six directed to the ANAO) going to matters related to independence and
interaction of the Auditor-General Act 1997 with other legislation.
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In 2021-22, officers of the ANAO provided a total of three private briefings, attended 10 public
hearings and made three submissions to assist the committee in undertaking its functions. An outline
of inquiries and reports is provided in Table 2.1.

Table 2.1: JCPAA inquiries and reports

| |
Inquiry status Inquiry Relevant Auditor-General reports
|
Concluded Regulatory activities No.33 of 2019-20 Tertiary Education Quality and
Report 486 Standards Agency’s Regulation of Higher
Education

No.47 of 2019-20 Referrals, Assessments and
Approvals of Controlled Actions under the
Environment Protection and Biodiversity
Conservation Act 1999

No.48 of 2019-20 Management of the Australian
Government’s Lobbying Code of Conduct —
Follow-up Audit

No.5 of 2020-21 Regqulation of the National
Energy Market

No.8 of 2020-21 Administration of Financial
Disclosure Requirements under the
Commonwealth Electoral Act

Concluded Commonwealth financial No.25 of 2020-21 Audits of the Financial
Report 488 statements Statements of Australian Government Entities for

the Period Ending 30 June 2020

No.40 of 2020-21 Interim Report on Key
Financial Controls of Major Entities

Concluded Defence Major Projects No.19 of 2020-21 2019—20 Major Projects
Report 489 Report Report
Concluded Review of the Auditor- N/A
Report 491 General Act
Concluded Governance in the No.11 of 2019-20 Implementation of the Digital
Report 492 stewardship of public Continuity 2020 Policy

resources No.31 of 2019-20 Management of Defence

Housing Australia

No.39 of 2019-20 Implementation of the
Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial
Research Organisation (CSIRO) Property
Investment Strateqy

No.2 of 2020-21 Procurement of Strategic Water
Entitlements

No.9 of 2020-21 Purchase of the ‘Leppington
Triangle’ Land for the Future Development of
Western Sydney Airport
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Part 2 — Overview of the ANAO

National relationships

In addition to its relationship with the Parliament, the ANAO has important relationships with the
accountable authorities of Australian Government entities, the Australasian Council of Auditors-
General (which includes the state and territory auditors-general), and professional accounting bodies
and standard-setting boards.

Accountable authorities

Accountable authorities of Australian Government entities have primary responsibility for and control
over public sector entities’ operations. As such, the ANAO’s work focuses on the duties and
responsibilities of accountable authorities (including the proper use and/or management of public
resources) and the governance frameworks that accountable authorities put in place in their entities.
The ANAO engages with entities at a number of levels to strengthen relationships and promote
improved financial reporting and public sector administration, including through attendance at entity
audit committees.

The ANAQ’s ongoing relationship with chief financial officers (CFOs), officials responsible for
preparing performance statements, and audit committees helps the ANAO achieve its purpose to both
improve public sector performance and support accountability and transparency in the Australian
Government sector. As part of this work, the ANAO conducts forums for CFOs and officials
responsible for preparing performance statements, and — jointly with the Department of Finance —
audit committee chairs, to share insights on emerging and topical audit issues and requirements
affecting Australian Government entities.

The ANAO hosted a CFO forum in November 2021 that was attended by approximately 85 CFOs and
entity representatives. The forum was presented by webinar in response to COVID-19 restrictions. In
the forum, the ANAO shared information about issues arising in audits and key focus areas of the
audit program, and outlined insights and themes on the effectiveness of public administration. The
ANAO published a recording of the webinar on its website after the live delivery.

Audit committees, as a requirement of the PGPA Act, play an important role in entities’ governance
frameworks. Audit committee chair forums were held in July 2021 and December 2021. In response
to COVID-19 restrictions, the July forum was a hybrid event (online and in-person) with limited in-
person attendees and the December forum was delivered entirely online. Invitations to the forums
were extended to approximately 144 audit committee chairs and representatives. The forums
provided an opportunity to share insights from the audit program, and relevant updates and
information, to assist committees to meet the requirements of the PGPA Act and associated rules.
The ANAO published a communique on its website after each forum.

Australasian Council of Auditors-General

The Auditor-General is a member of the Australasian Council of Auditors-General (ACAG), which
comprises the auditors-general of Australia, New Zealand, Papua New Guinea and Fiji, along with the
auditors-general of each Australian state and territory. ACAG’s objective is to promote and strengthen
public sector audit in Australasia through leadership, collaboration, engagement, advocacy and peer
support. The ANAO contributes to ACAG’s work by attending business meetings and subcommittee
meetings, preparing discussion papers, participating in information exchanges, contributing to
submissions to standard-setting bodies, undertaking annual benchmarking and client surveys, and
conducting peer reviews.
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Mentoring program

Following on from the ANAQO’s four-month, ACAG-supported pilot mentoring program with the Tonga
Office of the Auditor General in 2020, the ANAO delivered a mentoring program in Papua New Guinea
(PNG) using our twinning partner arrangement with the PNG Auditor-General’s Office. The program is in
two phases, with the initial four-month period (February to May 2022) having focused on one-on-one
meetings to allow for the transfer of knowledge and skills. The second phase will be a four-month,
group-based program aimed at allowing mentors and mentees to discuss and share their experiences.

Professional accounting bodies and standard-setting boards

The ANAO is actively involved in the work of two professional accounting bodies in Australia,

CPA Australia and Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (CA ANZ). Ms Carla Jago,
Group Executive Director, Performance Audit Services Group, is a member of CA ANZ's ACT
Regional Council as well as a member of the CA ANZ National Council. The ANAO has recognised
employer status under CPA Australia’s Recognised Employer Program, which includes organisations
that are committed to providing their employees with the highest standard in professional
development and support.

The ANAO contributes to the development of accounting and auditing standards through contributing
to ACAG responses to exposure drafts for new or amended standards proposed by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board, and the International Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board.

International relationships

The ANAQO’s key international activities are engagement with other supreme audit institutions and
bilateral capacity-building partnerships with Indonesia and Papua New Guinea under Australia’s
international development program.

Supreme audit institutions

The supreme audit institution (SAl) is the lead public sector audit organisation in a country.
Engagement with other SAls allows the ANAO to participate in international dialogue on best practice
public administration and developments in public sector auditing. The ANAO responds to requests
from SAls directly, including by hosting and presenting to visiting delegations, providing information
and participating in surveys. Although virtual engagements continued throughout 2021-22, the easing
of international travel restrictions allowed the ANAO to attend some engagements face to face.

The ANAO is a member of the International Organization of Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI).
INTOSAI is dedicated to promoting the exchange of information about audit and financial
management among its member institutions and provides a network for the international public sector
audit community.

The ANAO contributes to the activities of two INTOSAI regional organisations:

e the Asian Organization of Supreme Audit Institutions (ASOSAI); and

e the Pacific Association of Supreme Audit Institutions (PASAI).

Ms Jane Meade, Group Executive Director, Professional Services and Relationships Group,
continues to be a member of the Forum for INTOSAI Professional Pronouncements (FIPP). The FIPP
aims to support professional development by ensuring that INTOSAI provides a clear and consistent
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set of professional standards. The FIPP achieves this through reviewing and monitoring INTOSAI's
framework of professional pronouncements. During 2021-22, the ANAO participated in the forum via
teleconference in September and October 2021 and February, April and June 2022.

The ANAOQO’s key international engagements in 2021-22 included participating in the following events:

12th PASAI Annual General Meeting and the 27th, 28th, 29th and 30th Governing Board
meetings, attended by the Auditor-General as a member of the PASAI Governing Board;

PASAI Governing Board subcommittee meetings in March and June 2022 for the Accountability
and Transparency Study, attended by the Auditor-General as a member of the subcommittee;

SAI20 Senior Officials Meeting hosted by SAIl Indonesia in June 2022. SAI20 is an engagement
group established in 2021 by the Republic of Indonesia under its presidency of the G20 under the
G20 framework and focuses on good and accountable governance through the role of SAls;

INTOSAI Performance Audit Sub Committee meeting in London in June 2022 — the meeting
afforded the Sub Committee the opportunity to discuss its new work plan;

initial planning meeting for the ASOSAI 13th Research Project on ‘Remote Audit for SAls: Future
and Challenges’, with the project leader SAI Indonesia;

INTOSAI Working Group on Information Technology Audit seminar on opportunities and
challenges in IT audit;

INTOSAI Capacity Building Committee Peer-to-Peer Meeting series, including five webinars from
September 2021 to June 2022;

bilateral meeting with the National Audit Department of Malaysia on ‘Big Data Analytics’;

webinar on ‘The Role of SAls in National Health Crisis — Focusing on Prevention and
Preparedness’ — the ANAO delivered a presentation on its policy measures developed in
response to COVID-19;

INTOSAI Working Group on Crisis Management Audit meeting — afforded the working group the
opportunity to discuss its work plan;

INTOSAI Working Group on the Impact of Science and Technology on Auditing meeting;

ASOSAI 15th Assembly and 8th Seminar on Environmental Auditing — the ANAO delivered a
presentation on ‘Audit promoting government accountability for the environment’;

INTOSAI Development Initiative webinar on ‘Healthcare Audit Analytics’;

Canadian Audit and Accountability Foundation annual conference — the Deputy Auditor-General
delivered a pre-recorded presentation on auditing the impact of the Australian Government’s
COVID-19 measures;

bilateral meeting with Fiji Office of the Auditor-General on building capacity to work remotely
during the COVID-19 pandemic; and

30th INTOSAI Working Group on Information Technology Audit meeting — focused on the
development of guidance on cybersecurity and data protection challenges and audit of IT
management functions.

Australia’s international development program

The ANAO, through a partnership agreement with the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade
(DFAT), is participating in Australia’s international development program to assist and support the
audit offices of Indonesia and Papua New Guinea to build institutional capacity and facilitate the
sharing of auditing knowledge across all three organisations. The partnership supports the Australian
Government’s sectoral development initiative to build effective governance institutions.
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Australia—Indonesia Partnership for Economic Development (Prospera)

The ANAOQO’s activities under the Australia—Indonesia Partnership for Economic Development
(Prospera) with the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia (Badan Pemeriksa Keuangan — BPK)
continue to support BPK’s efforts to strengthen its audit functions. The program is aligned with the
BPK strategic plan objectives of delivering beneficial and high-quality audits. The key 2021-22
program focus areas were on performance and financial audit management, quality assurance
systems, and organisational development to support audit management and capability. Recognising
the maturity of the partnership, in addition to supporting the development of audit and organisational
capability, the ANAO engaged with BPK on topics of mutual interest and benefit to both offices.

Due to travel restrictions in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, remote delivery remained the principal
modality for technical training, workshops, mentoring sessions and executive dialogues, facilitated by
the ANAO deployee in Indonesia. The virtual delivery of activities has provided an opportunity for
greater outreach across BPK’s network of offices and participation from across the ANAO.

As both countries emerge from the pandemic and both organisations return to the office environment,
the program will continue to use hybrid delivery, where appropriate, to maintain the broader outreach.
Going forward, the program will transition to include in-person delivery with representatives from both
organisations.

The ANAO, in partnership with BPK, delivered 15 of 16 planned activities for 2021-22. In response to
COVID-19-related travel restrictions, one planned activity was deferred to 2023. With the lifting of
travel restrictions, the ANAO was able to complete two work program activities that involved BPK
officers travelling to Australia for immersive work experience.

Australia — Papua New Guinea Institutional Partnerships Program

The Institutional Partnerships Program (IPP) supports the development of long-term institutional
relationships between Australian and Papua New Guinea (PNG) government entities. The ANAO’s
activities under the program support the efforts of the PNG Auditor-General’s Office to strengthen the
management of its audit functions, in line with its Corporate Plan 2017-2021 strategic objectives. The
2021-22 program focus areas were management of institutional linkages, information technology
audit support, governance frameworks, and organisational capacity development. The PNG Auditor-
General’s Office 2022—-2027 Strategic Plan, developed in consultation with the ANAO deployee,
launched on 30 May 2022. The forward activities under the IPP will align with the outcomes identified
in the five-year strategic plan.

Due to the lockdown restrictions resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, remote delivery remained
the principal modality for IPP technical training, workshops, mentoring sessions and executive
dialogues. Activities were facilitated by the ANAO deployee while in both Australia and PNG. Face-to-
face delivery resumed in March 2022 as restrictions lifted in PNG.

The ANAO, in partnership with the PNG Auditor-General’s Office, delivered nine of 16 planned
activities for 2021-22. Due to travel restrictions, three planned activities for 2021-22 were postponed,
and the remaining four activities were unable to be delivered remotely due to PNG emergency
response efforts and the closure of the PNG Auditor-General’s Office for extended periods.
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The Auditor-General requests that the Independent Auditor, appointed under the Auditor-General Act

1997 conducts an audit of the ANAQO'’s performance statements to provide assurance to the

Parliament of the reliability of the statements as presented.

Independent assurance report on the annual performance statement of the Australian
National Audit Office
To the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives

Conclusion

In my opinion, in all material respects, the annual performance statement of the Australian National
Audit Office for the period 1 July 2021 and 30 June 2022 has been prepared in accordance with the
criteria set out below.

Audit Criteria and Source

The criteria against which | have formed my opinion are:

e whether the performance measures the ANAO reports against in its annual performance
statement for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 are appropriate to meet the requirements
of section 16EA of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014,

o whether the results presented in its annual performance statement for the period 1 July 2021 to
30 June 2022 were accurate and complete, and supported by appropriate records; and

e whether the ANAO has maintained in all material respects effective supporting frameworks to
develop, gather, assess, monitor, assure and report in the in the annual performance statement
for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022.

| have drawn these criteria from the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013
(PGPA Act), the accompanying Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014 and
relevant Resource Management Guides issued by the Department of Finance to support the
enhanced Commonwealth government performance framework.

Basis for my Conclusion

| have conducted my work in accordance with the Australian Standard on Assurance Engagements
(ASAE 3000), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information. | believe that the assurance evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

In accordance with ASAE 3000 | have:

o used my professional judgement to assess the risk of material misstatement and plan and
perform the engagement to obtain reasonable assurance that the annual performance
statement for the period 1 July 2021 and 30 June 2022 is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error;

s considered relevant internal controls when designing my assurance procedures; however, | do
not express a conclusion on their effectiveness; and

* ensured that my engagement team possesses the appropriate knowledge, skills and professional
competencies.

Inherent Limitations

There is an unavoidable risk that work planned and executed in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards including ASAE 3000 may not detect a fraud, error or non-compliance with laws and
regulations, particularly where there has been concealment through collusion, forgery and other
illegal acts. There are inherent limitations in performing such work — for example, work is based on
selective testing of the information being examined — and therefore errors and irregularities may not
be detected. However, | will communicate to ANAO, as appropriate, any such matters that come to
my attention.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that it will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence relevant decisions
of the intended users of the report.

Use of the Report

This report was prepared for the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House or
Representatives for the purpose of providing an assurance conclusion on the ANAQO's annual
performance statement for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 and may not be suitable for
another purpose. | disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on my report, to any
person other than the President of the Senate or the Speaker of the House of Representatives, or for
any other purpose than that for which it was prepared.

My Responsibility

My responsibility is to perform a reasonable assurance engagement in relation to the ANAQ's annual
performance statement for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022, and to issue an assurance report
that includes my conclusion.

Management’s Responsibility

ANAO are responsible for:

e determining that the criteria are appropriate to meet their needs and the needs of the
Auditor-General;

e preparing and presenting the annual performance statement for the period 1 July 2021 to
30 June 2022 in accordance with the criteria; and

s establishing internal controls that enable the preparation and presentation of the annual
performance statement for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independence and Quality Control

| have complied with independence and other relevant ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by the Australian Professional and Ethical Standards Board, and
complied with the applicable requirements of Australian Standard on Quality Control 1 to maintain a
comprehensive system of quality control.

Yours Sincerely

Erae Mgyt

Eileen Hoggett
Independent Auditor
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Annual performance statements

As the accountable authority of the Australian National Audit Office (ANAO), | present the ANAO’s
2021-22 annual performance statements, as required under paragraphs 39(1)(a) and (b) of the Public
Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act), and section 16F of the Public
Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014. In my opinion, these annual performance
statements are based on properly maintained records, accurately reflect the ANAQO’s performance for
the reporting period and comply with subsection 39(2) of the PGPA Act.

e

Grant Hehir
Auditor-General
11 August 2022

Performance framework
The ANAQO’s performance framework allows us to monitor and measure:

e what we did (output);
e how well we did it (quality and/or efficiency); and

e what the benefits were (impact).
Taken together, the performance measures tell a story of the ANAO’s achievement of its purpose.

The output measures relay progress in the delivery of the ANAO’s audit work. This audit work
generates findings and recommendations for improving public administration and performance that
are directed at entities and tabled in the Parliament. The impact measures provide information on
entities’ responses to audit findings and implementation of recommendations, and the extent to which
the Parliament’s engagement with our work leads to improvements in public sector administration.

The ANAQ'’s performance framework also includes measures relating to quality and efficiency. These
measures are intended to demonstrate efficient use of taxpayer resources and a commitment to
quality in our work. We use information from public audit offices in other jurisdictions to benchmark
much of our performance.

Corporate plan and portfolio budget statements

The ANAO measures its performance against its purpose using a range of performance measures,
which are outlined in the Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22 and the ANAO’s Corporate Plan
2021-22.

The purpose of the ANAO is to support accountability and transparency in the Australian Government
sector through independent reporting to the Parliament, and thereby contribute to improved public
sector performance.

In its Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, the ANAQ’s sole outcome (Outcome 1) is ‘to improve
public sector performance and accountability through independent reporting on Australian
Government administration to the Parliament, the Executive and the public’.
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The ANAO seeks to achieve its purpose and outcome through its audit services, which include:

e financial statements audits of Australian Government entities (Program 1.1); and

e performance audits of Australian Government programs and entities (Program 1.2).
The ANAQO’s outcome and programs framework for 2021-22 is shown in Table 3.1.

Table 3.1: ANAO'’s outcome and programs framework for 2021-22

Outcome 1 ‘
|

To improve public sector performance and accountability through independent reporting on
Australian Government administration to the Parliament, the executive and the public.

Program 1.1: Assurance audit services Program 1.2: Performance audit services
This program contributes to the outcome This program contributes to the outcome
through: through:

e providing assurance on the fair e audits of the performance of Australian
presentation of financial statements of the Government programs and entities,
Australian Government and its controlled including identifying opportunities for
entities by providing independent audit improvement and lessons for the sector;
opinions for the Parliament, the executive and

and the public; . . .
e other assurance reviews and information

e presenting two reports annually reports to the Parliament.
addressing the outcomes of the financial
statements audits of Australian
Government entities and the consolidated
financial statements of the Australian
Government, to provide the Parliament
with an independent examination of the
financial accounting and reporting of public
sector entities; and

e contributing to improvements in the
financial administration of Australian
Government entities.

Assurance audits

The ANAO audits the annual financial statements of Australian Government entities and the
consolidated financial statements of the Australian Government. The consolidated financial
statements present the consolidated whole-of-government financial results, inclusive of all Australian
Government-controlled entities, including entities outside the general government sector. These
audits are designed to give assurance to the Parliament that an entity’s financial statements fairly
represent its financial operations and financial position at year end. The ANAO also undertakes a
range of assurance reviews by arrangement with entities, and in accordance with section 20 of the
Auditor-General Act 1997.

Performance audits
The ANAO conducts performance audits in accordance with the ANAO Auditing Standards. These

performance audits examine common aspects of public administration, reviewing and examining the
operations of public sector entities. They identify areas where improvements can be made and often
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make specific recommendations to assist entities to improve performance. Performance audits may
involve multiple entities, including where a program or service is jointly administered. An assurance
review of the Department of Defence’s major defence equipment acquisitions is also undertaken
annually. On completion, the ANAO’s performance audits are presented to the Parliament.

Performance statements audits

To maintain the momentum and capability building from the 2019-20 performance statements audit
pilot program, the ANAO conducted audits of the 2020-21 performance statements of the Department
of Social Services (DSS), Attorney-General’s Department (AGD) and the Department of Veterans’
Affairs (DVA). These audits were conducted as a continuation of the Finance Minister’s request to
conduct the pilot under section 40 of the PGPA Act, pursuant to section 15 of the Auditor-General Act
1997. For these audits, the ANAO refined the audit methodology to reflect the specific requirements
for entities’ performance measures following amendments to the PGPA Rule that came into effect in
2020. In April 2022, the Minister for Finance tabled the three 2020-21 audit opinions, which are
available at finance.gov.au/publications/reports.

The ANAO was provided funding in the Budget 2021-22 to progressively implement the auditing of
annual performance statements for material Australian Government entities. The ANAQ’s portfolio
budget statements (PBS) set out a schedule for the tabling of audit opinions on material entities’
performance statements, rising from three in 2021-22, to six in 2022-23, 10 in 2023-24 and 14 in
2024-25.2 By 2025-26, the ANAO will be auditing the performance statements of 19 material entities.
From 2025-26, an additional five entities per year will be selected to test maturity of non-financial
performance reporting more widely in the sector.

Following a request from the Minister for Finance in October 2021, the ANAO commenced audits of
six entities’ 2021-22 performance statements. The ANAO continued the program of work with DVA,
AGD and DSS and added three new entities: the former Department of Agriculture, Water and the
Environment, the former Department of Education, Skills and Employment, and the Treasury.

The budget decision will enable the Parliament to have independent assurance of the non-financial
performance information presented to it through the tabling of entity annual reports by ministers. To
this end, it will also strengthen the accountability framework set out in the PGPA Act. The ANAO will
progressively build its capacity to conduct performance statements audits according to the PBS
schedule.

Analysis of performance against our purpose

Overall, in 2021-22, the ANAO achieved 13 performance measures out of 19, an increase in the
number of performance outcomes achieved in 2020-21:

e For Program 1.1: Assurance audit services, five out of seven measures were met.

e For Program 1.2: Performance audit services, five out of six measures were met.

e For relationships and corporate and professional services, three out of six measures were met.
The ANAO successfully carried out its annual audit work program for 2021-22, having regard to the

priorities and interests of the Parliament and providing a balanced program of activity that was informed
by risk. Through the audit program, the ANAO promoted accountability, transparency and improvements

2 The ANAO has established a new program within the ANAO’s Portfolio Budget Statements 2022-23 — Program 1.3:
Performance Statements Audit Services.
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to public administration; followed up on past recommendations; identified trends for improvement or
declines in performance across the public sector; and applied all of the Auditor-General's mandate. The
ANAO tabled five COVID-19-related performance audits in 2021-22 and commenced a further two
COVID-19-related performance audits for tabling in 2022—-23.

The ANAO continued to assist the Parliament by considering requests for audit from members of
parliament, by briefing members of parliament and committees, and making submissions to and
appearing before parliamentary committees. ANAO engagement with the Parliament included
requests for submissions and appearances from committees.

The ANAO made 34 appearances and submissions to the Parliament in 2021-22, less than the
performance target of 40. While the ANAO did meet the performance target for providing private
briefings to parliamentarians, the number of private briefings requested in 2021-22 (10) was
significantly lower than in 2020-21 (25). These engagement activities were impacted by the
dissolution of the House of Representatives on 11 April 2022 and the impact of COVID-19 travel
restrictions on the operations of the Parliament.

The JCPAA tabled a report on its review of the Auditor-General Act 1997 (the Act) in March 2022. In
its report, the JCPAA recognised the important role the ANAO plays in examining the expenditure and
administration of government programs and its criticality to supporting the work of the JCPAA and the
Parliament. To support the JCPAA since the commencement of its inquiry into the Act in September
2020, the ANAO made one submission and 10 supplementary submissions, and attended seven
public hearings.

In 2021-22, the ANAO presented 40 performance audits for tabling in the Parliament. The primary
focus of ANAO performance audits was effectiveness and economy — the extent to which entities
delivered on intended objectives and the value for money achieved in doing so. The year also saw
continued emphasis on risk management and governance within entities, with a focus on service
delivery, procurement management, grants, regulation and cybersecurity. Performance audit work
covered non-corporate and corporate government entities and one Commonwealth company,
reflecting the Auditor-General’'s mandate.

In 2021-22, the ANAO published two Audit Insights reports to support its purpose and the focus of the
annual audit work program. Topics addressed were the effectiveness of entities’ management of
contractors, and service delivery through other entities.

The following sections provide more detailed analysis of the ANAQO’s performance results for
Program 1.1: Assurance audit services, Program 1.2: Performance audit services, and ANAO-wide
activities relating to relationships and corporate and professional services.

Performance results for Program 1.1: Assurance audit services

The primary purpose of financial statements is to provide relevant and reliable information to users
about a reporting entity’s financial performance and position. In the public sector, the users of
financial statements include ministers, the Parliament and the community. The preparation of timely
and accurate audited financial statements is also an important indicator of the effectiveness of an
entity’s financial management, which fosters confidence in an entity on the part of users.

The ANAOQO's financial statements audits, undertaken in accordance with the ANAO Auditing
Standards, provide an independent examination of the financial accounting and reporting of public
sector entities. They provide independent assurance that financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Australian Government’s financial reporting framework and Australian accounting
standards and present fairly the financial performance of the entity. The ANAQO’s assurance audits
contribute to improvements in the financial administration of Australian Government entities.

20 AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE



Part 3 — Report on performance

The Auditor-General presents reports on audits of financial statements to the Parliament twice a year.
The first of these reports, Interim Report on Key Financial Controls of Major Entities, reports on ANAO
coverage of key financial systems and controls in major Commonwealth entities. The second report,
Audits of the Financial Statements of Australian Government Entities, reports on the results of the
financial statements audits of all Commonwealth entities. The independent reporting to the Parliament
on this activity supports accountability and transparency in the Australian Government sector.

Key to the ANAO’s audit process is an assessment of entities’ internal control frameworks as they apply
to financial reporting. An effective internal control framework provides the ANAO with a level of
assurance that entities are able to prepare financial statements that are free from material misstatement.
In 2021-22, a total of 62 findings were reported to the entities included in the interim audit report to the
Parliament, comprising one significant, 14 moderate and 45 minor findings, and two legislative findings.
This is an increase on the interim audit results of 2020-21, with a total of 60 reported findings
comprising no significant, nine moderate and 51 minor findings. Fifty-eight per cent of findings are in the
areas of management of IT controls, particularly the management of privileged users.

The consolidated financial statements present the consolidated whole-of-government financial results,
inclusive of all Australian Government-controlled entities, as well as the general government sector
financial report. The 2020-21 consolidated financial statements were signed by the Minister for
Finance on 12 November 2021 and an unmodified auditor’s report was issued on 15 November 2021.

A total of 164 findings (2019-20: 145) were reported to entities as a result of the 2020-21 financial
statements audits. These comprised two significant (2019-20: 2), 21 moderate (2019-20: 22),

127 minor findings (2019-20: 118) and 14 legislative findings (2019-20: 3). The highest number of
findings are in the categories of:

e IT security management and user access, in particular the management of privileged users; and

e accounting and control of non-financial assets.

The total findings included three significant legislative breaches, one of which has remained open
since 2012—-13. There were 11 non-significant legislative breaches, eight of which related to
remuneration of key management personnel. A significant breach is reported where a significant
potential or actual breach of the Constitution occurs, or where noncompliance with an entity’s
enabling legislation, legislation the entity is responsible for administering, or the PGPA Act is
identified. A non-significant legislative breach is reported where instances of noncompliance with
other legislation, or subordinate legislation, are identified.

Performance measures

Assurance audit services contribute to achieving the ANAO’s purpose through:

e providing assurance on the fair presentation of financial statements of the Australian Government
and its controlled entities by providing independent audit opinions for the Parliament, the
executive and the public;

e presenting two reports annually addressing the outcomes of the financial statements audits of
Australian Government entities and the consolidated financial statements of the Australian
Government, to provide the Parliament with an independent examination of the financial
accounting and reporting of public sector entities; and

e contributing to improvements in the financial administration of Australian Government entities.
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To assess performance against our purpose in relation to assurance audit activities, the ANAO
measures the:

e number of financial statements audit opinions issued;

e number of other assurance reports produced;

number of financial statements-related reports produced;

timeliness of issuing the auditor’s opinions;

average cost of financial statements audits; and

percentage of recommendations agreed and implemented by audited entities.

|
Measure 1 \ Percentage of the mandatory financial statements auditor’s reports
‘ completed
Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.1, p. 103
Result Achieved a result of 100% against a target of 100% MET

The number of financial statements auditor’s reports issued is a key measure of the ANAQO’s core
business in achieving its purpose. Financial statements auditor’s reports provide assurance to the
Parliament that the financial statements of an entity comply with Australian accounting standards and
other reporting requirements (such as the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability
(Financial Reporting) Rule 2015), and present fairly the entity’s financial position and its financial
performance and cash flows for the period.

During 2021-22, the ANAO completed 245 of 245 mandated financial statements audits for the year
ended 30 June 2021.3 This included the consolidated financial statements of the Australian
Government.

Details of issues identified during the financial statements audits are included in Auditor-General
Report No.14 of 2021-22 Audits of the Financial Statements of Australian Government Entities for the
Period Ended 30 June 2021.

| |
Measure 2 \ Number of financial statements-related audit reports presented to Parliament \

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.1, p. 103
Result Achieved a result of 2 against a target of 2 MET

The Auditor-General presents insights and findings from the outcomes of the financial statements
audits of Australian Government entities and the consolidated financial statements of the Australian
Government through independent reports to the Parliament. The reports support accountability and
transparency in the Australian Government sector and provide the Parliament with an independent
examination of the financial accounting and reporting of public sector entities.

3 Mandated audits are those required under the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 or other
legislation.

22 AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE


https://www.anao.gov.au/work/financial-statement-audit/audits-the-financial-statements-australian-government-entities-the-period-ended-30-june-2021
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/financial-statement-audit/audits-the-financial-statements-australian-government-entities-the-period-ended-30-june-2021

Part 3 — Report on performance

Auditor-General Report No.14 of 2021-22 Audits of the Financial Statements of Australian
Government Entities for the Period Ended 30 June 2021 was tabled in December 2021. This report
complemented the interim-phase report published in June 2021 and provided a summary of the final
results of the audits of the consolidated financial statements for the Australian Government and the
financial statements of Australian Government entities.

Auditor-General Report No.32 of 2021-22 Interim Report on Key Financial Controls of Major Entities
was tabled in June 2022. This report focused on the results of the interim audit phase — including an
assessment of entities’ key internal controls — of the 2021-22 financial statements audits of 25 entities,
including all departments of state and a number of major Australian Government entities. The work
performed for the interim report pre-dated adjustments entities have made to their financial and risk
management controls. These risks will be considered in the final audits of financial statements.

\
Measure 3 \ Number of assurance audit reports by arrangement

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.1, p. 103

Result Achieved a result of 40 against a target of 45 NOT MET

The target was based on an estimate of the number of audits and reviews by arrangement that the
ANAO may be requested to undertake.

In addition to conducting mandated financial statements audits, the ANAO undertakes other
assurance activities by arrangement with audited entities to support accountability and transparency
in the Australian Government sector. Measuring audits by arrangement contributes to the delivery of
Program 1.1 by independently identifying improvements in the financial administration of Australian
Government entities.

In 2021-22, the ANAO agreed to undertake 39 audits or reviews conducted under section 20 of the
Auditor-General Act 1997 and completed 38 of those audits or reviews. They include financial
statements audits and audits or reviews of compliance with legislative requirements. Also reported
against this performance measure are two non-financial statements audits completed by the ANAO in
2021-22. The two non-financial statements audits are required by section 28D of the Australian
Postal Corporation Act 1989 and subsection 313(3) of the Bankruptcy Act 1966.

Once inquiries by the ANAO have been concluded, the outcomes and any findings from these
individual assurance activities are communicated through the issue of a formal report or by other
correspondence. The ANAO charges a fee for these audits and reviews.

| |
Measure 4 \ Percentage of auditor’s reports issued within three months of the financial-

‘ year-end reporting date

Source ANAOQO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.1, p. 103
Result Achieved a result of 89% against a target of 85% MET

In order to support timely reporting of entities’ financial performance to the Parliament through annual
reports, the ANAO aims to issue 85 per cent of auditor’s reports within three months of the
financial-year-end reporting date.
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Providing timely auditor’s reports also supports entities in meeting requirements to provide audit-
cleared financial information to the Department of Finance in accordance with deadlines that are set
to assist the Australian Government to prepare the Final Budget Outcome by 30 September for the
financial statements with 30 June year end, and the consolidated financial statements by

30 November each year. The consolidated financial statements present whole-of-government
financial results, inclusive of all Australian Government-controlled entities.

Achievement of this measure relies on entities providing the ANAO with auditable financial statements
within the required timeframe. The ANAO noted a decrease in financial statements preparation
findings compared to the prior year. The minor findings relate to quality review processes and
preparation of key position papers. The ANAO works closely with entities to facilitate the timely
finalisation of the financial statements, with the objective of issuing auditor’s reports within two
business days of the financial statements being signed. The ANAO issued 98 per cent (2020-21:

96 per cent) of auditors’ reports within two business days of the signing of the financial statements by
the accountable authority.

The result of 89 per cent of entities being issued a signed auditor’s report within three months of the
financial year end is an increase from 77 per cent in the prior year. The average for the three
reporting periods from 2019-20 to 2021-22 is 83.3 per cent.

|
Measure 5 \ Percentage increase to average cost per financial statements audit

 E———————————————

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.1, p. 103

Result Achieved a result of 1.79% decrease against a target of a greater than MET
0% reduction

The ANAO is committed to delivering cost-effective audits through increased efficiency and
effectiveness. One way of demonstrating this is to measure the cost of delivering audits over time.
This measure is designed to track the ANAO’s organisational performance against the delivery of
audit outcomes.

In 2021-22, the ANAO is reporting on audits of financial statements from the 2020—21 audit cycle, as
the financial year ended on 30 June and the audit occurred after the end of the financial year.
Therefore, the average cost per audit for the Assurance Audit Services Group is calculated by
comparing the average cost of the 2020-21 audit cycle to the average cost of the 2019-20 audit
cycle.* The average cost for the 2020—-21 audit cycle was $161,331 and the 2019-20 average cost
was $164,268, representing a 1.79 per cent decrease (Table 3.2). The decrease was mainly driven by
savings achieved from a change of auditor’s expert engaged to carry out investment valuation work.
Also, the Assurance Audit Services Group completed 100 per cent of the audit work within six months
of the financial year end (the previous year was within 12 months).

4 From 1 July 2022, the Assurance Audit Services Group was renamed the Financial Statements Audit Services Group.
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Table 3.2: Cost of assurance audit reports, 2018-19 to 2020-21

Percentage Average cost per Range of audit  Actual result (%)

increase mandated audit fees charged

Target (%) ($)@ (%)
2020-21 0 161,331 5,500-3,890,000 -1.79
2019-20 0 164,268 | 5,500-3,700,000 6.06
2018-19 0 154,889 | 5,500-3,800,000 0.63

(@) Costis calculated on a nominal cost recovery basis using an accrual-based costing model.

|
Measure 6 \ Percentage of moderate or significant findings from assurance audit reports

agreed to by audited entities

Source ANAOQO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.1, p. 103
Result Achieved a result of 100% against a target of 90% MET

The ANAO provides entities with audit findings and recommendations to improve internal controls and
business processes, based on observations noted during the conduct of financial statements audits.
These matters are reported to the accountable authority and copied to the chair of the audit
committee and the chief financial officer via an interim management letter, a closing report or a final
management letter. The ANAO seeks to confirm all factual observations concerning the audit findings
with entities before finalising these reports. Included in the measure of agreed recommendations are
situations where the audited entity agrees with the ANAO’s factual observations, but the entity may
suggest an alternative method to resolve the issue.

The audit findings and recommendations are reported using a rating scale whereby significant and
moderate risk issues are reported individually to the audited entities, the relevant minister and the
Parliament. Lower risk issues are also reported individually to each entity, and in aggregate in the
ANAO'’s reports to the Parliament.®

All audit findings and recommendations are followed up as part of the audit of the following year’s
financial statements.

|
Measure 7 \ Percentage of moderate and significant findings that are addressed by

‘ material entities within one year of reporting

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.1, p. 103
Result Achieved a result of 61% against a target of 90% NOT MET

The ANAO measures the percentage of moderate and significant findings that are addressed by
entities in order to measure the impact that the ANAQO’s audit work has on public administration. This
measure relates to the percentage of moderate or significant findings from material entity audits that

5 Significant (Category A) issues are those that pose a significant business or financial management risk to the entity.
These include issues that could result in a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements. Moderate
(Category B) issues are those that pose a moderate business or financial management risk to the entity. These may
include prior-year issues that have not been satisfactorily addressed.
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are addressed within 12 months of being reported to the entity. ‘Addressed’ means that the entity has
responded to and actioned the ANAO finding.

Audit findings are reported to entities at the conclusion of each year’s financial statements audit. In
order to determine whether these findings have been addressed by entities within one year of
reporting, a full 12-month period is required from the end of the previous audit cycle. The audit cycle
generally runs from October to September. Therefore, this performance measure for 2021-22
considers whether the audit findings reported at the conclusion of the 2019—-20 audit cycle had been
addressed by entities at the conclusion of the 2020-21 audit cycle. At the conclusion of the 2019-20
audit cycle, 18 significant and moderate findings were reported to material entities. A number of these
findings relate to complex areas and/or system changes that entities have needed additional time to
address. Eleven of these findings (61 per cent) were resolved within one year of being reported.

Performance results for Program 1.2: Performance audit services

The ANAO reports to the Parliament on aspects of public administration and makes specific
recommendations to assist the Parliament in holding government entities to account for meeting
expectations of, and making improvements to, proper use of resources as required by the PGPA Act.
Performance audits may report on one entity or involve multiple entities on a common aspect of
administration or policy implementation, or where there is joint administration of a program or service.

The ANAQ’s performance audit services include audit activities that involve performance audits of all
or part of an entity’s operations and result in independent performance audit reports to the Parliament.
Other information and limited assurance reviews are also prepared, including the Defence Major
Projects Report. These reports, along with performance audits, contribute to accountability and
transparency of public sector administration.

In 2021-22, the primary focus of ANAO performance audits was effectiveness (the extent to which
entities delivered on intended objectives and their performance measurement against these objectives)
and economy (the extent to which value for money is being achieved). In 2021-22, the focus on
effectiveness included an examination of the government’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The year also saw the continuation of a series of audits on procurements by the Australian
Government, including major Defence procurements, advertising by the Australian Government,
Indigenous service delivery, cyber resilience, management of contractors by selected entities, and
entity governance. The ANAO also tabled a cross-entity performance audit of the management of
staff leave in the Australian Public Service.

In response to ongoing parliamentary interest, the ANAO continued its audit series on the
implementation of ANAO and parliamentary recommendations. In 2021-22, the Auditor-General
tabled three performance audits that either followed up on an entity’s progress in implementing
recommendations or followed on from other related audits.

Performance measures

Performance audit services contribute to achieving the ANAO’s purpose through:

e audits of the performance of Australian Government programs and entities, including identifying
recommendations for improvement and key messages for all Australian Government entities; and

e other assurance reviews and information reports to the Parliament.
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To assess performance against our purpose in relation to performance audit activities, the ANAO
measures the:

e number of performance audits presented to the Parliament;

e time and cost of these audits (our efficiency); and

e percentage of recommendations agreed to and the status of their implementation by entities (our
impact and effectiveness).

Measure 8 \ Number of performance reports prepared for Parliament \

I ————

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.2, p. 105
Result Achieved a result of 40 against a target of 40 MET

In 2021-22, the Auditor-General presented 40 performance audits for the information of the
Parliament (Table 3.3).

In addition to the 40 performance audits presented to the Parliament, the ANAO presented Auditor-
General Report No.13 of 2021-22 2020—-21 Major Projects Report in December 2021. This is an
annual publication that provides assurance regarding the progress of major Defence projects.

Table 3.3: Number of performance audit reports, 2015-16 to 2021-22

Number of performance audit reports

‘ Target
2021-22 40 40
2020-21 42 42
2019-20 48 42
2018-19 48 48
2017-18 48 47
2016-17@) 48 58
2015-16@) 49 35

(a) The number of performance audits presented to the Parliament in 2015-16 and 2016—17 was affected by the
double dissolution of the Parliament on 9 May 2016, during which time Auditor-General reports could not be
presented for tabling, which caused a delay in publishing audits into 2016-17.

| |
Measure 9 \ Average elapsed time (months) for completion of performance audits \

I
Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.2, p. 105
Result Achieved a result of 10.2 months against a target of 10 months NOT MET

The duration of a performance audit (Table 3.4) is impacted by multiple factors, including the
complexity of the activities examined, the depth of the audit scope, the number of entities selected for
a particular audit, the experience of staff contributing to the audit, and the timely and comprehensive
provision of information by entities. Delays in the provision of information, including when an auditee
requires the ANAO to request access to information using the formal information gathering powers in
the Auditor-General Act 1997, continue to impact on the timeframes for audits.
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When selecting audit topics from the annual audit work program, the ANAO seeks to achieve an
appropriate balance of different audit types and complexities. This includes consideration of portfolio
coverage, basic administration as well as complex program implementation, activity area (for
example, policy development, service delivery, procurement, asset management and grant
management) and whether a follow-up from a previous audit is timely.

In 2021-22, although there was one audit that took 20.3 months to deliver, 23 of the remaining audits
were delivered in under 10 months. In 2020-21, 18 audits were delivered in under 10 months.

Table 3.4: Duration of performance audits, 2015-16 to 2021-22

Time taken to complete report (months)

Target Average |
2021-22 10.0 10.2 7.4-20.3
2020-21 10.0 10.5 5.4-17.4
2019-20 10.0 10.0 6.3-14.0
2018-19 10.5 10.1 4.6-18.1
2017-18 10.5 9.6 6.2-15.9
2016-17 N/A 10.6 5.2-22.0
2015-16 N/A 11.6 6.9-18.6

| |
Measure 10 \ Percentage increase to average cost per performance audit \

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.2, p. 105

Result Achieved a result of 6.6% decrease against a target of a greater than MET
0% reduction

The average cost of audits delivered in 2021-22 decreased compared to audits delivered in 2020-21
(Table 3.5).

In 2020-21 the average cost of a performance audit was $520,000 due to the factors outlined in the
ANAOQ's 2020-21 performance statements. These same factors did not emerge in 2021-22 as staffing
levels were built back up throughout 2021-22, thereby alleviating some of the need for a higher
proportion of senior involvement in audits that occurred in 2020-21. The decrease in the average cost
was also partly due to efficiencies and cost savings found in 2021-22 by conducting some audits in a
series. Three audits examined entities’ public sector board governance and three audits examined the
management of contractors by entities. The average cost across these six audits was $287,200.

The cost of an audit is calculated by multiplying the hours that each level of staff worked on that audit
by a charge-out rate that is set for each staffing level. The charge-out rates are set to recover the
direct costs of those staff working on the audit and the overhead cost of supporting those staff.
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Table 3.5: Cost of performance audit reports, 2015-16 to 2021-22

| | |
Percentage Cost per performance audit Actual result
increase ($°000)@ (%)

- /' - FFHf——]"——
Target (%) \ Average Range \ \

2021-22 0 486 159-1,106 -6.6
2020-21 0 520 234-984 18.0
2019-20 0 439 186-904 5.0
2018-19 0 419 131-670 -0.7
2017-18 0 422 159-786 -9.8
2016-17 N/A 468 102-1,500 -11.0
2015-16 N/A 526 230-767 N/A

(@) Costis calculated on a nominal cost recovery basis using an accrual-based costing model.

Measure 11 Percentage of recommendations from performance audit reports agreed to
by audited entities

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.2, p. 105

Result Achieved a result of 96% against a target of 90% MET

The ANAO makes recommendations in performance audit reports to support the Parliament in its role in
holding entities to account for their use of public money, and to seek to improve public administration.
Throughout a performance audit, the ANAO keeps entities informed of findings and discusses potential
recommendations to ensure entities understand the basis and intention of recommendations. Table 3.6
provides a breakdown of audited entities’ responses to the ANAO’s recommendations against the total
number of recommendations made. Only recommendations that were agreed without qualification are
included as ‘agreed’ recommendations in the result for this measure.

In 2021-22, 154 recommendations were agreed, four recommendations were agreed with
qualification and three recommendations were not agreed.

Table 3.6: Agreement to recommendations in performance audit reports, 2015-16 to 2021-22

|
Recommendations \
|

|
Total Fully agreed Agreed with Not agreed Noted or no

number (%) qualifications (%) response by

(%) | entities (%) |
2021-220@) 161 95.7 25 1.9 0.0
2020-21 165 92.1 6.1 1.2 0.6
2019-20 141 90.8 1.4 2.8 5.0
2018-19 146 90.0 6.8 0.7 2.7
2017-18 126 84.9 9.5 2.4 3.2
2016-17 102 91.0 4.0 3.0 2.0
2015-16 103 94.0 6.0 0.0 0.0

(@) The percentages for 2021-22 do not total 100 per cent due to rounding.
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Measure 12 Percentage of ANAO recommendations implemented within 24 months of a

performance audit report

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, Program 1.2, p. 105
Result Achieved a result of 86% against a target of 70% MET

The ANAO monitors entities’ implementation of performance audit recommendations by attending
entity audit committees and conducting audits that follow up on entity progress in implementing
previously made recommendations. The ANAO also seeks advice annually from all relevant entities
on progress in implementing audit recommendations over a two-year implementation period.

The self-reported data for audit recommendations made in 2019-20 suggests that entities are
implementing ANAO recommendations largely within 24 months of the recommendation being agreed
(Table 3.7). For those recommendations that have not yet been implemented, the majority of entities
have advised that work is underway.

This measure is based on entity self-reporting on implementation of recommendations. The ANAO
has undertaken a series of performance audits on entities’ implementation of parliamentary and
ANAO recommendations.® These audits have shown that some entities have reported ANAO
recommendations as being implemented when the evidence has shown that they have not actually
been implemented. These performance audits of the implementation of recommendations do not
cover all entities and the results may not be representative of the whole population. The audits
undertaken to date in this series have identified that 20 per cent of recommendations that entities had
reported as implemented were assessed by the ANAO as not implemented.

Table 3.7: Percentage of performance audit recommendations implemented within 24 months

|
Recommendations \
|

Year in which Recommendations Implemented Not No response
recommendations (number) (%) implemented provided (%)
made (%)

2019-200@) 182 86 8 7
2018-19 146 79 19 2
2017-18 126 81 19 0
2016-17 102 72 26 2
2015-16 103 89 11 0

(@) The percentages for 2019—20 do not total 100 per cent due to rounding.

Performance statements audit services

Performance statements audit services contribute to the ANAO achieving its purpose through the
conduct of audits of annual performance statements of selected entities. The intent of performance

6 Auditor-General Report No.6 of 2019—20 Implementation of ANAO and Parliamentary Committee Recommendations;
Auditor-General Report No.46 of 2019-20 /Implementation of ANAQO and Parliamentary Committee Recommendations —
Education and Health Portfolios; Auditor-General Report No.34 of 2020-21 Implementation of ANAO and Parliamentary
Committee Recommendations — Department of Defence; and Auditor-General Report No.25 of 2021-22 Implementation
of ANAQO and Parliamentary Committee Recommendations — Department of Home Affairs.
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statements audits is to drive improvements in the transparency and quality of entities’ performance
reporting, and, in turn, increase entities’ accountability to the Parliament and public.

During 2021-22, the ANAO continued its performance statements audit pilot program, auditing the
2020-21 performance statements of the same three entities as in 2019-20: the Attorney-General’'s
Department (AGD), the Department of Social Services (DSS) and the Department of Veterans’ Affairs
(DVA). These audits were conducted as a continuation of the Finance Minister’s 2019-20 request for
the Auditor-General to conduct a pilot under section 40 of the PGPA Act, pursuant to section 15 of the
Auditor-General Act 1997.

The ANAO also commenced six audits of entity 2021-22 performance statements as part of the
staged implementation of an annual performance statements assurance audit program, following a
request from the Minister for Finance in October 2021. The ANAO continued the program of work with
DVA, AGD and DSS and added three new entities: the then Department of Agriculture, Water and the
Environment, the then Department of Education, Skills and Employment, and the Treasury.

In April 2022, the Auditor-General tabled a report in the Parliament on the outcome of the ANAQO’s
annual performance statements audit pilot program and the ANAQO'’s preparation for the staged
implementation of an annual performance statements assurance audit program. The report noted
improvement during the pilot program in the standard of performance statements preparation and
reporting for each of the audited entities, demonstrating that mandated audits of performance
statements can drive more transparent and meaningful performance reporting to the Parliament.

To assess the ANAQO’s performance against its purpose in the area of performance statements audit
services, the ANAO measures the number of performance statements audit reports completed.

Measure 13 Number of performance statements audit reports completed
Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2019-20, Program 1.2, p. 105
Result Achieved a result of 3 against a target of 3 MET

The audit opinions were provided to the Minister for Finance in December 2021. The Minister for
Finance tabled the three 2020—21 audit opinions on 8 April 2022.7

Performance results for relationships and corporate and
professional services

A number of performance measures are shared across the ANAO, generally relating to relationships,
and corporate and professional services. These areas of activity contribute to achieving the ANAO’s
purpose through:

e facilitating dissemination of the ANAQ’s findings to members of parliament, the executive and the
public;

e providing organisation-wide enabling services for the ANAO, based on specialised knowledge,
professional practice and technology; and

e ensuring ANAO audits are of high quality and compliant with auditing standards.

7 The three audit reports for 2020-21 performance statements can be found on the Department of Finance website at
finance.gov.au/publications/reports.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 31


https://www.finance.gov.au/publications/reports

Performance measures

To assess performance against our purpose in relation to ANAO-wide activities, the ANAO measures
performance in delivering audit services through our key relationship with the Parliament, and the
publication of audit insights and key learnings from audit work.

The ANAO also evaluates whether the independent quality assurance program indicates that audit
conclusions are appropriately supported by evidence.

Measure 14 Number of appearances and submissions to parliamentary committees
I
Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, shared by programs 1.1 and 1.2, p. 107
Result Achieved a result 34 against a target of 40 NOT MET

The ANAO supports the work of parliamentary committees by providing private briefings on request,
and making appearances before, and submissions to, committee inquiries. This effort is based on
audit reports tabled in Parliament. In 2021-22, the ANAO made 34 appearances before, and
submissions to, parliamentary committees. Annexure A details ANAO appearances and submissions.

The 2021-22 result did not meet the target of 40 and is significantly less than the 2020-21 result
of 45, noting that appearances before, and submissions to, parliamentary committees were not
requested following the dissolution of the House of Representatives on 11 April 2022.

The relationship with the JCPAA remains the ANAQO’s key parliamentary engagement. To support the
work of the Parliament more broadly, the ANAO focused on proactively seeking opportunities to
engage with the Parliament to improve the utilisation of audit reports in parliamentary proceedings.
Engagement activities included:

e reviewing all Senate, House and joint committee inquiries and making submissions, and being
available to appear at hearings where there was audit coverage relevant to the committee inquiry
terms of reference; and

e providing a summary to estimates committees, prior to estimates hearings, which includes
information about all audit reports tabled since the last estimates hearings and highlighting which
audits are relevant to a committee’s portfolio of responsibilities.

Measure 15 Percentage of private briefings undertaken at request of parliamentarians
Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22

Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22 shared by programs 1.1 and 1.2, p. 107
Result Achieved a result of 100% against a target of 100% MET

In 2021-22, the ANAO provided 10 of 10 private briefings requested by parliamentarians. The total
number of briefings provided in 2021-22 is significantly lower than the 25 briefings provided in 2020—
21. Of the 10 briefings provided, nine related to specific audit reports and one briefing provided a
general outline of ANAO audit services provided to the Parliament.

All private briefings provided by the ANAO to parliamentarians and parliamentary committees are
published on the ANAO website as they occur.
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Measure 16 Number of published audit insights and key learnings from across ANAO
activities

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, programs 1.1 and 1.2, p. 107

Result Achieved a result of 2 against a target of 4 NOT MET

The ANAQ’s Audit Insights products provide information on shared learnings for all Commonwealth
entities as identified through financial statements audits, performance audits and performance
statements audits. All ANAO performance audit reports contain key messages for all Australian
Government entities. In 2021-22, the ANAO did not meet its target of publishing four reports in its
Audit Insights series, publishing two reports in the period

e Service Delivery through Other Entities; and

o [Effectiveness of the Management of Contractors.

The target was not met primarily due to the need to direct staffing resources to the delivery of the
2021-22 tabling program for the Parliament as outlined in the ANAQO’s Portfolio Budget Statements
2021-22. In addition to the two Audit Insights products listed above, the ANAO presented two
information reports to the Parliament: Auditor-General Report No.7 of 2021-22 Australian
Government Grants Reporting, and Auditor-General Report No.37 of 2021-22 Reporting on
Governing Boards of Commonwealth Entities and Companies. The ANAO also included a chapter on

‘Lessons learned and future opportunities’ in Auditor-General Report No.23 of 2021-22 Audits of the
Annual Performance Statements of Australian Government Entities — Pilot Program 2020-21.

Measure 17 The ANAO quality assurance program indicates that audit opinions and
conclusions are appropriate
Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, shared by programs 1.1 and 1.2, p. 107
Result Achieved a result of 100% against a target of 100% MET

Quality in the delivery of the ANAO’s audit services is critical in supporting the integrity of audit reports
and maintaining the confidence of the Parliament and public sector entities. This is reflected in the
target set in the performance indicator for Measure 17.

The ANAQ’s quality assurance framework is a system of quality control designed to provide
assurance that audits performed by the ANAO comply with applicable professional standards and
relevant regulatory and legal requirements, and that the reports issued are appropriate in the
circumstances.

A key element of the quality assurance framework is monitoring compliance with the policies and
procedures that comprise the system of quality control. The monitoring system comprises internal and
external quality assurance reviews of the ANAQO’s audit and other assurance engagements.
Monitoring activities are the responsibility of the Professional Services and Relationships Group,
which reports to the Executive Board of Management. The ANAO Quality Committee is responsible
for monitoring the ANAO’s progress in addressing the findings and recommendations arising from the
monitoring programs. Reports on quality risks resulting from the quality assurance reviews are
provided to the ANAO’s Audit Committee for consideration of proposed mitigations and actions.
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Monitoring processes include:

e annual quality assurance reviews of completed audits covering all of the ANAO’s functions;

e real-time quality reviews of in-progress financial statements audits and performance statements
audits;

e progress reviews at specified points by the audit executive and Auditor-General for in-progress
performance audits;

e biennial external peer reviews of completed performance audits performed by the New Zealand
Office of the Auditor-General;

e external reviews of the quality framework and completed financial statement audits conducted by
the Australian Securities and Investments Commission; and

e internal audits of compliance with selected requirements of the ANAO Audit Manual.

In 2021-22, the annual quality assurance program of completed audits reviewed 10 financial
statements audits, three performance audits and one performance statements audit. In addition,
seven real-time quality reviews of in-progress financial statements audits and two real-time quality
reviews of in-progress performance statements audits were conducted. One financial statements
audit real-time review was a complete file review. The remaining real-time financial statements audit
reviews were focused reviews, consisting of three reviews focused on substantive analytical
procedures and three reviews focused on auditing accounting estimates. The real-time reviews on
performance statements audits had a focus on work performed over the appropriateness of
performance measures. The focused reviews are not included in the above performance measure as
no overall file rating is assigned and findings are indicative only as they are addressed prior to forming
the audit conclusion.

One financial statements audit file reviewed was determined to be unsatisfactory due to significant
deficiencies identified in the audit approach over revenue. Remediation procedures were not required
as evidence that was not on the audit file indicated that the risk of material misstatement was
mitigated and that the audit conclusion was appropriate despite the deficiencies identified. All financial
statements audit conclusions and all performance audit and performance statements audit
conclusions were appropriate in the circumstances. The two satisfactory reviews conducted by the
Australian Securities and Investments Commission (discussed below) are included in the
performance measure.

Based on the results reported to the Executive Board of Management and the completed internal and
external reviews, the Auditor-General is satisfied that the system of quality control functioned
effectively in 2021-22. Identified deficiencies and good practice recommendations identified in all
internal and external reviews are addressed by ANAO follow-up actions. Progress and completion of
follow-up actions is monitored by the Quality Committee.

As in previous years, the mix of financial statements audits selected for review comprised audits
conducted utilising in-house resources and those undertaken by contracted firms. Identified areas for
improvement in financial statements audits related to the design and execution of substantive
analytical procedures, documentation related to auditing accounting estimates, engagement team
planning meetings and IT audit testing.

In 2021-22, the ANAO continued to use root cause analysis of selected findings and observations
from the inspections of 2019-20 financial statements audit files to identify the root cause of findings
and determine the most appropriate remedial actions. Follow-up actions arising from the analysis
included delivery of training, revision of methodology guidance and improvements to procedures for
allocating second reviewers to audits with quality issues. The root cause analysis of thematic findings
and observations from the inspection of 2020-21 financial statements audit files was completed in
2021-22 concurrently with the finalisation of the inspections. Follow-up actions arising from this
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analysis included a focus on providing coaching and guidance to junior team members, particularly
when auditing areas that require higher levels of professional judgement, including the design of
appropriate substantive analytical procedures and auditing accounting estimates.

The identified areas for improvement in performance audits related to engagement risk assessments,
documentation of resolutions for potential independence threats, completion of test programs, utilising
audit tool functionality to evidence review, and the timely closure of the audit file.

In 2021-22, the first quality assurance review over a completed performance statements audit was
conducted. The ANAO performance statements audit policy and methodology is in the development
stage. The quality assurance review identified areas where policy or guidance, or clearer
methodology procedures, are needed, including when performance statements audit teams rely on
the work conducted by other ANAO audit teams or on unaudited information; and when documenting
audit judgements.

The ANAO Qualifications and Technical Advisory Committee provides a forum for engagement
executives to consult on difficult or contentious matters and, where necessary, resolve differences of
opinion on audit-related matters. ANAO policy identifies the matters that must be referred to the
committee and the committee meets as required to provide advice to the Auditor-General. Under
ANAO audit policy, the Auditor-General can refer matters arising in performance audits to the
committee for advice. The committee was consulted on 13 matters in 2021-22.

In 2021-22, the ANAO continued the arrangement, initiated in 2017-18, with the Australian Securities
and Investments Commission (ASIC) to conduct an annual external independent review of the
ANAO’s financial statements audit files. This is similar to the review work conducted by ASIC on
external auditors in the private sector. The reviews are valued by the ANAO as they provide external
scrutiny and the ANAO recognises the important role that openness to evaluation plays in building a
culture focused on quality, learning and continuous improvement. This year, two audits of financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 were reviewed. These reviews were conducted using
ASIC’s methodology for reviewing private sector audits. In respect of the file reviews, ASIC made
findings on the auditor's assessment of the appropriateness of revenue recognition and assumptions
used in calculating employee provisions, documentation of the sample selection for testing, and audit
procedures over lease accounting and capitalisation of intangible assets. ASIC did not have available
resources to conduct a review of the ANAQO’s quality assurance framework for 2020-21.

Measure 18 Percentage of inquiries and audit requests from parliamentarians finalised
within 28 days
Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, shared by programs 1.1 and 1.2, p. 107
Result Achieved a result of 100% against a target of 90% MET

Note: An ANAO response to an audit request or inquiry is finalised when it has been prepared and sent to a
parliamentarian. In cases where an audit or limited assurance review is commenced, the notification by letter
that the ANAO has taken this step will be sufficient to consider the request ‘finalised’. Equally, where a
response is provided that the topic will be considered in the development of the next annual audit work
program, this will be considered a ‘finalised’ response. Follow-ups to the initial audit request would not be
counted as an additional inquiry. This measure does not refer to a holding letter that is sent to
parliamentarians to indicate that we have received the request.

In determining the ANAQO’s audit work program, the Auditor-General must have regard to the audit
priorities of the Parliament, as determined by the JCPAA. Formal consultation with the JCPAA about
the audit priorities of the Parliament occurs between February and May each year to inform the
development of the ANAQO’s annual audit work program. The ANAO provided the draft work program
for 2022-23 to the JCPAA in February 2022. The final work program was published on 6 July 2022.
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Throughout the year, the Auditor-General also receives direct requests from members of parliament
for audits of particular areas of public administration. Where the Auditor-General determines that
further examination is warranted as a result of an audit request, a response can be provided through
a range of mechanisms, including by initiating a performance audit, assurance review or information
report, and through correspondence or inclusion in future work programs.

In 2021-22, the Auditor-General received 17 requests for audit from members of parliament.
A response to 100 per cent of requests (17 of 17) was provided within 28 days. Annexure B outlines
the ANAO's responses to these requests.

Measure 19 Percentage of JCPAA members surveyed who were satisfied that the ANAO

improved public sector performance and supported accountability and
transparency

Source ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22
Portfolio Budget Statements 2021-22, shared by programs 1.1 and 1.2, p. 107

Result Not able to report

The ANAO engaged a research firm, ORIMA Research, to conduct a survey of JCPAA members in
2022. One of the 15 JCPAA members responded to the survey (7 per cent), which is substantially lower
than the participation rate of 47 per cent (seven of 15 members surveyed) in 2021. As there was only
one respondent to the survey, there is insufficient evidence to reliably determine a result against this
measure. As such, the ANAO is unable to report a result against this measure.

The timing of the survey fell just before the proroguing of the Parliament on 11 April 2022. The one
respondent rated all but two statements presented in the survey positively, selecting ‘unsure’ for the
following: ‘Financial statements audit reports provided a balanced perspective’, and ‘The ANAO
engages with the committee on issues of relevance to the administration of the broader public service’.
The respondent strongly agreed that performance audits, the Defence Major Projects Report, and other
reports provide a balanced perspective. The respondent also strongly agreed that the ANAO reports and
services have contributed to improved public sector accountability and transparency and agreed that the
ANAO reports and services help improve public sector administration.

The ANAO will work with the JCPAA of the 47th Parliament to determine the best way to utilise the
survey as a mechanism for the JCPAA to provide feedback on the ANAQO’s performance in relation to
delivering audit services to the Parliament.

Transparency reporting

The Corporations Act 2001 includes requirements for annual transparency reporting by auditors.
Although the ANAO is not subject to the transparency reporting requirements for private sector audits
that are specified in the Corporations Act, the ANAO has embraced the principles of transparency
reporting. Appendix A summarises the requirements that are relevant to the ANAO and shows where
the required information is presented in this annual report.
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Table 3A.1: ANAO appearances before, and submissions to, parliamentary committees in
2021-22 (Measure 14)

[ |
Date Committee \ Topic Type \
6 July 2021 Senate Standing Committees | Inquiry into the purpose, intent Submission
on Community Affairs — and adequacy of the Disability
References Committee Support Pension
12 July 2021 House of Representatives Inquiry into procurement Submission
Standing Committee on practices for government-funded
Infrastructure, Transport and | infrastructure
Cities
19 July 2021 Joint Standing Committee on | Inquiry into general issues Submission
National Disability Insurance | around the implementation and
Scheme performance of the National
Disability Insurance Scheme
19 July 2021 Senate Standing Committees | 2021-22 Budget estimates — Hearing
on Rural and Regional Affairs | commuter car parks
and Transport — Legislation
Committee
6 August 2021 Senate Standing Committees | Inquiry into Australia’s sovereign | Hearing
on Economics — References | naval shipbuilding capability
Committee
6 August 2021 Senate Standing Committees | Inquiry into the current capability | Hearing
on Finance and Public of the Australian Public Service
Administration —References
Committee
10 August 2021 House of Representatives Auditor-General reports: Briefing
Standing Committee on No.45 of 2019-20 Management
Social Policy and Legal of Agreements for Disability
Affairs Employment Services
No.48 of 2019-20 Management
of the Australian Government’s
Lobbying Code of Conduct —
Follow-up Audit
No.43 of 2020-21 Australian
Federal Police’s Use of
Statutory Powers
16 August 2021 Joint Committee of Public Inquiry into alternative financing | Submission
Accounts and Audit mechanisms
19 August 2021 Joint Committee of Public Inquiry into Commonwealth Hearing
Accounts and Audit 2019-20 financial statements
based on Auditor-General
reports:
No.25 of 2020-21 Audits of the
Financial Statements of
Australian Government Entities
for the Period Ended 30 June
2020
No.40 of 2020-21 [nterim
Report on Key Financial
Controls of Major Entities
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the National Disability
Insurance Scheme

implementation and forecasting
for the National Disability
Insurance Scheme

I |
Date Committee \ Topic Type
19 August 2021 Joint Committee of Public Inquiry into Defence Major Briefing
Accounts and Audit Projects Report 2019-20
19 August 2021 Joint Committee of Public Review of Auditor-General Briefing
Accounts and Audit reports
1 September Senate Standing Committees | Inquiry into the administration Submission
2021 on Finance and Public and expenditure of funding
Administration — References | under the Urban Congestion
Committee Fund
3 September Joint Committee of Public Review of the Auditor-General Hearing
2021 Accounts and Audit Act 1997
14 September House of Representatives Inquiry into procurement Hearing
2021 Standing Committee on practices for government-funded
Infrastructure, Transport and | infrastructure
Cities
15 September Joint Committee of Public Review of the Auditor-General Hearing
2021 Accounts and Audit Act 1997
15 September Joint Committee of Public Inquiry into Commonwealth Hearing
2021 Accounts and Audit 2019-20 financial statements
based on Auditor-General
reports:
No.25 of 2020-21 Audits of the
Financial Statements of
Australian Government Entities
for the Period Ended 30 June
2020
No.40 of 2020-21 Interim
Report on Key Financial
Controls of Major Entities
15 September Joint Committee of Public Inquiry into Report 489 Defence | Hearing
2021 Accounts and Audit Major Projects Report 2019-20
15 September Joint Committee of Public Inquiry into alternative financing | Hearing
2021 Accounts and Audit mechanisms
22 September Parliamentary Joint Inquiry into the expansion of the | Submission
2021 Committee on the Australian | Australian Commission for Law
Commission for Law Enforcement Integrity’s
Enforcement Integrity jurisdiction and the corruption
vulnerabilities of law
enforcement agencies’
contracted services
23 September Senate Standing Committees | Inquiry into the Commonwealth | Submission
2021 on Finance and Public Electoral Amendment (Integrity
Administration —Legislation of Elections) Bill 2021
Committee
25 October 2021 | Senate Standing Committees | 2021-22 supplementary Budget | Hearing
on Finance and Public estimates
Administration — Legislation
Committee
29 October 2021 | Joint Committee of Public Review of the Auditor-General Hearing
Accounts and Audit Act 1997
29 October 2021 | Joint Standing Committee on | Inquiry into current scheme Submission
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Date

1 November
2021

Committee

Senate Standing Committees
on Community Affairs —
References Committee

Part 3 — Report on performance

I
\ Topic Type

I —

Inquiry into the purpose, intent
and adequacy of the Disability
Support Pension

Hearing

11 November
2021

Senate Standing Committees
on Finance and Public
Administration —References
Committee

Inquiry into the administration
and expenditure of funding
under the Urban Congestion
Fund

Hearing

3 December
2021

Joint Committee of Public
Accounts and Audit

Inquiry into Commonwealth
investments achieving policy
objectives based on Auditor-
General reports:

No.14 of 2020-21 Decision-
making Controls for NDIS
Participant Plans

No.26 of 2020-21 Investments
by the Clean Enerqy Finance
Corporation

No.28 of 2020-21
Administration of the National
Housing Finance and
Investment Corporation

No.47 of 2020-21
Administration of Commuter Car
Park Projects within the Urban
Congestion Fund

Hearing

3 December
2021

Joint Committee of Public
Accounts and Audit

Implementation of COVID-19
measures: Inquiry into Auditor-
General reports:

No.20 of 2020-21 Management
of the Australian Public
Service’s Workforce Response
to COVID-19

No.22 of 2020-21 Planning and
Governance of COVID-19
Procurements to Increase the
National Medical Stockpile
No.23 of 2020-21 Services
Australia COVID-19 Measures
and Enterprise Risk
Management

No.24 of 2020-21 The
Australian Taxation Office’s
Management of Risks Related
to the Rapid Implementation of
COVID-19 Economic Response
Measures

No.39 of 2020-21 COVID-19
Procurements and Deployments
of the National Medical

Stockpile

Hearing

9 February 2022

Joint Committee of Public
Accounts and Audit

ANAO 2022-23 Budget
submission

Briefing

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

39


https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/decision-making-controls-ndis-participant-plans
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/decision-making-controls-ndis-participant-plans
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/decision-making-controls-ndis-participant-plans
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/investments-by-the-clean-energy-finance-corporation
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/investments-by-the-clean-energy-finance-corporation
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/investments-by-the-clean-energy-finance-corporation
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/administration-the-national-housing-finance-and-investment-corporation
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/administration-the-national-housing-finance-and-investment-corporation
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/administration-the-national-housing-finance-and-investment-corporation
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/administration-commuter-car-park-projects-within-the-urban-congestion-fund
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/administration-commuter-car-park-projects-within-the-urban-congestion-fund
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/administration-commuter-car-park-projects-within-the-urban-congestion-fund
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/management-the-australian-public-service-workforce-response-to-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/management-the-australian-public-service-workforce-response-to-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/management-the-australian-public-service-workforce-response-to-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/management-the-australian-public-service-workforce-response-to-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/planning-and-governance-covid-19-procurements-to-increase-the-national-medical-stockpile
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/planning-and-governance-covid-19-procurements-to-increase-the-national-medical-stockpile
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https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/planning-and-governance-covid-19-procurements-to-increase-the-national-medical-stockpile
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https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/the-australian-taxation-office-management-risks-related-to-the-rapid-implementation-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/the-australian-taxation-office-management-risks-related-to-the-rapid-implementation-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/the-australian-taxation-office-management-risks-related-to-the-rapid-implementation-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/the-australian-taxation-office-management-risks-related-to-the-rapid-implementation-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/the-australian-taxation-office-management-risks-related-to-the-rapid-implementation-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/the-australian-taxation-office-management-risks-related-to-the-rapid-implementation-covid-19
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/covid-19-procurements-and-deployments-the-national-medical-stockpile
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/covid-19-procurements-and-deployments-the-national-medical-stockpile
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/covid-19-procurements-and-deployments-the-national-medical-stockpile
https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/covid-19-procurements-and-deployments-the-national-medical-stockpile

Date

9 February 2022

Committee

Parliamentary Joint
Committee on Intelligence
and Security

i Topic Type i

Review of Administration and
Expenditure No.20 (2020-21) —
Australian intelligence agencies

Submission

10 February
2022

Joint Committee of Public
Accounts and Audit

Review of the Auditor-General
Act 1997

Submission

14 February
2022

Senate Standing Committees
on Finance and Public
Administration — Legislation
Committee

2021-22 additional estimates

Hearing

11 March 2022

Joint Committee of Public
Accounts and Audit

Governance in the stewardship
of public resources: Inquiry into
Auditor-General reports:

No.11 of 2019-20
Implementation of the Digital
Continuity 2020 Policy

No.31 of 2019-20 Management
of Defence Housing Australia
No.39 of 2019-20
Implementation of the
Commonwealth Scientific and
Industrial Research
Organisation (CSIRQO) Property
Investment Strateqy

No.2 of 2020-21 Procurement
of Strategic Water Entitlements
No.9 of 2020-21 Purchase of
the ‘Leppington Triangle’ Land
for the Future Development of
Western Sydney Airport

Submission

22 March 2022

Joint Committee of Public
Accounts and Audit

Inquiry into Commonwealth
investments achieving policy
objectives based on Auditor-
General reports:

No.14 of 2020-21 Decision-
making Controls for NDIS
Participant Plans

No.26 of 2020-21 Investments
by the Clean Enerqy Finance
Corporation

No.28 of 2020-21
Administration of the National
Housing Finance and
Investment Corporation

No.47 of 2020-21
Administration of Commuter Car
Park Projects within the Urban
Congestion Fund

Hearing

4 April 2022

Senate Standing Committees
on Finance and Public
Administration — Legislation
Committee

2022-23 Budget estimates

Hearing
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https://www.anao.gov.au/work/performance-audit/administration-commuter-car-park-projects-within-the-urban-congestion-fund
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Table 3B.1: Parliamentary requests for audit, 2021-22 (Measure 18)

Date of

|
Date of

Requested by

\ Audit request

Response provided

request response ‘ relating to to request
7 July 2021 2 August 2021 | The Hon Urban Do not propose to
Catherine King Congestion Fund | commence an audit
MP and Mr into additional
Andrew Giles MP components of the
Urban Congestion
Fund at this time
9 July 2021 29 July 2021 Ms Michelle NBN Co Consider as a part of
Rowland MP and | executive potential audit topic
Senator bonuses included in the Annual
Kimberley Audit Work Program
Kitching 2021-22
26 July 2021 20 August Mr Julian Hill MP | Partner visa Following consultation
2021 processing with the Department of
Home Affairs, the topic
will be subject to
normal priority-setting
processes(@
17 August 2021 | 13 September | Senator the Hon | ABC defamation | Any payment is
2021, Eric Abetz case payment subject to financial
15 October audit by the ANAO in
2021 2021-22. Do not
propose to commence
any additional audit at
this time
25 August 2021 | 10 September | Mr Adam Bandt Beetaloo Consider including the
2021 MP Cooperative topic in the Annual
Drilling Program | Audit Work Program
2022-23
26 August 2021 | 10 September | Ms Madeleine Beetaloo Consider including the
2021 King MP and Cooperative topic in the Annual

Senator the Hon
Kristina Keneally

Drilling Program

Audit Work Program
2022-23

27 September
2021

22 October
2021

Senator
Mehreen Farugqi

Australian
Research
Council’s
administration of
funding
application
processes

The ANAO conducted
an audit of the
Australian Research
Council’s grants
administration, which
included topics related
to this request.® Do
not propose to
commence an audit at
this time
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|
Response provided

Date of Date of Requested by \ Audit request
request response é relating to to request
22 October 3 November Senator the Hon | Continuation and | The ANAO will
2021 2021 Simon expansion of the | continue its program of
Birmingham annual work with three entities
performance for the 2020-21
statements performance
audits statements, and add
three new entities to
the program of audits
for the 2021-22
performance
statements. The
ANAO will continue to
liaise with the Joint
Committee of Public
Accounts and Audit (to
ensure ongoing
improvements in
programs and
practice.
28 October 19 November Senator Malcolm | National Disaster | The ANAO will
2021 2021 Roberts Relief and respond to questions
Recovery in the letter, also
Arrangements placed on notice,
through the
established Senate
estimates process(© )
5 November 19 November Ms Alicia Payne Australian War Will consider the
2021 2021 MP Memorial matter raised as a part
expansion of potential audit

included in Annual
Audit Work Program
2021-22

17 November
2021

13 December
2021

Senator Jordon
Steele-John

Administration of
a
Pharmaceutical
Benefits Scheme
program for
opioid
dependency
treatment

Do not propose to
include the topic in the
Annual Audit Work
Program 2021-22

20 December
2021

17 January
2022

The Hon Tanya
Plibersek MP

Administration of
Australian
Research
Council grants

No additional issues
identified to warrant
prioritising in the
Annual Audit Work
Program 2021-22

15 February
2022

10 March 2022

Senator the Hon
Eric Abetz

University of
Tasmania
relocation

Consider including as
a potential audit topic
in the Annual Audit
Work Program 2022—
23
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Date of

request

Date of
response

Requested by

relating to

Part 3 — Report on performance

\ Audit request

| |
Response provided

to request

24 March 2022 | 13 April 2022 Mr Adam Bandt Carbon credit Will consider the
MP methodology matter referred as part
determinations of the development of
made under the the potential audit
Carbon Credits topic ‘Contracting and
(Carbon Farming | integrity in the
Initiative) Act Emissions Reduction
2011, and Fund’ included in the
administration of | draft Annual Audit
the Act by the Work Program 2022—
Clean Energy 23
Regulator
28 March 2022 | 22 April 2022 Senator the Hon Inclusion of the Consider including as
Eric Abetz ABC defamation | a potential audit topic
case paymentin | in the Annual Audit
the Annual Audit | Work Program 2022—
Work Program 23
2022-23
5 April 2022 2 May 2022 Senator Rex Appointments to | Consider including as
Patrick government a potential audit topic
bodies prior to in the Annual Audit
the 2022 federal | Work Program 2022—
election 23
8 June 2022 5 July 2022 The Hon Richard | Review of the A topic has been

Marles MP

Workforce
Australia
procurement
process

included in the Annual
Audit Work Program
2022-23

(@)

and is due to table November 2022.

(b)

was tabled in August 2019.

()

Funding Arrangements has commenced and is due to table March 2023.

(d)

questions on notice on 10 December 2021.

Note:

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

An audit Management of Migration to Australia — Family Reunion and Partner Related Visas commenced
An audit of the Australian Research Council’s Administration of the National Competitive Grants Program
An audit of the National Recovery and Resilience Agency’s Administration of the Disaster Recovery

The ANAO responded to Senator Malcolm Roberts 2021-22 Supplementary budget estimates written

Parliamentarians are advised on the outcome of the request when the Annual Audit Work Program is
released.
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Report on financial performance

The work of the ANAO is mainly funded by government appropriation, with a small amount of revenue
generated from audit fees paid by clients for audits by arrangement under section 20 of the
Auditor-General Act 1997. Audit fees are set to recover the expenses incurred as part of paid audits.

Overview of financial performance and future financial viability

The ANAO reported a total comprehensive income loss of $1.310 million in 2021-22. Excluding the
impact of depreciation, the ANAQO’s result for the 2021-22 financial year was an operating surplus of
$2.445 million (Figure 3.1).

As part of the federal Budget 2021-22, additional funding was provided for the ANAO to support the
delivery of the ANAQ’s mandatory financial statements audit program; rebuild resources to enable the
ANAO to target 48 performance audits by 2024—25; meet ongoing quality, data analysis, evidence
extraction and data storage requirements; and introduce and deliver a staged program of
performance statements audits.

The ANAO commenced 2021-22 with an average staffing level close to 20 per cent below the
average staffing level cap of 363. An increasingly competitive labour market, coupled with an attrition
rate of 21.4 per cent, have posed challenges to the ANAO for the recruitment and retention of highly
trained technical and specialised auditors. The competitive labour market has also impacted the
ANAO'’s ability to engage skilled auditors and IT professionals for contract-in resources to supplement
the workforce. Lower-than-expected expenditure against budget for employee benefits and contract-in
resource supplementation are primary drivers for the surplus result of $2.445 million (excluding
depreciation and amortisation expenses).

The ANAO is continuing to invest in IT and other technology solutions, including the development of
modern, consumption-based cloud computing to enable a robust, flexible and cost-effective technology
environment. This has resulted in savings as infrastructure as a service applications are transitioned to
cloud-based services. COVID-19 restrictions early in the financial year resulted in a reduction to
professional development expenses due to social distancing requirements and lockdowns.

Figure 3.1: Operating result, excluding depreciation and amortisation, 2016-17 to 2021-22
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An increasingly competitive labour market poses risks and challenges to the ANAO both in terms of
availability of skilled auditors and pricing for contract-in resources to supplement the workforce during
the financial audit season. Quality auditing is equally important in both the public and private sectors
and the ANAO must position itself as a competitive employer of choice to attract professionals with
strong technical skills. Maintaining resourcing requirements and investing in an improved program of
learning and development is a critical area of focus for the ANAO in building our workforce capability.

The ANAO will continue to leverage technology to support the delivery of our work, maintain
connection with entities, and increase the flexibility of our audit approach. Future technology
investments will continue to enhance the ANAQO’s security environment, with a focus on:

e maintaining strong organisational cyber resilience;
e streamlining secure data governance, collection and classification methods;

e developing modern, consumption-based cloud computing to enable a robust, flexible and cost-
effective technology environment that can readily scale to support peak work patterns; and

¢ building high-capacity data storage and computer platforms to support enhanced data analytics,
modelling and automation.

The ANAO manages its finances and resources to remain financially sustainable into the forward
estimates and continues to implement operational efficiencies.

Expense impacts

The ANAO consistently spends most of its budget on employee-related expenses, contractors and
consultants. The ANAO engages contractors, under the supervision of senior staff at the ANAO, to
undertake audits of entities within and outside of Canberra. ANAO staff travel to interstate locations to
maintain appropriate oversight and quality assurance processes over these audits, including
attendance at entity audit committees.

Where required, the ANAO also engages contractors and consultants, such as valuers and actuaries,
to provide expertise required to complete the audit program. In 2021-22, contractors and consultants
for non-audit services were engaged to fill key resourcing gaps and provide the ANAO with the right
technical expertise to deliver its IT projects to enhance cybersecurity.

The ANAQ’s total expenses for 2021-22 were $82.477 million, excluding depreciation and
amortisation expenses (Figure 3.2).

Figure 3.2: Expenses by type, 2021-22
Contractors and consultants —

audit related,
$21.06m, 26%

Employee- Contractors and
related consultants — non-audit
expenses, — related,

$47.39m, 57% $2.57m, 3%

~— Infrastructure,

$7.17m, 9%
\ Other,
$4.29m, 5%
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Financial position
The ANAQ’s overall financial position continued to remain sound in 2021-22 (Table 3.8):

e total assets reduced as at 30 June 2022 to $72.875 million; and

e total liabilities increased to $54.577 million.

The majority of the ANAQ’s assets are financial assets, with the largest balance being appropriation
receivable ($27.683 million). The ANAQ’s appropriation receivable has increased by $4.863 million

since 2020-21, reflecting the additional departmental appropriation received from 2021-22 budget
supplementation.

The majority of the ANAQ’s liabilities are comprised of employee provisions ($13.655 million) and
payables ($5.930 million).

The ANAO continues to operate with sufficient cash reserves to fund its liabilities and commitments
as and when they fall due.

Table 3.8: Summary of financial performance, 2021-22 and 2020-21

2021-22

Variance Variance

2020-21
($7000) (%)

($°000) ($°000)

Statement of comprehensive income

Total own-source revenue 4,096 4,295 (199) (4.63)
Total revenue from government 80,977 68,583 12,394 18.07
Total expenses 86,383 78,574 7,809 9.94
Net surplus/(deficit) (1,310)@ (5,696) 4,386 (77.00)
Statement of financial position

Total assets 72,875 69,945 2,930 4.2
Total liabilities 54,577 51,292 3,285 6.4
Net assets 18,298 18,653 (355) (1.9)
Equity 18,298 18,653 (355) (1.9)

(a) The ANAO’s operating result was a surplus of $2.445 million in 2021-22, excluding depreciation and

amortisation.

Revenue impacts

Government revenue from departmental and special appropriations was $80.977 million in 2021-22
— an increase of $12.394 million from 2020-21 — as supplementary funding was received to fund

the ANAO'’s operations.

Own-source revenue in 2021-22 was $4.096 million, $0.199 million less than the own-source revenue
earned in 2020-21. In 2020-21, the ANAO received revenue following storm damage in January

2020 and a rental rebate, and similar revenue was not received in 2021-22.

Entity resource statement

The entity resource statement provides additional information about the various funding sources that
the ANAO may draw upon during the year. Appendix B details the resources available to the ANAO
during 2021-22 and sets out the ANAO’s summary of total expenses for Outcome 1.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the President of the Senate and Speaker of the House of Representatives

| have audited the financial statements of
the Australian National Audit Office.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial
statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Australian National
Audit Office as at 30 June 2022, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended, in accordance
with the Public Governance, Performance
and Accountability (Financial Reporting)
Rule 2015 and Australian Accounting
Standards — Reduced Disclosure
Requirements including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations.

Basis for opinion

The financial statements comprise:

Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022;

Statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

Statement of changes to equity for the year then
ended;

Cash flow statement for the year then ended;

Administered schedule of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

Administered schedule of assets and liabilities as at
the year then ended,

Administered reconciliation schedule as at the year
then ended;

Administered cash flow statement for the year then
ended;

Notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies; and

Statement by the Auditor-General and the Chief
Financial Officer.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

| am independent of the Australian National Audit Office in accordance with the ethical requirements
of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to my audit
of the financial statements in Australia. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements.
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Responsibilities of the Auditor-General for the financial statements

The Auditor-General is responsible for:

e the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Public
Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013,

e implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; and

e assessing the Australian National Audit Office’s ability to continue as a going concern and
whether the use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Australian National Audit Office or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objective is:

e to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

e toissue an Auditor's Report that includes my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the financial statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of my Auditor’'s
Report.

Eileen Hoggett Sydney
Independent Auditor 11 August 2022
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Australian National Audit Office
STATEMENT BY THE AUDITOR-GENERAL AND THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

In our opinion, the attached financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 comply with subsection 42(2)
of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act), and are based on properly
maintained financial records as per subsection 41(2) of the PGPA Act.

In our opinion, at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Australian National
Audit Office will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

e |

Signed.......... [UTTUTTR TP Signed...MT L [RUTUPRUPIN [EUUTOTR
Grant Hehir Alison Garth

Auditor-General Chief Finance Officer

11 August 2022 11 August 2022
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Australian National Audit Office

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2022

NET COST OF SERVICES

EXPENSES

Employee benefits

Suppliers

Depreciation and amortisation

Finance costs

Write-down and impairment of other assets
Total expenses

OWN-SOURCE INCOME

Own-source revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers
Rendering of other services
International development funding
Other revenue

Total own-source revenue

Net cost of services
REVENUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Departmental annual appropriations

Departmental special appropriations
Total Revenue from Government

Deficit on continuing operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items not subject to subsequent reclassification to net

cost of services
Changes in asset revaluation reserve
Total comprehensive loss

Notes
2.1A
4.1A
5.2A

5.2A

4.2A

4.3A

2022

Original

2022 2021 Budget
$'000 $'000 $'000
47,387 42,348 48,367
34,396 31,708 36,148
3,906 4,010 3,890
503 500 505
191 8 -
86,383 78,574 88,910
2,523 2,440 2,800
400 677 -
1,173 581 1,300
- 597 -

4,096 4,295 4,100
82,287 74,279 84,810
80,291 67,879 80,291
686 704 778
80,977 68,583 81,069
(1,310) (5,696) (3,741)
- 560 -
(1,310) (5,136) (3,741)

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Please refer to Note 1 for explanations of major variances between original budgeted and actual amounts.
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Australian National Audit Office
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

2022
Original
Notes 2022 2021 Budget
ASSETS $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1A 2,211 740 629
Trade and cother receivables 5.1B 29,408 24,675 21,465
Total financial assets 31,619 25415 22,094
Non-financial assets
Leasehold improvements? 52A 37,131 40,213 36,528
Plant and equipment 5.2A 3,323 2,877 2,677
Computer Software 5.2A 296 626 1,836
Prepayments 506 814 316
Total non-financial assets 41,256 44 530 41,357
Total assets 72,875 69,945 63,451
LIABILITIES
Payables
Suppliers 53A 3,013 3,348 2,399
Other payables 2,917 1,030 1,207
Total payables 5,930 4,378 3,606
Interest bearing liabilities
Leases 54A 34,992 34,822 34,341
Total interest bearing liabilities 34,992 34,822 34,341
Provisions
Employee provisions 2.1B 13,655 12,092 12,696
Total provisions 13,655 12,092 12,696
Total liabilities 54,577 51,292 50,643
Net assets 18,298 18,653 12,808
EQUITY
Contributed equity 17,947 16,992 17,389
Reserves 1,124 1,124 564
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) (773) 537 (5,145)
Total Equity 18,298 18,653 12,808

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

1. Right-of-use assets are included in leasehold improvements.

Please refer to Note 1 for explanations of major variances between original budgeted and actual amounts.

52

AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE




Part 3 — Report on performance

"sajou BuiAuedwoooe ayy yim uoRoun(uod Ul peas 8g piNoYS JUSWSIE)S SA0QE U |

£69°81 8624l 688/l Z669L k6Ll +OS el ZAN (6¥LQ)  1g€§ {eL2) aunr (g je se asuejeq Buiso|d
0151 GG6 GS6 0151 S56 - - - - - - SI3UMO UY)IM Suoljoesuel) [ejo]
0LG'L 556 §S6 0LG'L G656 - - - - - - vi'e 18bpng |eydeo [ejuawipedeq
slaumo Aq suopnquuod
SI2UMO UY}Im suoljoesues |
(9g17°6) (ore’t) - - - - 095 - (L¥27€)  (9g9'c) (oig'l) awodu| aAlsuayaiduiod ejoL
095 - - - - - 095 - - - - awooul aAIsuayalduwlod 18y
(969°G) (oie’y) - - - - - - (v2'e)  (969'¢)  {oLe™l) Jeaf sy} o} )dleq
awoouy anlsuayaidwon
6.2'cc €698l  vEF'9L  ZBFSL 2669k  +OS 95 veL'lL (vov'l)  ecg’o L€S Anr | je se asuejeq Buiuadp
000:$ 000.$ 000.$ 000:$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000:$ 000.$ 000.$
1202 zzoz bpng  L20T zzoz bpng  LZ0T zzoz jebpng 1202 zzoz
feuibo leuibLo [eubuo
[4der4 zeoe zeoe
fnba jejo) Anba pajynqujuo)n aAlasal uoljenjenal Jassy snjdins pauie}ay S3JON

Z2z0Z aunr g papua Jeak ayj iof
Anb3 03 sabueys jo juswalelg

921110 JpNY |euoljeN ueljensny

53

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



Australian National Audit Office
Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022
Original
2022 2021 Budget
$'000 $'000 $'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Appropriations for operating activities 85,096 77,640 81,069
Rendering of services 3,875 3,629 4100
Net GST received 3,042 3,200 -
Total cash received 92,013 84,469 85,169
Cash used
Employees 43,772 43,013 48,367
Suppliers 37,278 34,142 36,148
Receipts transferred to OPA 9,152 6,872 -
Interest payments on lease liabilities 189 184 505
Total cash used 90,391 84,211 85,020
Net cash from operating activities 1,622 258 149
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash used
Purchase of plant and equipment 1,071 234 320
Purchase of intangibles 54 41 635
Total cash used 1,125 275 955
Net cash used by investing activities (1,125) (275) (955)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Contributed equity 1,125 275 955
Total cash received 1,125 275 955
Cash used
Principal payments of leases liabilities 151 147 149
Total cash used 151 147 149
Net cash from financing activities 974 128 806
Net increase in cash held 1,471 111 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 740 629 629
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period’ 2,211 740 629

As shown in the Statement of Financial Position.
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Please refer to Note 1 for explanations of major variances between original budgeted and actual amounts.

54

AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE




Part 3 — Report on performance

Australian National Audit Office
Administered Schedule of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022
Original
2022 2021 Budget
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
INCOME
Non-taxation revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers 14,888 14,691 12,300
Total income administered on behalf of
Government' 14,888 14,691 12,300
The above schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Administered Schedule of Assets and Liabilities
as at 30 June 2022
2022
Original
2022 2021 Budget
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 247 154
Trade and other receivables 51C 7,127 8,380 6,112
Total financial assets 7127 8,627 6,266
Total assets administered on behalf of Government 7,127 8,627 6,266
LIABILITIES
Payables
GST payable 117 553 437
Total payables 117 553 437
Total liabilities administered on behalf of government 117 553 437
Net assets 7,010 8,074 5,829

The above schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

'Please refer to Note 1 for explanations of major variances between original budgeted and actual amounts.
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Australian National Audit Office
Administered Reconciliation Schedule
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021

Notes $'000 $'000

Opening assets less liabilities as at 1 July 2021 8,074 5,829

Net contribution by services

Revenue from contracts with customers 14,888 14,691
Transfers to the Australian Government

Transfers to the Official Public Account (15,952) (12,446)

Closing assets less liabilities as at 30 June 2022 7,010 8,074

Accounting Policy

Administered Cash Transfers to and from the Official Public Account

Revenue collected by the ANAO for use by the Government rather than the ANAO is administered revenue.
Collections are transferred to the Official Public Account (OPA) maintained by the Department of Finance.
Conversely, cash is drawn from the OPA to make payments under Parliamentary appropriation on behalf of
Government. These transfers to and from the OPA are adjustments to the administered cash held by the ANAO
on behalf of the Government and reported as such in the schedule of administered cash flows and in the
administered reconciliation schedule.

Administered Cash Flow Statement
for the period ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
Notes $'000 $'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Rendering of audit services 17,320 13,781
Total cash received 17,320 13,781
Cash used
GST paid 1,615 1,242
Total cash used 1,615 1,242
Net cash from operating activities 15,705 12,539
Net increase in cash held 15,705 12,539
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 247 154
Cash to the Official Public Account for:
- Appropriations 15,952 12,446
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period’ - 247

1 As shown in the Administered Schedule of Assets and Liabilities.

This schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Overview

Australian National Audit Office

Overview

Objectives of the Entity

The ANAO's purpose is to support accountability and transparency in the Australian Government sector through
independent reporting to the Parliament, and thereby contribute to improved public sector performance. The
Auditor-General is an independent officer of the Australian Parliament whose mandate and functions are set out
in the Auditor-General Act 1997 (the Act). The Auditor-General is assisted by the ANAO in delivering against this
mandate.

The ANAO conducts the following administered activities:

® Financial statements audits of Corporate Commonwealth entities, companies and their subsidiaries subject to
the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013.

The ANAQO is an Australian Government controlled and not-for-profit entity domiciled in Australia. The ANAO’s
principal place of business is 38 Sydney Avenue, Forrest in the Australian Capital Territory.

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The financial statements are required by section 42 of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability
Act 2013.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:
a) the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability (Financial Reporting) Rule 2015 (FRR); and

b) Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations — including simplified disclosures for Tier 2 Entities
under AASB 1060 issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the
reporting period.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost
convention, except for certain assets and liabilities at fair value. Except where stated, no allowance is made for
the effect of changing prices on the overall result or the financial position.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars unless otherwise specified.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The ANAO has made assumptions or estimates in the following areas that have the most significant impact on
the amounts recorded in the financial statements:

e The fair value of property, plant and equipment is assessed at market value or current replacement costs as
determined by an independent valuer with the last valuation being performed on 30 June 2021. Fair value is
subject to management assessment in between formal valuations; and

® Leave provisions involve assumptions based on the expected tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims
and payouts, future salary movements and future discount rates.

No other accounting assumptions or estimates have been identified that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.
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Australian National Audit Office

Overview (continued)

Taxation

The ANAO is exempt from all forms of taxation except Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services
Tax (GST).

Reporting of Administered Activities

The ANAO charges an audit fee for the financial statements audits of Corporate Commonwealth entities,
companies and their subsidiaries subject to the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013.
These fees are based on a scale determined by the Auditor-General under section 14 of the

Auditor-General Act 1997, calculated on the basis of a cost attribution model. Revenues from these audit fees are
paid into the Official Public Account and are not available to the ANAO. The revenue and receipts associated with
conducting these audits are treated as administered activities within the financial statements.

Accounting policy - administered financial instruments
The net fair value of the financial assets approximates their carrying amounts. The ANAO derived no interest
income from financial assets in either the current or prior year.

New Australian Accounting Standards

All new/revised/amended standards or interpretations that were issued prior to the sign-off date and are
applicable to the current reporting period were considered and did not have a material effect on the ANAO’s
financial statements.

Standard/

Interpretation Nature of changes in accounting policy

AASB 1060 General
Purpose Financial
Statements —
Simplified Disclosures
for For-Profit and Not-
for-Profit Tier 2 Entities

AASB 1060 applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July
2021 and replaces the Reduced Disclosure Requirements (RDR) framework.
The application of AASB 1060 has resulted in minor changes to the ANAO's
disclosures to align with the new requirements. The application of AASB 1060
has not impacted the recognition or measurement of financial information.

Events After the Reporting Period
Departmental

No events have occurred after the reporting date that should be brought to account or noted in the 2021-22
financial statements.

Administered
No events have occurred after the reporting date that should be brought to account or noted in the 2021-22 financial
statements.
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 1: Budget Variances

Note 1.1A: Explanations of Major Variances

The following tables provide high level commentary of major variances between budgeted information for the
ANAO published in the Prime Minister and Cabinet's 2021-22 Portfolio Budget Statements (PBS) and the 2021-22
final outcome as presented in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards for the ANAO. The original
budget is not audited. Major variances are reported on the basis of professional judgment and are not focussed

merely on numerical differences between the original budget and actual amounts.

Explanations of major variances

Variance
to
QOriginal
Budget

\Affected line items

$'000

%

|Departmental Items

Employee Benefits/IEmployees:

The ANAO received funding at the 2021-22 Budget to support
the delivery of the ANAO’s mandatory financial statements
audit program; re-build resources to enable the ANAO to
target 48 performance audits by 2024-25; meet ongoing
quality, data analysis, evidence extraction and data storage
requirements; and to introduce and deliver a staged program
of performance statements audits. The ANAO commenced
2021-22 with an average staffing level almost 20% below the
ASL cap of 363. With an increasingly competitive labour
market coupled with an attrition rate of 21.4%, these factors
have posed challenges to the ANAO for the recruitment and
retention of highly trained technical and specialised auditors.
Employees:

The budgeted cashflow amount will be reassessed in the next
budget round and aligned appropriately.

(980)

-2%

Statement of Comprehensive
Income - Employee Benefits

(4,595)

-10%

Cashflow - Employees

Supplier Expenses:

The ANAOQ is continuing to invest in IT and technology
solutions, including the development of modern, consumption-
based cloud computing to enable a robust, flexible, and cost-
effective technology environment. This has resulted in savings
as Infrastructure as a Service (laaS) applications are
transitioned to cloud-based services. COVID-19 restrictions
early in the financial year resulted in a reduction to
professional development expenses due to social distancing
requirements and lockdowns.

(1,752)

-5%

Statement of Comprehensive
Income - Suppliers

Suppliers Payable:

The need for contractual arrangements to enable the
lcompletion of mandatory financial statements audits accrued
at 30 June 2022 resulted in higher than expected accrued
eXpenses.

614

26%

Statement of Financial
Position - Suppliers

Write-down and impairment of assets:

The ANAO decommissioned its primary communication tool
Skype for Business in 2021-22 with the implementation of
Microsoft 365 providing external communications via Microsoft
Teams.

191

100%

Statement of Comprehensive
Income - Write-down and
impairment of assets
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Departmental Items (continued)

Rendering of other services:

Rendering of other services revenue is made up of parking
revenue and secondment fee revenue. The ANAO does not
budget for these revenue streams, however both are
recovered on a full-cost recovery basis.

400

100%

Statement of Comprehensive
Income - Rendering of other
services

Cash and Cash equivalents:

Increase to the cash balances as a result of timing of multiple
high-valued receipts into the bank account on 30 June 2022
this included an amount paid by a supplier into the
departmental account instead of our administered account.
The ANAO generally seeks to maintain no greater than the
budgeted cash balance at any given time.

1,582

252%

Statement of Financial
Position - Cash and Cash
lequivalents

Trade and other receivables:

Trade and other receivables is made up of appropriation
receivable and revenue receivable from audit-fee paying
clients. The ANAO maintains a balance of prior year
lappropriation sufficient to cover its liabilities.

7,943

37%

Statement of Financial
Position - Trade and other
receivables

(Other payables:

The majority of other payables relates to an intercompany
payable that was incorrectly paid on 30 June 2022 resulting in
an overstated cash balance and insufficient time to transfer
this between ANAQ bank accounts. In addition, the budget
does not account for monies payable to other Government
entities for staff leave liability transfers.

1,710

142%

Statement of Financial
Position - Other payables

Interest payments on lease liabilities:

Interest expense relates to the ANAO's leases as a result of
the implementation of the accounting standard AASB 16
Leases. The lease schedules will be reassessed and the
budgeted cashflow amount will be realigned in the next
budget.

(316)

-63%

Cashflow - Interest payments
on lease liabilities

Purchase of plant and equipment:

The ANAO invested in office fit-out improvements to support
staff accommodation requirements. In addition, to achieve
maturity level three under the Australian Cyber Security
Centre's Essential Eight Maturity Model, the ANAO has
procured new desktop and telecommunications hardware.

751

235%

Cashflow - Purchase of plant
iand equipment

Contributed equity:

The additional purchase of plant and equipment has utilised
the total current year departmental capital budget (DCB) and a
portion of the prior year unspent DCB which was not included
in the current year budget.

170

18%

Cashflow - Contributed equity

|Administered Items

Revenue from contracts with customers:

Higher than budgeted revenue relates to increased costs for
delivery of audits of corporate Commonwealth entities and
Commonwealth companies largely as a result of increased
complexity in accounting for financial statement items and the
need for additional valuation experts for complex financial

instruments and valuations/impairments.

2,588

21%

Schedule of Comprehensive
Income - Revenue from
icontracts with customers
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 2: People and Relationships
This section describes a range of employment and post-employment benefits provided to our people and our

relationships with other key people.
Note 2.1: Employee Benefits and Provisions

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Note 2.1A: Employee Benefits
Wages and salaries 35,941 33,398
Superannuation
Defined contribution plans 3,951 3,383
Defined benefit plans 2,266 2,271
Leave entitlements 4,982 2,683
Separation and redundancies 29 371
Other employee expenses 218 242
Total employee benefits 47,387 42,348

Note 2.1B: Employee Provisions

All employee provisions relate to long service leave and annual leave.

Accounting Policy

Liabilities for ‘short-term employee benefits’ (as defined in AASB 719 Employee Benefits) and termination
benefits expected within twelve months of the end of the reporting period are measured at their nominal amounts.

Leave:
The liability for employee benefits includes provision for annual leave and long service leave.

The annual leave liabilities are calculated on the basis of employees’ remuneration at the estimated salary rates
that will apply at the time the leave is taken, plus the ANAQO's employer superannuation contribution rates and
applicable on-costs, to the extent that the leave is likely to be taken during service rather than paid out on
termination.

The liability for long service leave (LSL) has been determined using the LSL shorthand model issued by the
Department of Finance (2021: LSL shorthand method). The estimate of the present value of the liability takes into
account attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and enterprise agreements, which is unchanged from
prior years.

Separation and Redundancy:

The separation and redundancy provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit payments. The ANAO
recognises a provision for termination when it has developed a detailed formal plan for terminations and has
informed those employees affected that it will carry out the terminations.

Termination Benefits:

For separation and redundancies, the nature of the benefit comprises lump sum termination payments relating to
voluntary and involuntary redundancies. For voluntary redundancies, the amount of the ANAO's obligation and
extent of funding is Nil as at 30 June 2022 (2021: $370,970). For involuntary redundancies, the amount of the
ANAO’s obligation and the extent of funding is $28,796 as at 30 June 2022 (2021: Nil).

Superannuation:

The ANAQO's staff are members of the Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (CSS), the Public Sector
Superannuation Scheme (PSS), PSS accumulation plan (PSSap) or other eligible, elected defined contribution
schemes. The CSS and PSS are defined benefit schemes for the Australian Government. The PSSap is a
defined contribution scheme.
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

The liability for defined benefits is recognised in the financial statements of the Australian Government and is
settled by the Australian Government in due course. This liability is reported in the Department of Finance’s
published financial statements.

The ANAO makes employer contributions to the employees' superannuation scheme at rates determined by an
actuary to be sufficient to meet the current cost to the Government, and accounts for the contributions as if they
were contributions to defined contribution plans. The liability for superannuation recognised as at 30 June 2022
represents outstanding contributions.

Note 2.2: Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the ANAO, directly or indirectly. The ANAO has determined the key management
personnel to be the members of the Executive Board of Management.

Members of the Executive Board of Management were as follows:

Officer Position Term as KMP —2021-22 Term as KMP — 2020-21
Grant Hehir Auditor-General Full Year Full Year
Rona Mellor Deputy Auditor-General Full Year Full Year
Jane Meade G.muP Executive Full Year Full Year
Director
Carla Jago G_roup Executive Full Year Full Year
Director
. Group Executive
Anastasios loannou Director Full Year Full Year
Bola Oyetunji Group Executive Full Year Full Year
Director
: Senior Executive Part Year from 27 April
Jacqueline Walton Director Full Year 2021
Lesa Craswell Senior Executive Full Year Part Year from 12 April

Director

2021

Geraldine Quinane

Chief Finance Officer

Part Year to 1 June 2022

Full Year

George Sotiropoulos

Group Executive
Director

Part Year from 11
QOctober 2021

Alison Garth

Chief Finance Officer
(Acting)

Part Year from 2 June
2022
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

The following tables are prepared on an accruals basis.

2022 2021
$ $
Note 2.2A: Key Management Personnel Remuneration
Short-term benefits:
Base Salary 2,840,832 2,618,885
Bonus 7,218 20,410
Other benefits and allowances 171,949 172,800
Total short-term benefits 3,019,999 2,812,095
Superannuation 452 015 422 571
Total post-employment benefits 452,015 422 571
Other long-term benefits:
Long-service leave 96,310 80,084
Total other long-term benefits 96,310 80,084
Termination benefits - 37,368
Total key management personnel remuneration 3,568,324 3,352,118

The above Key Management Personnel (KMP) remuneration includes the remuneration and other benefits of the
Auditor-General. The Auditor-General's remuneration and other benefits are set by the Remuneration Tribunal
and paid from Special Appropriation — Salary of the Auditor-General. Other KMP salaries expenses are paid from
ordinary departmental appropriation. The total number of KMP that are included in the above table for the year
ended 30 June 2022 is 11 (2021: 11).

Notes:

a. The remuneration totals (on a pro rata basis) for KMP include those staff who ceased in those roles as well
as their replacements. All appointments to the Executive Board of Management including any acting
arrangements greater than four weeks are captured in this note.

b. Members of the Executive Board of Management, apart from the Auditor-General, are employed in
accordance with the Public Service Act 1999.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 63



"dINM SB palisSE[D a19Mm JBU) S1201J0 10) 23IA13S Jo Y)Bua| ay) Jo ie1ap sapiaold g'Z 210N "dIAM B SB 921A19S Jo uoieinp ay) Aq pajoedwi ale sainby ay) jo swog ‘g

‘aALo| 921A188 BUo| Lo a|Iym pied Alejes Aue sepnjoul osje §| ‘poliad Buipodsl ay) Joj (SUUOL Z| UBL) 810WW) PaLiajep pue peniooe aAes| 821Ales BUO| Jo JUNowe sy sl sieusg wiel-Buol Joyio oyl '

‘pouad Bunodsi sy Joj ‘Jusuodwes Ayanonpoid Buipnjoul ‘suoinguiuos uonenuuesadns s,0%NY 2U) SI JUNOWE SUoHNqUIUoD uonenuuelsdng syl 't

‘(soUBMO|[E B[IYSA SIS) SeoUBMO|lE pUE SlyBURq Jaio (2

pue ‘syuow z| uiyum ajgefed —sssnuog (g

{anes| |ENuuE paseyaind pue aouemo|le sainp Jaybiy ‘aaea| 3ais o ajiym pied ‘eAes| |enuue uo ajiym pied ‘pansooe pue pied :Buipnjpour) flejeg eseg (e

40 pesudwion s sjyeusq uLBFUoUS Byl g

‘pouad Buiuodai ayy Buunp uonelsunwal paalsosl oym 4y JO Uolelsunwsal [ejo) 8y} spodal 8|qeI siy] g

‘SISBq [eNIooe Ue uo pasedaid sl ojqel sIyL L

S3JON
$2£'895°E - - 01£'96 S10°2SY 676°'LLL 812l z£8'0v8' lejol
Log'yl - - €9¢ 1'e - - L26'LL (Buyoy) Jsoyo soueUld JBIYD  YHED UOSIY
. _ _ ‘ ‘ _ R . sojnodoujog
80Z'9¥2 €8l'y 601'0% 916°L02 1031 aAnoaxg dnois oB1005)
. _ _ . ‘ _ _ . aueuInpd
9.1'691 058's 596'02 L99'zh L 18010 SoUBULY JIUD SUPEISS
Iri'esz - - 15.'L 6zl'ce 2/8'6E - 686'0L1 J10j081IQ SAINDSXT JolUsg  |[eMSeID BSaT
. _ _ . ‘ ¢ _ . uolepn
v81Lz82 Gee's $65'6€ 0e6've veeole 1010811 SARNOBXT I0IUSS suianboep
65Y'2EE - - P0E'E P¥0'Ce 90%'6¢ - 50.'€9¢ Jojpang anpnoex3y dnois  IlunipAo ejog
‘ . _ . . f ¢ f nouueo|
1E6'LPE LET'LL ¥E€Z'SH L16'sT 8ig'L 5ze'8se 1078110 2AINOeXT dnoio soIsEISeuY
BE6'EVE - - 8556 156'8Y L16'GZ - €16'65¢ 10303110 aANnoax3 dnousy ober euen
[T - - 719l 9lg'se L16'ST - SeeT'sve lojoslig eapnoex3 dnois  epes|y suer
90L'8LY - - LES'TL 96€'LL - - 121 '¥P6E |eisuan-1o)pny Aindsg  Jojlspy BUOY
Lov'ell - - #89'0l 159'08 - - 990°9.9 [BJOUSD-IONPNY  JIYSH JuelD

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

sajuemolje
Sjyauaq sy JAE3)| suonnqruoes pue sjijsusq sashuog EG_Gw aseg 3y} ucnisod aweN
R B -Buoj Jayyo  291A4es Buol uonenuuesadng 10010
lejol uojeulIa] sjyauaq
sjjauaq uuay-buoj Jayjo uswhodwea sjeuaq widj-loys
-1sod

a|ge] uchelaunuiay [auloOsIad juswabeue|p A9y Z22-120¢ -9 ¢ 210N

sjuswajels [eloueul ay} jo ped Buiulioj pue o] sajoN
82140 )pny |euoljeN ueljensny

AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

64



Part 3 — Report on performance

dINM SE palIsSE[D a1om JeY) 12010 10j a01AIas Jo yiBus| ay) Jo ie1ep sapiaoid g'Z 810N "dINM E SE 201A18S Jo uoljednp ay) Aq pajoedwi ale sainby ay) jo swog 9

‘aALd| 921A198 Buo| Uo a|Iym pied Alejes Aue sspnjoul osje §| ‘poiad Bupodal ay) Jof (SUUOW Z| UBL) 310WW) PaLISJep Uk Paniooe aALs| 821Aes BUO| Jo JUNoWE sy sl sidusq uial-Buol Joyio oyl '

‘pouad Burodsi sy 1oj ‘jusuodwoes Ayanonpoad Buipnjoul ‘suoinguiuos uolienuuesadns s,0WNY 84 SI JUNOWE SUoHNqUIUoD uonenuuelsdns syl ¢

‘(soUBMO|[E BoIUSA STS) SPOUBMO|IE PUE SlyBURq Jaio (2

puE isyjuow z| upm ajqefed —sasnuog  (q

(enes| [enuue peseyoind pue eouemolie seinp Jeybiy ‘eaes| 3oIs uo s|iym pied eAes| [enuue uo aiym pied ‘panioose pue pred :Buipnjour) Aejes eseg (e

o ﬂmm_._QEOQ S| sjljpusq WisF-uoyg syl €

‘pouad Buipodai ayy Buunp uonelsunwal paalasal oym 4y JO Uoelsunwal [ej0) 8y} spodal sjqel siy] g

"SISBq [ENIAJE UE uo paledaid siajqey syl '}

1S9JON
8LL'ZSEE 89¢°.E - 30°08 L1522y 008°Z.1 oLy oz 588819 1ejol
. R . . K _ _ . QuUEUIND
110291 GEB'E 801'0¢ ¥EL'BEL 18I0 SAUBUIS JAIYD SUIpEIRD

. . . . _ - \ (Bunav)
€166 856 9509 899/ c6ese 1000110 SANDSXT IOIUSS  [[OMSELD) BSDT
. i . , . , i . IS
L9E°6Y 610 L 96€°L 920 v 976 9¢ 10021107 DANDEXT oIS auljanboep
‘ ‘ _ ‘ ‘ . _ . sbujjjoy
L06°02Z 89€'/¢€ Lev'e 95.'vE £58'1Z 667°0L1 10108110 SAINYEXT JOIUSS Y1098

. - . . . . . . (Bunoy)
sLo‘oLe z6e 'L v¥0'ZE 7.8'6€ S8Y'TL 1ze'sLe Jopang aagnoex3 dnoss  lumako ejog
112662 - - 886'9 vLL'Ov Leg'ie G26'L oz9‘eee Jojpeauig aapnoax3 dnoigy  usiney esi
. . . » . ) R . NouUEo|
LET'61E €90'2 YET'SY LI6'ST z20'1¥eT 1opalq eAgnoexg dnole  SoISE)SEUY
Z6E'62¢€ - - GEO'S 8€0' /¥ L16'GZ - £0¥'8¥C 10303110 9ANNoax3 dnousy oBer euen
0£5'G1LE - - GZ6'L 0¥e'8e L16'ST - 8YE'EVT Jojpelg aajnoex3 dnois Spes|y suer
LLL L8y - - are'L L 6¢8'0L - - 969'66€ |eisuan-1o)pny Ainds@  Jojspy BUOY
TLS'P9L - - L6Z'61 159'08 - - $29'99 [BJOUSD-IOIPNY  JIYSH JuelD

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
saosuemolje
Siauaq ulis 2Ae3| SUORNQIRUOD e syyaung sashuog Kejes aseg a1} uonisod aweN
uopEIUNIITY B -Buoj Jayyo 291A4es Buol uonenuuesadng 10010
1ejol uojjeuIwIa | sjyauaq

sjyauaq wuay-Buoj Jayio

uswhojdwea

-1sod

sjyouaq wisyoys

a|ge] uchelaunuiay [auloOsiad juswabeuep A9y LZ2-020¢ 02 ¢ 210N

sjuswajels [eldueull ay} jo ued Buiulioj pue o] sajoN

92140 UpNY |euoneN ueljensny

65

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



20U SIU} Ul painided aJe )28 Jnoj Uey) JejeaiB sjuswebue.ie Buloe Jo uclieIsuUNWSY SAINSXT JOWAS IV 8
“UOHEISUNLUSI 10} U3 HOJSIP JOU PIP SSOUBMO|IE PUE SYjaUaq Jeinailed asauy Jo anje au) Se 8|qe} anjeledwos Jeak Joud auy Ut Seouemolie BUISNOY SEBSISAC 3U} MOUS Of JIidS USaG JoU SABY SSoUBMOJIE PUE Syuaq Jayjo ebesere 8yl 7
24nso[osIp 10U SIY) Ul PAPNIAUI U234 10U 2ABY (@Z'Z 10N 43d SB) dINM SE PALISSE Uaaq 3ABY JBL) SIS0 OVNY 2S04l "9
“anea) 801uas Buoj uo apym pled Aiejes Aue jo sbesane sy sapnjoul osie )| “poniad Buniodal auy 4oj (SLjuowW Z| Uey) S10W) paliajsp pue panioge axea) a9iaas Guoj jo junoule abessne ay) si spyauaq wial-buol Jsyio ayL G
“pouad Burpodal sy} 10) ‘Jusucdwoa Ayalpnpold Buipnjoul ‘suonnquiuoa uclenuueladns s,OYNY Sy} Jo abessae ay) s junowe sucnguiuos uollenuuesadng ay ) b
(2ouBMO||E 2PIYRA ST S) SSIUBMO|R PUB SlyaURq JRI0 Jo abelene auy) (2
pue ‘syjuow | ugis sjgeded — sasnuog sbelone sy (q
(anea| jenuue paseyaind pue sauemoje sanp Jaybiy aaea| ¥ais uo a|ym pied :aaea| |enuue uo ajiym pled ‘paniooe pue pied :Buipnjour) Aiejes aseg abesane ay} (e

*Jo pasudwica s1 S)oUSq ULB-UoYS 8yl g
“pouiad Bupodas au BULNp UONEISUNWS) PBAIS2S) UM SBARNOEXT JOIUSS JO LojeIsuNwWa) [ejo) sfeiane sy) spodal siqel syl 2
‘siseq jenooe ue uo peiedeid sisjge} sl |,

:sajoN

"8Iy YdDd 2} o sjuswalinbal
ainsopsip ay) Aq pauinbal Se Jaquiall Je)s JUBAS|2I LDES JO UoNEIaLUNWA] (210} ay) Buipodai |)s ajiym 19edwi s1y) Jo Jua)xa ay) jo BuipuelsIapun Jajin e ajgeua o] papiodal S| aA0GE 3|qe) BU) PUE J2qLUAL JjE)S Bl JO J[Eyaq Lo pied Saouemo||e pue sjjauaq Buisnoy
SE8SIBN0 BU} JO aneA sy} Aq pajoedul SI UONEISUNLUS (€10} S JSqUISLI JJEIS [ENPIAIPUI UE JO SN|eA [EJ0] SUf} SSOURISWNDIID SS8U) U] JUSLULOIIAUS AILINDSS 3} PUE UOIEPOUILIODVE Jo 1500 3} 'BUIN JO 1SO0D 8y} SE SJa)JBW 4ONS UI SUONESO] Ul Seoualayip s} Jo) sjesuadwuod

0} pauBisap s1 184} £01I0g 0IAISS JO SUOIPUOD SEASIEAQ JUBUIUIBAOD) JO S|OUA BU} UlIM SOUEPICOOE Ul PAjElauniual aIe Jejs 35y “Seasiano pajsad els Sdv 40 Jeyaq ua pied sjyausg pue souemolie BuiSnoy SEasIano apn|oul SS0UBMO]IE PUE SyBUBY WIS-HoYS JBYI0 (&

€80'¢SE  6L0°LVT - - ¥ze’s wrGee 0zZ6'¥e ¥20°001 - LeL'e8l L 000°'0€$ 0} L00'SYES
10910 209°LOE - - S0L'6 £€9°0F £980°0% - - zog'lle 3 000'02€$ ©} L00'S62$
vev'ile  wev'llz - - €1z'L §61'9€ 0zZ6'vT - [ARSES ¥8.°G0C € 000'G6Z$ 0} 100'0L2$
6vL'evz  evl'eve - - 552’6 €el'6e ev0'Le - 566'€ £ze'o8l € 000°'0£2$ O} L00'S¥ES
008'SEZ  008°6€Z - - G6S'S 08z'8z (AN A - Pl G59'9/1 6 000'G¥Z$ O} 100'0Z2$
£eg'ozt £eg'ozl - - oLb'e 98671 0/8°cl - 95z'e L1EL6 o]} $$9| 10 000°022$
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
sasUEMO|le  SdduEBMO|lE
Buisnoy Buisnoy sooueMo||e
SeasIano SBISIoNO sjyeusq anea) Buisnoy
Buipnjou| Buipnjox3g sjysuag wuaybuo] aoAleS suonRnquIuo laylo SE3SIaAQ fees  saapnoaxg
®) uoneulwla]  JdYJ0 Buo uoljenuuesadng (e) S9OUEMO|[E pPUE sasnuog aseg lojuag
uopjesaunwal |ejo) abelany  abesany  abelaay  abelaay abesany spjauaq JayjQ abeiany  abelsaay  abelaay  jJossquinN  pueg uopeisunway
uoleJaUNWaY |ejo | siuauag siyauaq EM_M_wMM_Mo__:w S)Jauaq Wid-Hoys
; uoneuwIa | wuey-Buol Jayio 4504 -

¢z-eoe

Tonelsunuiay aARNdaxg JOIUas yg ¢ 210N

SaAIINJ2X3 ICIUBS 0] Pled uonelaunuway €' 2JON

sjuswialels |e1oueul ay jo ued Bululio) pue 0] SajoN
8310 Upny |euoljeN ueljensny

AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

66



Part 3 — Report on performance

*8jou sIy) Ul paumden sle syasm INoj Uey) Jsjealb sjuswebuele Bunoe jo uoclelsunwey sAnosx3 Iouss Iy '8

‘uopeJBUNLISI

[E10]} 8] HOJSIP JOU PIp S8OUEMO|[E PUE S)jauaq Jejnoled asay) Jo anjeA ay) se 8|qe) aaleledwoo Jeak Joud siy) ul seouemolfe Buisnoy seasiano al) moys o} Jijds Usaq Jou aABY SeoUBMO|[E PUE sjyausq Jayjo ebelase ay|
“2.NSO[OSIP 210U SIY} Ul PAPN|oUl Uaq Jou ey (g7 'Z 2ION Jad Se) JNM Se palisSe|o ueaq SABY Jey) SIOI0 QYNY @S0y L

anea| salnias Buo| uo apym pled Alejes Aue jo abeiaae sy} sapnjoul os|e 1| “pouad Buipodal sy Joj (SYUOW g | UBY) Siow) paliajap pUB paniooe aAea| adialas Buo| jo junowe abelaae auy si spysuaq wial-Buo| tayiQ sy

<+ W O~

‘poliad Buiods. ey Jo) Jusuodwod Ayanenpold Buipnjoul ‘suonnguiuod uopenuueladns s,0YNY 8Y) Jo sbesaae ay) s Junowe SUoiNguUued uoenuuelasdng ay |
“(@0uBMO|[E BJ01YBA STS) SPOUBMO|E pUE S)ljaUSq Jaio jo abelare ayy (9

pue ‘syjuow z| ulypm o|qefed — sesnuog sbesene ayy (g

(aAe8| [ENUUE paseyoind pue souemo||e sainp 1aybiy ‘aaea| yoIs uo ajiym pied ‘aaes| |enuue uo a|iym pled ‘paniooe pue pied :Buipnpul) Aiejeg aseg abelaae ayy (e
}JO pesudwoo si sjeusg WielUoys 8yl g

‘pouad Buodas ay Bulnp uojelaUNWal PaAadal OYm SSARNDSXT JOJUSS JO UoEIaUNWAI [BJ0] aBkiane ay) spodal 9qeI SINL. 2

"siseq [ENIOYE UE Uo paledaud sl ejqey syl 'L

830N

§55'98T - - 55C°9 TS¥'LE 8Z6'CY €.0¢ /#8961 14 000°S62$ ©} L00'0/2$
yy'ese - - ovL'6 LET'SE 7z0'9T 1952 18¥'6.L 4 000°'0£2$ ©} L00'GHES
L08°¢€T - - 8LV Y Lig'LE SSh've 8¢8 659C/L 9 000'st2$ 0} L00'022$
8/2'091 - - (901) €9.'02 8666} 806} GLL'gLL ol s8] J0 000°02T$
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
s)yauag sjyyauaq suonngLuod SaoueMo||e SaAIN2axXy
uojjesaunwial  uopeuuId] wue)-Buol 9AE3| 99]Ales  uojjenuueladng  pue s)jsuaq sashuog Kejes lojuag
ejo} abelany abesany 19ylo abeseny Buo abesany abesany JayjQ abesany abesany aseg abesany Jo JaquinN pueg uoljejaunwiay
sjyauaq
uopelaunwiay s)jouag g .
€101 uoneuwa) sjyyauaq uual-buol Jayjo EEMMMM_E@ sjyyauaq uudj-Hoys

le-0202

sjuswajels [eldueull ay} jo ued Buiulioj pue o] sajoN
32140 )pny |euoljeN ueljensny

67

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22




(IIN 1 1202) '8Ny YdOd 8u} Jo sjuswannbai ainsopsip sy} Aq palinbal se Jsquisu Jjejs JUBAS|S) UIES JO uolelsunwsl [e1a} sy} Buipoda (jns ajiym joeduwn siy)
10 Juaxa a3 Jo Bulpuelsiapun 1ajny & ajgeus o} papodal sl aA0qge a|qe] 3y} pue JaqUISW JJe)s aU} Jo Jeyaq uo pled ssouemo|je pue sjjauaq Buisnoy Seasianc au) Jo anjea sy} Ad pajoeduwl si uoljelaunwwial [ejo} s Jaguualll Jjels [enpiapul
UE JO 8N[eA [B}0]} U} SSOUEJSWINDIID 8S8Y} U] JUSWIUCIIAUS AJUND8S 8y} PUE UOIEPOWWODDE JO }S09 8y} ‘BuiAll JO JSOD 8Y) SE SISJjEW YoNs Ul SUONEDO] Ul Seousisyip ey) 1o} sjesuadwiod o} paubissp si jey) A1j0d 801AI8S JO SUOHIPUOD

SEaSIZAQ JUSLLLIDAOD) JO BIOUAA S} UilM 20UBPIOSOE Ul pajeleunLual ale Jejs asal | seasiono pajsod Jeis Sdy Jo Jleyaq uo pled sjyeusq pue souemo|le Buisnoy Seasiano apnjoul SeoUBMO|[E PUE Sjjouaq WIS)-HoUsS Jayio (e

uopeuwIBRq ( 1)z UoNISS PUE 61.0Z—910Z uswaaiBy asudiaug OWNY 2yl Ul N0 19 SWIa) Y3 Japun pajessunwal ale jsuuosiad pied AjyBly Jayio |y

968'1G52 vzl'esl - - 290’0 069°L2 786 ¥ ZEL'69 119'G L1€'061 3 000'0/2$ - LO0O'G¥CS
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
SIOUEMO||E  S2IUBMO]|E S90UBMOfE
Buisnoy Buisnoy !
1BYI0 Buisnoy
SEeaslIano SEISI9A0 mﬁ_hﬁcwﬂ @>N¢_ Wﬂ@ﬂ._w\ro tﬂum ﬂ_ﬂ&
Buipnjouj Buipnjoxg sjjsusg w9y aJ|ABs  suopnquiuod Kiejes Ay6iH
® uopjeujwia) -bBuojiayjg Buo]  uonenuuesadng (e) S9OUEBMO[[e puE sasnuog aseg 12Y)0 jJo
uonelaunwal [ejo) abesany  abelanay abesany abelsany abelany spjauaq Jayjo abesany abelany abelany  Jaqunp pueg uolnesaunway
uolnesauNWay |ejo siyausg sluauaq :MF«WMM w_nEm S)Jauaq Wiaj-Hol
o d ol uocpeulwIa ] wua)-buoj ey ) -uwo._..._ Hauag FHous

UoneRunuoy JEIS PIEd AUBIH 79010 -VP ¢ 910N

Je1s pied AJybiH 01 pled uonelaunwsay ' 310N

sjuswialels |e1oueul ay jo ued Bululio) pue 0} SajoN
8310 upny |euoneN ueljensny

AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

68



Part 3 — Report on performance

Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 2.5: Related Party Disclosures

Related party relationships:
The ANAO is an Australian Government controlled entity. Related parties to the ANAO are:

¢ Key Management Personnel of the ANAO, their close family members, and entities controlled or jointly
controlled by either;

e Cabinet Ministers;

e Key Management Personnel for the consolidated whole of Government accounts; and

e all other Australian Government entities.

Transactions with related parties:
Significant transactions with related parties can include:

e purchases of goods and services;
® asset purchases, sales transfers or leases; and
e debts forgiven.

Giving consideration to relationships with related entities, and transactions entered into during the reporting
period by the ANAO, it has been determined that there are no related party transactions to be disclosed other
than KMP remuneration disclosed in Note 2.2
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 3: Funding

This section identifies the ANAO's funding structure.

Note 3.1: Appropriations

Note 3.1A: Annual Appropriations ('Recoverable GST exclusive")

2022 2021

$'000 $'000
Ordinary annual services 80,291 67,879
Departmental capital budget’ 955 1,510
Receipts retained under PGPA Act - Section 742 8,759 6,600
Total appropriation 90,005 75,989
Appropriation applied (current and prior years) 84,909 76,829
Variance 5,096 (840)

1. Amounts appropriated which are designated as "equity injections’ for a year (less any formal reductions) and
Departmental Capital Budgets (DCB) are recognised directly in contributed equity in that year.

Departmental and administered capital budgets are appropriated through Appropriation Acts (No.1, 3, 5). They

form part of ordinary annual services and are not separately identified in the Appropriation Acts.

2. PGPA Act - Section 74 receipts of amounts by non-corporate Commonwealth entities. This amount includes

fees charged on a cost recovery basis to conduct audits by arrangement under section 20 of the Auditor-General

Act 1997.
Note 3.1B: Unspent Annual A

ropriations ('"Recoverable GST exclusive"

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Authority
Departmental
Appropriation Act (No. 1) 2020-21 - 23,560
Appropriation Act (No. 1) 2021-22 28,656 -
Total departmental 28,656 23,560
Note 3.1C: Special Appropriations (‘Recoverable GST exclusive’)
Appropriation  Appropriation
Applied Applied
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Authority
Auditor-General Act 1997, Schedule 1, sections 3 and 7 Unlimited amount
for the remuneration of the Auditor-General 686 704
Total special appropriations applied 686 704
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 3.2: Special Accounts

The ANAO has a special account called the Services for Other Entities and Trust Moneys Special Account. This
account was established under Section 78 of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013
(PGPA Act). The establishing instrument for the ANAQ’s special account was the: Financial Management and
Accountability Determination 2012/06 on 30 May 2012.

For the year ended 30 June 2022 the account had a nil balance and there were no transactions debited or
credited to it during the current or prior reporting period.

The purpose of the Services for Other Entities and Trust Moneys Special Account is to:

a) disburse amounts held on trust or otherwise for the benefit of a person other than the Commonwealth;
disburse amounts in connection with services performed on behalf of other governments and bodies that
are not non-corporate Commonwealth entities; and

b) repay amounts where an act or law requires or permits the repayment of an amount received.

The ANAQO’s special account is due to cease on 1 Ocfober 2022. The ANAO will not seek a replacement special
account.

Note 3.3: Net Cash Appropriation Arrangements

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Total comprehensive loss - as per the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (1,310) (5,696)
Plus: depreciation/amortisation of assets funded through appropriations
(departmental capital budget funding and/ or equity injections) 1,499 1,605
Plus: depreciation right-of-use assets 2,407 2,405
Less: lease principal repayments 151 147
Net Cash Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 2,445 (1,833)

The ANAQO is required to prepare this note as:

® it receives appropriations through Departmental Capital Budget funding or equity appropriations to fund
asset purchases and replacements; and
® itis a lessee with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 7




Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 4: Financial Performance

This section analyses the financial performance of the ANAO for the period ended 30 June 2022.
Note 4.1: Expenses

2022 2021

$'000 $'000
Note 4.1A: Suppliers
Goods and services
Consultants and contractors 23,627 22,233
Information and communication technology 6,911 6,002
Travel 330 240
Professional development 871 585
Professional services 514 371
Staff related expenses 698 608
Recruitment 626 351
Property operating expenses 232 358
Other 408 523
Total goods and services supplied 34,217 31,271
Other suppliers
Low value leases 28 32
Workers compensation expenses 151 405
Total other suppliers 179 437
Total Suppliers 34,396 31,708

Accounting Policy

The ANAO has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases where the lease term is
shorter than 12 months or the leased asset is of a low value (less than $10,000). The ANAO recognises lease
payments associated with these leases evenly over the lease term.
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 4.2: Own-Source Income

Note 4.2A: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Rendering of audit services

Rendering of other services

International development funding

Other revenue

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Note 4.2B: Disaggregation of Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Major product / service line:
Service delivery

Type of customer:
Australian Government entities (related parties)
Non-government entities

Timing of transfer of goods and services:
Over time
Point in time

Accounting Policy

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the performance obligations required under

2022 2021
$'000 $000
2,523 2,440
400 677
1173 581
. 597
4,096 4,295
2022 2021
$'000 $000
4,096 4,295
4,096 4,295
3,696 3,151
400 1,144
4,096 4,295
2,523 2,440
1,573 1,855
4,096 4,295

enforceable agreements are satisfied. This can result in revenue being recognised over the term of the contract

or at a point in time, subject to the specific terms and conditions of the agreement.

Note 4.3: Revenue from Government

Note 4.3A: Accounting Policy

Amounts appropriated for departmental operating activities for the year (adjusted for any formal additions or
reductions and less Departmental Capital Budgets) are recognised as Revenue from Government when the

ANAO gains control of the appropriation.

Appropriations receivable are recognised at their nominal amounts.
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 5: Financial Position
This section analyses the ANAO's assets used to conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a

result. Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationship section.
Note 5.1: Financial Assets

Note 5.1A: Cash and Cash equivalents

Accounting Policy

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits in bank
accounts.

Note 5.1B: Trade and Other Receivables

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Trade receivables 875 831
Contract assets from contracts with customers 385 764
GST receivable from the Australian Taxation Office 465 260
Appropriation receivable 27,683 22,820
Total trade and other receivables 29,408 24,675
2022 2021
$'000 $'000

Note 5.1C: Trade and Other Receivables - Administered
Trade receivables 2,521 6,073
Contract assets from contracts with customers 4,606 2,307
Total trade and other receivables 7,127 8,380

Credit terms for goods and services were within 30 days (2021: 30 days).

Accounting Policy
Financial asselts:

Financial assets are comprised of trade receivables and other receivables that are held for the purpose of
collecting the contractual cash flows and are measured at amortised cost.

Financial Liabilities:
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
Impairment:

The ANAO recognises a loss allowance and impairment expense at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

As the ANAO’s receivables relate to outstanding debts with other Commonwealth entitles, no impairment has
been recognised for 2021-22 (2020-21: Nil).

Contract assets from contracts with customers:

Contract assets from contracts with customers relate to costs incurred on audit engagements less interim billings.
Contract assets from contracts with customers are valued at an amount that is expected to be recovered.
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Australian National Audit Office
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Note 5.2; Non-Financial Assets

Note 5.2A Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of property, plant and equipment
and intangibles for 2022

Intangibles -
Leasehold Plant & Computer
Improvements  equipment software Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
As at 1 July 2021
Gross book value 43,831 2,945 3,864 50,640
Accumulated depreciation, amortisation and
impairment (3,618) (68) (3,238) (6,924)
Total as at 1 July 2021 40,213 2,877 626 43,716
Additions - by purchase or internally developed - 1,071 54 1,125
Depreciation and amortisation expense (681) (616) (202) (1,499)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (2,407) - - (2,407)
Write down and impairment of assets - 9) (182) (191)
Adjustments on right-of-use assets 6 - - 6
Total as at 30 June 2022 37,131 3,323 296 40,750
Total as at 30 June 2022 represented by:
Gross book value 43,837 4,000 3,412 51,249
Accumulated depreciation, amortisation and
impairment (6,706) (677) (3,118) (10,499)
Total 37,131 3,323 296 40,750
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets 28,567 - - 28,567

Accounting Policy - Property, plant and equipment

Asset recognition:

Purchases of non-financial assets are initially recognised at cost in the Statement of Financial Position, except for
purchases costing less than $4,000, which are expensed in the year of acquisition (other than where they form part
of a group of similar items which are significant in total).

Lease Right of Use (ROU) Assets:

Leased ROU assets are capitalised at the commencement date of the lease and comprise the initial lease liability
amount, initial direct costs incurred when entering into the lease less any lease incentives received. These assets
are accounted for by Commonwealth lessees as separate asset classes to corresponding assets owned outright
but included in the same column as where the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.

Revaluations of non-financial and intangible assets:

Following initial recognition at cost, leasehold improvements and plant and equipment (excluding ROU assets)
are carried at fair value (or an amount not materially different from fair value). Carrying amounts are reviewed
every year to determine if an independent valuation is required. Valuations are conducted with sufficient
frequency to ensure that the carrying amounts of assets did not differ materially from the assets’ fair values as at
the reporting date. The regularity of independent valuations depends upon the volatility of movements in market
values for the relevant assets.

Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is credited to equity under the
heading of asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that it reversed a previous revaluation decrement of the
same asset class that was previously recognised in the surplus/deficit. Revaluation decrements for a class of assets
are recognised directly in the surplus/deficit except to the extent that they reversed a previous revaluation increment
for that class.

Following initial recognition ROU assets continue to be carried at cost and are not subject to revaluation.
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Accounting Policy (continued)

Fair Value:

With the exception of ROU assets which continue to be recognised at cost, all other property, plant and equipment
is measured at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position. When estimating fair value, market prices (with
adjustment) were used, where available. Where market prices were not available, current replacement cost was
used (i.e. level 3). Level 3 measurements use inputs to estimate fair value where there are no observable market
prices for the assets being valued.

Contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets:

Current contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant, and equipment consists of $415,600
(2021: Nil). This is a single contract for the purchase of information technology equipment (mobile phones) to
support the implementation of multifactor authentication as required hy Australian Cyber Security Centre's
essential eight.

The future economic benefits of the ANAQO's plant and equipment and leasehold improvements are not primarily
dependent on their ability to generate cash flows. The ANAO has not disclosed quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs for the level 3 measurements in these classes.

Impairment:
All assets were assessed for impairment at 30 June 2022, and no material impairment was identified.

Where indications of impairment exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment
made if the asset’s recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.

Derecognition:
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal.

Depreciation:

Depreciable plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated residual values over their estimated useful
lives to the ANAO, using in all cases, the straight-line method of depreciation. Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the improvement or the lease term. Depreciation rates
(useful lives), residual values and methods are reviewed at each reporting date. Depreciation rates applying to
each class of depreciable asset are based on the following useful lives:

2022 2021
Leasehold improvements Lease term Lease term
Right-of-use assets Lease term Lease term
IT Assets 2 to 11 years 2to 11 years
Office equipment 5 to 30 years 5 to 30 years

Intangibles

The ANAO's intangibles comprise off-the-shelf software and associated enhancement costs. These assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its anticipated useful life. The useful lives of the ANAO's software
are 3 to 5 years (2021: 3 to 5 years).

Impairment:

All intangible assets were assessed for impairment at 30 June 2022. Where indications of impairment exist,
intangibles are measured at their recoverable amount, if that amount is lower than the assets current carrying
amount.
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Note 5.3: Liabilities

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Note 5.3A: Suppliers
Trade creditors and accruals 3,013 3,348
Total supplier payables 3,013 3,348

Accounting Policy

Supplier and other payables are recognised at amortised cost. Liabilities are recognised to the extent that the
goods or services have been received (and irrespective of having been invoiced). Supplier payables are settled
within 20 days.

Note 5.4: Interest Bearing Liabilities

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Note 5.4A: Leases
Lease liabilities
Leasehold improvements 34,992 34,822
Total leases 34,992 34,822
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Within 1 year 1,974 338
Between 1 to 5 years 14,381 10,386
More than 5 years 22,139 28,103
Total leases 38,494 38,827

Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 30 June 2022 was $151,000 (2021: $147,000)

The ANAOQ in its capacity as lessee, entered into a lease contract for a period of 15 years (with one option of 5
years) commencing from 1 January 2020 in relation to 38 Sydney Avenue office premises. The rent is increased
on each anniversary of the commencement date including any options by 3.5%, except that on the
commencement of each option term the rent will be reviewed to market.

The above lease disclosures should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 4.1A and 5.2.

Accounting Policy

For all new contracts entered into, the ANAO considers whether the contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is
defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Once it has been determined that a contract is, or contains a lease, the lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments unpaid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determinable, or the department’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification to the lease. When the lease liability is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset or profit and loss depending on the nature of the
reassessment or modification.
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Note 6: Other Information

Note 6.1: Current/Non-Current Distinction for Assets and Liabilities

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Assets expected to be recovered in:
No more than 12 months
Cash and cash equivalents 2,211 740
Trade and other receivables 29,408 24 675
Prepayments 505 814
Total no more than 12 months 32,124 26,229
More than 12 months
Leasehold improvements 37,13 40,213
Plant and equipment 3,323 2,877
Computer Software 296 626
Prepayments 1 -
Total more than 12 months 40,751 43,716
Total assets’ 72,875 69,945
Liabilities expected to be settled in:
No more than 12 months
Suppliers 3,013 3,348
Other payables 2,917 1,030
Leases 151 150
Employee provisions 3,910 3,357
Total no more than 12 months 9,991 7,885
More than 12 months
Leases 34,841 34,672
Employee provisions 9,745 8,735
Total more than 12 menths 44,586 43,407
Total liabilities 54,577 51,292
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Assets expected to be recovered in:
No more than 12 months
Cash and cash equivalents - 247
Trade and other receivables 7,127 8,380
Total no more than 12 months 7,127 8,627
Total assets 7,127 8,627
Liabilities expected to be settled in:
GST payable 117 553
Total no more than 12 months 117 563
Total liabilities 117 553

1. Total Assets includes GST payable.
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Note 6.2: Remuneration of Auditors

2022 2021
$ $

Fees for services provided
Financial statements audit services 90,000 90,000
Performance audit services' 100,000 -
Performance statements audit services 55,188 55,188
Total 245,188 145,188

Ms. Eileen Hoggett was appointed as Independent Auditor for 5 years from 1 March 2019 under clause 1 of
Schedule 2 to the Audifor-General Act 1997. Ms. Hoggett audits the annual performance statements of the ANAO
under contract. Ms. Hoggett is appointed in a personal capacity and performs no other services for the ANAO.

1. Performance audit fees are recognised in the financial year where the majority of the audit is performed,
timings may not always align with the year that the audit is tabled.
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The Auditor-General is responsible for both administering the Auditor-General Act 1997 (the Act) and
managing the ANAO within the arrangements of the broader Australian Public Service. Part 6 of the
Act establishes the ANAO under the Public Service Act 1999 and requires the organisation to operate
as an entity under the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act).

In line with the requirements and expectations of the PGPA Act, the Auditor-General manages the
ANAO in achieving its purpose through the application of good corporate governance. Good
governance underpins the ANAQO’s approach to delivering quality outcomes and effective
decision-making.

The ANAO achieves good governance through a robust governance framework, directed by a clear
governance structure, managed through strong governance practices, and delivered as part of the
strategic planning framework. The ANAO realises strategic planning outcomes through a mature
approach to risk management and an integrated approach to organisational capability. The ANAO’s
strong commitment to strategic planning and the ongoing development of capability ensures that we can
continue to achieve our purpose. Our investments in capability support the ANAO to uphold public
sector principles and values, while building sufficient flexibility and expertise to meet future needs.

Part 4 outlines the ANAQO’s approach and continued commitment to corporate governance, strategic
planning, capability investment and risk management.

Governance

The ANAQO’s governance framework supports the organisation to uphold public sector principles and
values, including legislative requirements for accountability, leadership, transparency, integrity,
efficiency and risk management. The framework ensures that our operations remain compliant with
relevant laws, standards and directions.

The ANAOQO's clearly defined governance structure and practices support the Auditor-General in the
effective oversight of the organisation, management of its resources and the delivery of quality audit
products. The ANAQO’s corporate governance framework, processes and related organisational
capability enable us to achieve our purpose, and meet public and community expectations of probity,
accountability and transparency.

Governance structure

The ANAQO’s main governance bodies, as at 30 June 2022, are the Executive Board of Management,
six subcommittees, four operational committees, and the independent Audit Committee.

The ANAQ’s governance structure and strategic planning framework are outlined in Figure 4.1.

Executive Board of Management
The Executive Board of Management assists the Auditor-General to meet his statutory responsibilities

and provides leadership to the ANAO in pursuing its strategic direction and delivering against the
commitments and initiatives outlined in the corporate plan.
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The Executive Board of Management is responsible for supporting the ANAQ’s strategic direction,
overseeing business, identifying strategic and operational risks, managing the ANAQO’s budget and
workforce, and delivering against the commitments and initiatives outlined in annual business plans.
The executive board meets monthly, and terms of reference are reviewed annually.

Table 4.1 shows the members of the Executive Board of Management as at 30 June 2022.

Table 4.1: Membership of the Executive Board of Management, at 30 June 2022

|
Board member Position \
Mr Grant Hehir Auditor-General, Chair
Ms Rona Mellor PSM | Deputy Auditor-General
Mr Bola Oyetunji Group Executive Director, Assurance Audit Services Group
Ms Carla Jago Group Executive Director — Practice Management, Performance Audit

Services Group

Dr Anastasios Group Executive Director — Defence and Finance Performance,
loannou Performance Audit Services Group
Mr George Group Executive Director, Performance Statements Audit Services Group
Sotiropoulos
Ms Jane Meade Group Executive Director, Professional Services and Relationships Group
Ms Jacqueline Senior Executive Director, Corporate Management Group
Walton
Ms Lesa Craswell Senior Executive Director, Systems Assurance and Data Analytics Group
Ms Alison Garth Acting Chief Finance Officer, Corporate Management Group

Staff are informed about key decisions of the Executive Board of Management through
communications from the Auditor-General, which are published on the ANAO intranet after each
meeting. Information on the remuneration of key management personnel is available at Note 2.2 of
the 2021-22 financial statements.

Subcommittees

To support the Executive Board of Management and ensure organisational accountability and
transparency, the ANAO has established a number of subcommittees. These committees provide
oversight to specific areas of strategic operations and are responsible for identifying and managing
risk on an ongoing basis. Subcommittees report to the executive board through summary reports and
meeting minutes, with their terms of reference reviewed annually.

The business of the ANAO is governed through the following six subcommittees:
e People and Change Committee — provides strategic advice to the Executive Board of

Management on people and capability development and on managing change in the ANAO.

e Quality Committee — provides assurance and assistance to the Executive Board of
Management on the ANAQO’s quality framework and the strategic and operational risks associated
with quality.

¢ Finance Committee — advises the Executive Board of Management on financial matters, and
monitors the strategic and operational risks associated with resources.

e Security Committee — provides assurance and assistance to the Executive Board of
Management on the ANAQ’s security framework and monitors associated strategic and
operational risks.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 81



e Work Health and Safety Committee — monitors and reviews the ANAO’s work health and safety
(WHS) policies and practices and advises the Executive Board of Management on WHS matters.

¢ Information Technology Strategic Committee — provides advice to the Executive Board of
Management on information technology and business system strategic directions and investments.

Operational committees

There are four ANAO operational committees:

e Remuneration Committee — advises the Auditor-General on remuneration and performance
payments.

¢ Qualifications and Technical Advisory Committee — provides a forum for audit engagement
executives to consult on difficult or contentious matters and, where necessary, resolve differences
of opinion on audit-related matters. ANAO policy identifies the matters that must be referred to the
committee, and the committee meets as required to provide advice to the Auditor-General.

e Weekly Operational Committee — oversees the operational activities of the ANAO, with a
particular emphasis on staffing, performance and external relations. The committee also
considers the status of the audit program in service group reporting and any other matters of
strategic importance to the ANAO.

e Ways of Working Steering Committee® — supports the implementation of the ANAO’s
accommodation and IT transformation projects and provides advice to the Executive Board of
Management.

8 The Ways of Working Steering Committee meets as needed, based on transformation project requirements.
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Figure 4.1: ANAO governance structure and strategic planning framework, at 30 June 2022
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides independent assurance and advice to the Auditor-General, including
reviewing the appropriateness of the ANAQ’s financial and performance reporting, systems of risk
oversight and management, and systems of internal control.

The ANAQO’s Audit Committee charter sets out the committee’s role, authority, membership and
functions, and its procedural, reporting and administrative arrangements. The charter is available on
the Governance page on the ANAO website (anao.gov.au/about/governance).

The Audit Committee met five times during 2021-22. Details of the Audit Committee’s membership in
2021-22, including remuneration for the period, meeting attendance, and experience and
qualifications of members, are provided in Table 4.2.

Table 4.2: Membership of the ANAO Audit Committee for 2021-22

Member Experience and qualifications No. of Remuneration for
meetings 2021-22 ($)@
attended

'(Vrl:el:/ln?)'g? i:}oarf‘: since ¢ Independent chair and member 5 17,500

; ir si X

October 2020) of several Commonwealth audit

committees and non-executive
director

e Former EY advisory partner and
worked with PwC in the areas of
audit, consultancy and risk

e Senior executive roles in various
sectors, including responsibility
for corporate planning

e Fellow of Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand,
Fellow of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors, and
member of the Institute of
Internal Auditors — Australia

o Master of Business
Administration and Bachelor of
Economics
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Member Experience and qualifications No. of Remuneration for
meetings 2021-22 ($)@
attended

I(Vlr Seaé\ Van Gotr)p e Former managing partner of EY’s 1 2,500

ceased as member . . )

on 31 August 2021) audit and advisory business for

10 years

e 25 years’ experience working in a
diverse range of industries,
including telecommunications
and IT, financial services,
insurance, retail, mining and
chemicals, and the public sector
— based in Asia and London for
four years

e Board member of National
Institute of Dramatic Arts for six
years

e Master of Business
Administration and Bachelor of
Economics

Ms Kerri Hartland
(member since
October 2020)

e Chair of the National Youth S 12,500
Science Forum

e Advisory Board Chair and
Principal Advisor of Proximity

e Former Commonwealth
departmental secretary and
public servant of 30 years
standing across 10 departments
and agencies

e Chair of Commonwealth Office of
the Special Investigator's Audit
and Risk Committee

e Expertise in risk, change
management, diversity and
leadership

e Graduate of Australian Institute
of Company Directors, member
of Chief Executive Women and
National Security College
Futures Council, board member
of Canberra Hospital Foundation
and Canberra Girls Grammar
School

e Master of Legal Studies,
Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of
Economics
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Member Experience and qualifications No. of Remuneration for

meetings 2021-22 ($)@
attended

I(\/Ir Brl;ce Meehan e Former PwC and EY partner with 4 10,000

member since .

September 2021) over.40 years (?f professional
services experience

e Extensive offshore experience in
Europe, the United States and
the Asia-Pacific region

e Member of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand

e Bachelor of Commerce and
Graduate Diploma in Information
Technology

(@) Excludes GST.

Strategic planning framework

Strategic planning drives the ANAQO’s activities — enabling us to adjust our activities and resourcing
to align with emerging priorities — and supports us in achieving our purpose. The ANAO identifies its
organisational priorities and performance measures in its corporate plan, and reports on its
performance in the annual performance statements within the annual report. The Executive Board of
Management tracks all strategic projects, including milestones and dependencies, and ensures that
the business of the ANAO’s governance committees is aligned with the ANAQO’s strategic priorities.

In addition, the Auditor-General publishes an annual audit work program. The work program forms
part of the strategic planning framework, designed to reflect the organisation’s audit strategy and
inform the Parliament, government entities and the public of the planned audit coverage for the
Australian Government sector.

Key elements of the ANAQ’s strategic planning framework for 2021-22 are presented in Figure 4.1.
Further details on the ANAO corporate plan and annual audit work program are provided below.

Corporate plan

The corporate plan is the ANAO’s primary planning document and sets out how we will achieve our
purpose over a four-year period. The corporate plan is complemented by the annual audit work
program, which reflects the ANAO’s audit strategy and deliverables for the coming financial year.

The corporate plan articulates the purpose of the ANAO and the environment within which the ANAO
expects to operate. It outlines our intended capability investments, including the plans and strategies
we will implement to achieve our purpose. The plan also details the planned activities and
performance of the ANAO, including the measures we use to assess our performance. It also
provides an overview of the ANAQO’s risk oversight and management systems.
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Annual audit work program

The annual audit work program sets out the ANAQO’s audit strategy and deliverables for the coming
financial year. It informs the Parliament, the public and government sector entities of the planned
coverage of the Australian Government sector. The program presents information on the financial
statements audits, performance audits, performance statements audits and other assurance
engagements for each portfolio. It also includes information on audits in progress and audits recently
tabled.

A whole-of-organisation planning process brings together the knowledge and insights gained across
all ANAO audit activity to identify priority areas of audit coverage. In determining the 2022-23
program, the ANAO considered prior-year audit and other review findings and what these indicate
about the portfolio risks and areas for improvement, as well as emerging risks from new investments,
reforms or operating environment changes.

The ANAO provided a draft of the annual audit work program to the Parliament for consultation
through the Joint Committee of Public Accounts and Audit (JCPAA), consistent with the Auditor-
General’s requirement to have regard to the audit priorities of the Parliament. The JCPAA identified
19 audit priority topics during consultation for the Annual Audit Work Program 2022-23, including
suggesting one new topic for the program. Of these 19 priority topics 15 were included, in whole or in
part, and four topics had already commenced and were therefore not included in the final program.
Feedback was also sought from accountable authorities of Australian Government entities affected by
the proposed audit coverage, members of the public, the Commonwealth Ombudsman, the Inspector-
General of Taxation, the Inspector-General of Intelligence and Security, and the Australian
Information Commissioner and Privacy Commissioner.

The ANAO also undertakes a series of audits on the implementation of agreed parliamentary
committee and ANAO recommendations to provide assurance that actions to improve public
administration are implemented as intended and agreed, and within reasonable timeframes. The
ANAO has so far tabled four audits in this series, and included in the 2022—-23 work program a further
potential cross-entity audit of implementation of recommendations.

On 1 July 2022, an Administrative Arrangements Order took effect and involved a number of
machinery-of-government changes, including:

e the creation of new departments;

e the renaming of existing departments; and

e the reallocation of responsibilities and functions between both new and existing portfolios.

The annual audit work program has been updated to reflect these changes. A further review of topics

and portfolio information will occur after the October 2022 Budget process to capture any further
changes, including any subsequent administrative arrangements orders.

Organisational capability

The ongoing development of the ANAQO’s capability ensures that we are able to continue to achieve
our purpose. Investments in capability support the ANAO to uphold public sector principles and
values, while building sufficient flexibility and expertise to meet future needs.

The ANAQO’s Corporate Plan 2021-22 outlined capability investments we would make to ensure that
we continue to deliver on our purpose. The areas of investment were:

e workforce — including people, productivity and technology;
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e performance statements audit;
e ethics and audit; and

e quality.

The ANAO is committed to building capability that is forward focused, supporting the work of our
auditors, data analysts and corporate services professionals now and into the future. The information
below reports on the implementation and progress of these capability investments.

Towards 2025

Following the announcement of the Federal Budget 2021-22, the ANAO developed a strategic
organisational plan — Towards 2025. The plan captured key investments we intended to make in our
people, productivity and technology, so that we may continue to effectively deliver quality audit
services to the Parliament.

The plan recognised that the ANAO must continue to invest in the specialist and technical capability
of our workforce to ensure we are suitably skilled to produce quality audit products — and have strong
enabling functions to support the delivery of these products.

Through the design of the plan, the ANAO committed to:

e building the capability of the ANAO by attracting, recruiting, onboarding and developing technical
and specialist people — increasing our capacity to deliver audit products, while continuously
improving quality;

e growing the existing capability within the ANAO to address current and future resourcing
challenges — strengthening the ANAQO’s ability to deliver quality audit products, and supporting
the working experience of our people; and

e supporting the work of the ANAO by strategically improving and enhancing business practices,
technology and infrastructure — enabling our people to work efficiently and effectively.

The plan was designed to link to the ANAO Corporate Plan 2021-22 and was a primary focus of the
development of group business plans.

Workforce

The ANAO is a professional organisation of curious and critical thinkers, with strong analytical
capabilities and who act with the highest integrity. We are committed to investing in our people and
supporting their development as leading audit and public service professionals.

Over recent years, the ANAO has implemented change programs to strengthen the capability of our
workforce. We are starting to realise the benefits of our investments in an integrated and collaborative
approach to audit, as well as productivity gains associated with flexible ways of working and the use
of modern, secure and robust technology.

To support audit now and into the future, the ANAO continues to identify strategic opportunities to
explore new ways of working, develop existing areas of capability and embed efficiencies in our
organisational design and processes.

Details of the ANAO workforce, including workforce composition, coverage of employment
instruments, diversity statistics and salary information, can be found at Appendix C. The ANAQO’s staff
engagement and performance strategies are outlined in Appendix D.
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Workforce plan

The ANAO must continue to invest in the core, technical and leadership capability of our workforce to
ensure we are suitably skilled to deliver on our purpose.

In 2021-22, the ANAO developed a new workforce plan to ensure our sustained position to attract,
develop and retain a high-performing workforce. The workforce plan aligns with our strategic
organisational plan, Towards 2025, which articulates our continued investment in strategic capability
opportunities across people, productivity and technology to effectively deliver quality audit services to
the Parliament. The workforce plan was designed to be implemented over four years.

Altract

As part of the 2021-22 Budget, the government announced additional funding to the ANAO to support
the delivery of all our audit products. Our workforce plan articulates our commitment to identifying
opportunities to uplift our labour market position as an employer of choice to attract high-performing
people to deliver these products to the Parliament.

In 2021-22, the ANAO undertook a comprehensive workforce analysis to identify our critical job roles.
Work commenced to develop proactive recruitment marketing strategies across each of these critical
job roles, underpinned by workforce data and labour market trends.

The ANAO graduate program is a core pipeline of our talent. We continued to invest in this program,
expanding the intake to 40 graduates in 2022 and sustaining this capacity into 2023. The program
offers graduates a highly learner-centred and technology-enabled employee experience through
blended learning opportunities such as online and face-to-face training, varied workplace rotations,
graduate networks and mentoring.

Develop

The ANAO recognises that learning and development is fundamental to building the core, technical
and leadership capability to deliver on our purpose. We uphold the highest industry standards to
prepare our workforce for the changing landscape and demands in the future of the audit profession.

Our workforce plan identified that auditors of the future must be:

e curious professionals — prepared to apply critical and creative thinking;

o digitally proficient analysts — confident in the use of technology to collect and analyse data;

e strong communicators — able to analyse complex problems and clearly communicate findings;
e adaptable professionals — capable of working in different settings and across teams;

e lifelong learners — seeking out opportunities to continuously learn and grow; and

¢ leading public servants — demonstrating behaviours that exemplify the ANAQO’s values, and the

Australian Public Service Values and Code of Conduct.

Over the next four years, our workforce plan will drive how we build the ANAO’s capability for the
audit industry of the future. In 2021-22, we commenced this work with the development of the ANAO
learning and development framework. The delivery of this framework will be enabled through the
launch of our ANAO Academy, which will deliver learning to our people in a user-centred, technology-
enabled and purposeful way.
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Retain

The ANAO acknowledges that labour market demand and high rates of employee mobility are a key
workforce risk. As such, a fundamental component of our workforce plan is to retain our high-
performing workforce and support their careers as leading public service professionals at the ANAO.

Employees at the ANAO have access to a range of benefits, including varied and challenging project
opportunities, access to training and study assistance, work-life balance underpinned by formal and
informal flexible work arrangements, reward and recognition programs, and social activities. The
ANAO also cultivates diversity, inclusion and belonging in our work environment, supported by our
Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and Reconciliation Action Plan.

Productivity and technology

The ANAO maintains an ongoing focus on building productivity as a key capability. We recognise that
improved productivity is critical to demonstrating the efficient use of taxpayer funds in the delivery of
our work to the Parliament and the public.

In 2021-22, we achieved productivity improvements through a focus on using resources strategically,
streamlining our business practices and modernising our ways of working. Productivity improvements
are designed to become part of our business-as-usual processes, enabling continued improvement
and enhanced capability.

We have achieved productivity improvements though our pandemic response, our data analytics
strategy, new audit tools and systems, and our information technology strategy.

Pandemic response

The ANAQ’s ongoing COVID-19 response has been guided by the ANAO COVID-Safe Plan. The plan
outlines how we will provide a safe and healthy working environment during the pandemic and
includes guidance on risk management and responding to confirmed cases of COVID-19 at the
ANAOQO’s premises.

All staff were requested to work from home during the COVID-19 lockdown implemented by the ACT
Government from 12 August 2021 to 14 October 2021. A three-stage transition plan was implemented
to support a gradual return to office-based work in line with the easing of public health restrictions.
Throughout the course of the COVID-19 pandemic, the ANAO engaged with entities to enable remote
access to entity systems. For example, the Department of Defence has provided access from ANAO
premises to its systems in a secure way.

From March 2022, the office has been the primary place of work for all staff. Many staff continue to
take advantage of our flexible working arrangements policy, which was updated in 2021 to leverage
the benefits of flexible working that emerged through practices adopted during the pandemic.

Data analytics

The ANAO has a specialist data analytics team that works with audit teams to assist with the use of
data to produce more efficient and effective audit work. The team also supports corporate functions
such as data-driven decision-making and streamlining the analysis of internal performance reporting.

In prior audit cycles, the ANAO developed several standardised data analytics solutions to provide a
standard, data-driven approach to some of the common areas of audit testing.
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In 2021-22, these solutions have become the default approach in these areas of testing, unless the
circumstances of an audit required a different approach.

The ANAO is pursuing investments in technology, capability and process improvements to further
realise the benefits of data analytics for audits, including by:

e developing a platform to simplify the process by which audit teams can access data analytics
solutions, and by which entities can transfer data for audit to the ANAO in a streamlined way;

e improving the data analytics capability of audit teams and their technical confidence in using
analytic tools, through investments in learning and development; and

e establishing a ‘centre of excellence’ to lead the delivery of change initiatives in this space.

In an environment of ever-increasing challenges, the ANAO will continue to build organisational
capability in data analytics, and leverage technologies and information resources to increase quality
and productivity in our audit work.

New audit tools and systems

The ANAQ’s Corporate Management Group works with the ANAQ’s business groups to provide
strategic guidance and project management expertise for the selection, delivery and modernisation of
business applications in the ANAO. This capability promotes continuous improvement through change
management in business and technology to enable improved delivery of audit services.

In 2021-22, the transition project to TechnologyOne’s Ci Anywhere enterprise software completed the
transition of existing modules from TechnologyOne’s Ci software. By transitioning to Ci Anywhere, the
ANAO gained access to the latest developments and functionality offered by TechnologyOne. This
included the re-implementation of the contracts module for in-system approvals, and established
readiness for e-invoicing capability to comply with the whole-of-government e-invoicing policy.

Aurion Timekeeper is ANAO's enterprise time recording system. Transition to Timekeeper was
finalised in November 2020. In 2021-22, further functionality was developed to provide additional time
recording adjustments and expand the ruleset for supplementary resources.

In 2022-23, the ANAO will continue to invest in key tools to support auditors to undertake efficient
and effective audit management. The ANAO is preparing to enhance learning and development tools
to deliver an integrated approach to building capability across the organisation, to improve
performance of the workforce and support staff in their development as leading audit and public
service professionals. This will be delivered through the ANAO learning and development framework.

Information technology strategy

The ANAO has a focus on building and delivering a technology environment that is efficient, cost-
effective, secure, scalable and flexible. Adapting to a changing digital environment and adjusting
technology to support new auditing challenges is integral to success — generating deep insights that
improve the quality of our work, maintaining our security and reputation, and helping us deliver an
increasing number of audits in a streamlined manner.

During 2021-22, the ANAO implemented Microsoft 365, including Microsoft Teams, OneDrive,
Planner and Power BlI, alongside other applications within the Microsoft 365 suite. The Microsoft 365
project resulted in the decommissioning of Skype for Business. In addition, the project involved
establishing an Azure tenancy for information classified as Protected to help meet the ANAO’s data
analytics requirements.
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Key benefits of the Microsoft 365 project include improved productivity and efficiency, security, and
cost savings. In addition to the use of Microsoft Teams as a ‘one-stop shop’ for team communication,
document collaboration and video meetings, the ANAO has realised savings through the reduction in
infrastructure expenses, and from the decommissioning of obsolete IT services and software.

The ANAO has also been able to improve its implementation of the Essential Eight Maturity Model,
with many of these improvements being driven through an ongoing security improvement project.
Improvements include a more resilient infrastructure and backups, logging to a service for security
information and event management, and enabling secure use of mobile devices.

In planning for the future, the ANAO has completed a detailed business case and begun
implementation of the next stage of its information and communications technology strategy. The
business case outlines the proposed approach for delivering six key initiatives identified as the future-
state architecture that will position the ANAO with key platform capabilities to support modern auditing
challenges. These initiatives are infrastructure as a service in the cloud, enhanced network design,
data storage and processing, a DevOps pipeline, a data exchange portal, and self-service analytics.

Performance statements audit

The ANAO is continuing to invest in an ongoing program of audits of the annual performance
statements of Commonwealth entities. The purpose of these audits is to drive improvement in the
quality of entities’ performance reporting against the requirements of the Commonwealth performance
framework. High-quality performance information will increase entities’ accountability to the
Parliament and the public and assist entities to develop a more systematic approach to performance
monitoring and evaluation.

In 2019, the Minister for Finance requested that the ANAO conduct a pilot program of audits of annual
performance statements of Commonwealth entities subject to the Public Governance, Performance
and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act), in consultation with the Joint Committee of Public Accounts
and Audit. The Auditor-General accepted the request, made under section 40 of the PGPA Act, as the
mechanism by which these audits can be carried out under section 15 of the Auditor-General Act
1997. The pilot examined the 2019-20 performance statements of three entities: the Department of
Veterans’ Affairs (DVA), the Attorney-General’s Department (AGD) and the Department of Social
Services (DSS). The pilot was continued in 2020-21, with the performance statements of the same
three Commonwealth entities being audited.

The performance statements pilot program demonstrated that accessible and understandable audit
conclusions can be issued that clearly set out to the user the extent to which the performance
statements can be relied upon to assess the performance of the entity.

In 2021-22, the ANAO established the Performance Statements Audit Services Group, responsible
for the planning, delivery and monitoring of the implementation of the performance statements audit
program.

In the 2021-22 Budget, the ANAO received additional funding of $12.2 million for assurance and
performance audit services in 2021-22. This funding included funding for a phased implementation of
performance statements audits: from three audits being tabled in 2021-22, to six in 2022-23, to 10 in
2023-24 and 14 audits in 2024-25.

Following a request from the Minister for Finance in October 2021, the ANAO conducted six audits in
2021-22 as part of the performance statements audit program. The ANAO continued the program of
work with DVA, AGD and DSS and added three new entities: the Department of Agriculture, Water
and the Environment, the Department of Education, Skills and Employment, and the Treasury.
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In its report arising from the review of the Auditor-General Act 1997° the JCPAA recommended that
the Auditor-General Act 1997 be amended so that audits of annual performance statements are able
to be initiated without the need for approval or direction from the JCPAA or Finance Minister.

Over the course of the program, the ANAO will continue to invest in our capacity to conduct
performance statements audits, and the sector’s capacity to prepare for, and engage with, these
audits. The ANAO will:

e develop and invest in the training and knowledge the ANAO requires to support effective and
quality performance statements auditing;

e leverage efficiencies from repeat-audited entities, with these entities likely to be better placed to
provide timely and complete performance information and associated evidence;

e continue to ensure the methodology for performance statements audits is appropriate and fit for
purpose; and

e work with the Department of Finance, audited entities and the sector as a whole to share insights
and lessons learned to improve performance information.

Ethics and audit

The ANAO is consulting externally on a draft methodology for auditing ethics, which will be
implemented over the next four years.. The methodology covers performance audits of ethical
frameworks, performance audits with specific ethical criteria, as well as considerations of ethics in
findings in both performance and financial audits.

In 2021-22, the ANAO continued to conduct performance audits of procurements, including a focus
on probity and ethical considerations. The ANAO’s Annual Audit Work Program 2022—23 includes a
potential cross-entity audit or series of audits to examine the implementation of the Australian Public
Service ethical framework by selected agencies.

Quality

The quality of ANAO audit work is reliant on the strength of its independence and quality control
framework. The ANAQ’s quality assurance framework and plan articulates the system of quality
control that the ANAO has established to support the delivery of high-quality audit work and enables
the Auditor-General to have confidence in the opinions and conclusions in the reports prepared for the
Parliament.

The ANAO defines audit quality as the provision of timely, accurate and relevant audits — performed
independently in accordance with the Auditor-General Act 1997 (the Act), the ANAO Auditing
Standards and methodologies — that are valued by the Parliament. Delivering quality audits results in
improved public sector performance through accountability and transparency.

The ANAO published its Quality Assurance Framework and Plan 2021-22 in July 2021. In September
2021, the ANAO published its Audit Quality Report 2020—21, which assessed the implementation and
operating effectiveness of the quality assurance framework against the 2020-21 plan. The report
provides transparency around the processes, policies and procedures that support each element of the
quality assurance framework, and outlines the ANAQO’s performance results against audit quality

9 Joint Committee of Public Accounts and Audit, Report 491 Review of the Auditor-General Act 1997, Canberra, 2022,
https://parlinfo.aph.gov.au/parlinfo/download/committees/reportjnt/024665/toc_pdf/Report491ReviewoftheAuditor-
GeneralAct1997.pdf:fileType=application%2F pdf.
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indicators and associated target benchmarks. The audit quality report also includes the ANAO’s
achievement of the quality assurance strategy and deliverables, as set out in the Quality Assurance
Framework and Plan 2020-21.

In 2021-22, the ANAO continued to expand its root cause analysis program in response to an
Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) recommendation following its review of the
ANAO quality assurance framework. In August 2021, the ANAO completed a root cause analysis on
the quality findings identified in financial statements audit quality assurance reviews. The analysis
was expanded in line with ASIC’s recommendation to include contracted-out audits. In March 2022,
the ANAO completed the root cause analysis in parallel with the finalisation of the quality assurance
review of financial statements audits, and expanded the program to include findings identified in real-
time quality assurance reviews.

The ASIC review is one example of how the ANAO continues to enhance its quality framework to
include good practice recommendations from external reviews. The ANAO also identifies
opportunities to continuously improve the framework through the conduct of internal quality assurance
reviews, the internal audit on compliance with ANAO Audit Manual policies, and root cause analysis.

In 2021-22, an internal audit was conducted on the ANAO quality assurance framework. The audit
objective was to assess the follow-up actions undertaken in response to the ASIC review and other
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the ANAO quality assurance framework. The internal audit
also included a review of the ANAO’s progress and plan for implementing the new and revised Quality
Management Standards issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AUASB). The internal
audit found that the ANAO has undertaken appropriate follow up action to address most findings from
ASIC, the 2016 internal audit, and other reviews regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of its quality
assurance framework. In respect of the ANAO’s preparedness for the two new quality management
standards, the review identified that the we have appropriately defined roles and responsibilities in order
to support the implementation, governance and oversight of the new standards.

During 2021-22, the ANAO developed the Quality Assurance Framework and Plan 2022-23, which
complements the ANAO Corporate Plan 2022—23, and outlines the quality assurance strategy and
key activities planned for the year ahead.

Figure 4.2: ANAO quality framework
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The ANAQO’s work is governed by the ANAO Auditing Standards established by the Auditor-General,

in accordance with section 24 of the Act. The ANAO Auditing Standards incorporate Auditing
Standard ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and
Other Financial Information, Other Assurance Engagements and Related Services Engagements.
ASQC 1 requires the ANAO to establish and maintain a system of quality control to provide
reasonable assurance that the organisation complies with the ANAO Auditing Standards and other
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applicable requirements, and that reports issued by the Auditor-General are appropriate in the
circumstances. The AUASB has issued three new and revised Quality Management Standards that
replace ASQC 1 effective from15 December 2022:

e ASQM 1 Quality Management for Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Reports and
Other Financial Information, or Other Assurance or Related Services Engagements;

e ASQM 2 Engagement Quality Reviews; and

e ASA 220 Quality Management for an Audit of a Financial Report and Other Historical Financial
Information.

The revised standards introduce a quality management approach that is focused on proactively
identifying and responding to risks of quality. The standards include enhanced requirements and
focus on governance and leadership, monitoring and remediation. In 2021-22, the ANAO
commenced preparing for the implementation of the new and revised Quality Management Standards.
An internal audit of the ANAO’s quality assurance program reviewed the ANAQO’s preparedness for
the standards.

Methodology

The ANAO Auditing Standards are supported by a methodology applicable to performance audit and
financial statements audit work, and incorporating the ANAO Audit Manual. The ANAO regularly
reviews and updates this methodology to reflect changes in the ANAO Auditing Standards, industry
better practice, and new and emerging products, and to address findings from the ANAO’s quality
assurance program. In 2021-22, key updates to the methodology included:

e continued development of performance statements methodology and training, focused on
implementation of increased use of standardised approaches and tools that support the ANAO’s
performance statements audit activity as a growing practice, with effective and efficient
coordination with financial statements and performance audit activity;

e development of a performance statements audit manual and policies;
e a mandatory assessment of cybersecurity risks in financial statements audits;

e preparation for the implementation of the revised Auditing Standard ASA 315 Identifying and
Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement — this standard will be implemented for the 2022—
23 audit cycle;

e revision of the consultation and Qualifications and Technical Advisory Committee chapters of the
ANAO Audit Manual to incorporate performance statements audits; and

e revision of the performance audit-specific volume of the ANAO Audit Manual to:

- clarify terminology around the collection of audit evidence under section 32 of the Auditor-
General Act 1997 (the Act);

- provide clarity around when a performance audit is mandated under section 17 versus
section 18 of the Act; and

- address quality assurance review and internal audit recommendations.

Risk management

The effective management of risk is integral to achieving our objectives and supporting our purpose.
Risk management is a critical component of the ANAQ’s approach to good governance, and is
integrated into our oversight structures, strategic planning framework and values-driven, high-
performance culture.
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Risk management framework

In 2021-22, the ANAO refreshed its suite of risk management documentation — including the risk
management framework and policy, the enterprise risk register, and risk analysis tools. The ANAO’s
Risk Management Framework 2022-2024 is based on adherence to the Commonwealth Risk
Management Policy, which adopts definitions outlined in ISO 31000:2018 Risk Management —
Guidelines. The standard defines risk as ‘the effect of uncertainty on objectives’, and risk
management as the ‘coordinated activities to direct and control an organisation with regard to risk’.
The Commonwealth’s policy has nine elements and the ANAO has established risk oversight and
management systems to address each of those elements.

The ANAQO’s management of risk is embedded into all business-as-usual practices, using consistent
language, approaches and documentation, with the adoption of risk analysis tools applicable to the
ANAOQO’s operations across all groups. Risks associated with audit products are identified and
managed within the delivery of the products and within the quality framework through policies,
procedural guidance and review points.

Risks are managed in the context of achieving organisational goals and objectives. While all staff
contribute to the way risks are managed, senior staff in key positions have a clear view of the
mitigating controls and their effectiveness at controlling risks.

The Auditor-General takes advice from the Executive Board of Management into account when
approving the risk management framework and enterprise risk register and determining the ANAO’s
appetite and tolerance for risk. The risk management framework identifies specific responsibilities for
key personnel across the ANAO and the enterprise risk register assigns owners for each enterprise-
level risk. In addition, all ANAO staff have a general responsibility to practise active risk management.
The Executive Board of Management reviews any serious risk incidents each month, and any residual
risk assessed as ‘high’ or above is monitored by the executive board monthly. All enterprise risks are
reviewed at least annually.

In 2021-22, the ANAO actively managed a number of serious risk incidents in response to a changing
risk environment. These included environmental hazards restricting use of the ANAQ’s office facilities
and the COVID-19 pandemic. The required mitigations that the ANAQO put in place in response to
these risk events will continue to benefit the ANAO’s operations in the post-pandemic environment.

The Professional Services and Relationships Group and the three audit services groups have primary
responsibility for managing audit risk. Each individual audit work plan assesses operational risks and
mitigation strategies, and risk is assessed at all audit review points. Responsibility for managing
operational audit risk is assigned to responsible senior executives and audit managers.

Internal audit

Internal audit provides an objective audit service that is designed to add value and improve the
ANAOQ'’s operations. A systematic and disciplined approach is taken to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.

In 2021-22, the ANAO’s internal auditor, BellchambersBarrett, completed the following reviews:

e learning and development mandatory training;

e review of the implementation of the workforce plan;

e Protective Security Policy Framework annual compliance review (personnel security);
e Assurance Audit Services Group contracted-out audits — contract management;

e Assurance Audit Services Group resourcing;
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¢ Confidential Information Disclosure review; and

e ANAO quality assurance program.

The seven completed internal audits made 27 recommendations in total. Following the Audit
Committee meeting in June 2022, there were six recommendations outstanding.

Control environment

The ANAO has a robust control environment in place to ensure compliance with the requirements of
the Commonwealth’s resource management framework, and in particular the Public Governance,
Performance and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act). The current control framework includes the
following policies and procedures, which document key business procedures and incorporate details
of key internal controls:

e Auditor-General Instructions — these apply key principles and requirements of the
Commonwealth’s resource management framework to the operations of the ANAO;

¢ financial management procedures (to support the Auditor-General Instructions);
e delegations and authorisations; and

e an employee handbook.

Regular reviews of controls are undertaken by management and through the use of internal audit.

Probity and independence

The ANAO’s commitment to high ethical and professional standards underpins the quality of its work.
For audit professionals, independence is an element central to the quality of each audit. It requires all
members of the audit team to avoid circumstances that could compromise their ability to act with
integrity and exercise objectivity and professional scepticism. The ANAO Auditing Standards and the
ANAO Independence Policy require staff and contractors engaged in audits to comply with the relevant
provisions of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards). Any threat to independence must be
evaluated and safeguards applied to reduce the threat to an acceptable level. Situations where a threat
cannot be reduced to an acceptable level are not entered into or not allowed to continue.

When conducting procurements, the ANAO adheres to the Department of Finance’s Ethics and
Probity in Procurement principles. Staff involved in assessing procurements are required to receive a
probity briefing from the procurement team. All procurements require the completion of probity and
conflict of interest declarations from staff involved in evaluating the responses before they are given
access to the responses. Complex procurements have nominated probity advisers included in the
evaluation team — either internal ANAO staff or specialised external probity advisers.

In order to maintain credibility and demonstrate independence, the ANAO regards integrity as a core
value of the organisation — critical in sustaining the confidence of the Parliament, strengthening
public trust in government and delivering quality audit products.

The ANAOQO's integrity control system and processes include good governance practices, publishing of
gifts and benefits, and an ongoing focus on independence in the delivery of our work. Beyond its
control system, the ANAO maintains an enduring focus on promoting integrity as an organisational
value that is embedded in our work and culture.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 97


https://www.finance.gov.au/government/procurement/buying-australian-government/ethics-probity-procurement
https://www.finance.gov.au/government/procurement/buying-australian-government/ethics-probity-procurement

Fraud control and prevention

The Senior Executive Director, Corporate Management Group, is responsible for managing the
ANAO’s fraud control framework, including fraud detection, prevention and response. This framework
is linked to the ANAQ’s risk management framework and consolidates all fraud prevention and
detection activities in one document, with careful regard to risk against the ANAQO’s reputation should
fraudulent activity occur. The ANAO periodically reviews its fraud control framework, taking into
account changes in the operating environment.

There were no incidents of fraud in 2021-22. We conducted a fraud risk assessment and concluded
that all identified fraud risks were accurately assessed and appropriate controls were in place.

The ANAO continues to maintain appropriate fraud prevention, detection, investigation, reporting and
data collection procedures in accordance with the Public Governance, Performance and
Accountability Rule 2014. The ANAO enhances fraud awareness among staff through various
mechanisms, including a mandatory fraud e-learning module.

Auditor-General’s disclosure of expenses

The Auditor-General voluntarily discloses publicly any expenses incurred to ensure transparency. The
Auditor-General’'s expenses are disclosed every six months. His expenses for the 2021 calendar year
and for January to June 2022 are available on the ANAO website.

Gifts and benefits

The ANAO gifts and benefits policy recommends that ANAO employees do not accept any gifts or
benefits in their role as an employee of the ANAO. Employees are required to report any offered gift
or benefit (whether accepted or refused) within 10 business days of the offer being made, through an
internal gifts and benefits register. The data collected through the register is reported to the ANAO’s
Executive Board of Management, and a subset of the data is reported publicly.

Outside employment

The ANAO provides its employees with flexibility to participate in activities outside the Australian Public
Service if the activities do not conflict or adversely affect the performance of their official duties. A range
of activities may be deemed to be in the public interest and of professional benefit to the individual and
to the ANAO. Outside work is other employment (paid or unpaid) or volunteer activities undertaken by
an employee in addition to their official duties or while on paid or unpaid leave from the ANAO.

Prior approval is required for all outside activities and employment, unless specifically excluded from
the policy. If an employee commenced outside employment before joining the ANAO, the employee
must obtain approval to continue the employment immediately upon commencement. In all other
cases, employees must obtain approval before commencing outside employment.

Approval is not required where activities are solely of a personal nature — that is, when employees
perform work or undertake activities for voluntary community organisations or sporting bodies.
Passive investment activities, such as rental properties, share trading and so on, are also excluded
from approval requirements. However, all exclusions from approval are on the basis that activities are
undertaken in the employee’s own time, no ANAO resources are used, and that there is no conflict of
interest or adverse effect on their official duties.

At 30 June 2022, the ANAO had 20 approvals recorded for staff undertaking outside employment
activities.
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Compliance survey

ANAO staff who exercise delegated powers and responsibilities assert their compliance with the
financial framework, including compliance with the PGPA Act, by completing a compliance survey.
Twenty-two instances of non-compliance were reported for the 2021-22 financial year, all of which
were deemed to be non-significant breaches of the finance law and associated legislation, and the
ANAO delegations.

There were nine instances where procurements made by the ANAO were registered on AusTender
after 42 days. The ANAO has implemented additional internal controls to mitigate the likelihood of
procurements not being reported on AusTender within the mandated timeframe.

There were 11 instances of misuse of the ANAQO'’s corporate credit card in 2021-22. This represents
0.1 per cent of total credit card transactions. Although the proportion of misuse is small, each instance
is investigated, with all of these incidents found to be inadvertent. All instances of credit card misuse
were reported to the Executive Board of Management. The Chief Finance Officer contacted those
staff who misused their credit card, reminded them of their obligations when using the card, and
ensured that the amounts associated with the misuse of the credit cards were repaid into the ANAQO’s
bank account.

There were two non-significant breaches relating to the ANAQO’s enterprise agreement. These
instances have been investigated. The ANAO has taken steps to educate staff to ensure compliance
with the ANAO’s governance frameworks and policy documents.

External scrutiny

The ANAQ'’s operations, processes and reports are periodically subject to independent external
review.

Part 7 of the Auditor-General Act 1997 provides for the appointment of an Independent Auditor, who
undertakes the audit of the ANAQO’s financial statements and carries out selected performance audits,
having regard to the audit priorities of the Parliament as determined by the JCPAA. The Independent
Auditor position is a part-time statutory appointment for a period of at least three years and not more
than five years. On 21 February 2019, the Governor-General appointed Ms Eileen Hoggett as the
ANAOQO’s Independent Auditor from 1 March 2019 for a period of five years.

In 2021-22, the Independent Auditor commenced a performance audit to assess the effectiveness of
the ANAO'’s attraction, retention and development of capability. The draft report was provided to the
ANAO on 2 June 2022 and the ANAO provided its response to the Independent Auditor on 30 June
2022. The report was tabled in the Parliament on 15 August 2022.

The Independent Auditor conducts an audit of the ANAQO’s performance statements at the request of
the Auditor-General to provide independent assurance to the Parliament.

The ANAO received unmodified auditor reports on its financial statements and performance
statements for the year ended 30 June 2022.

No decisions made by a court or administrative tribunal or by the Australian Information
Commissioner had a significant effect on the ANAO’s operations in 2021-22. The ANAO was not the
subject of any agency capability reviews or reports by the Commonwealth Ombudsman in 2021-22.
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Other management issues

The management activities and services that support the ANAO’s audit functions are undertaken in
line with government policies and better practice. Reporting against the following issues is provided in
Appendix E:

e compliance with the finance law;

e asset management;

e purchasing and procurement;

e consultancy and non-consultancy contracts;

e procurement activities to support small business;

e advertising and market research;

e grant programs;

e environmental performance;

e disability reporting;

e work health and safety;

o freedom of information;

¢ audit fee methodology; and

e service charter.
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Appendix A — Transparency reporting

The Corporations Act 2001 includes requirements for annual transparency reporting by auditors.
Although the ANAO is not subject to the transparency reporting requirements for private sector audits
that are specified in the Corporations Act, the ANAO has embraced the principles of transparency
reporting. Table A.1 summarises the requirements that are relevant to the ANAO and shows where
the required information is presented in this annual report.

Table A.1: Transparency reporting

Prescribed information®

Description of the auditor’s legal structure and
ownership

Coverage in this annual report

The ‘Role’ section in Part 2 details the
legislative framework for the roles of the
Auditor-General and the ANAO.

Description of the auditor’s governance
structure

The ‘Governance’ section in Part 4 details the
corporate governance framework of the ANAO.

Description of the auditor’s internal quality
control system

The ‘Quality’ section in Part 4 details the
ANAOQ’s internal quality framework and internal
audit and quality assurance arrangements.

Statement on the effectiveness of the auditor’s
internal quality control system in the reporting
year

The ‘Quality’ section in Part 4 reports on the
effectiveness of the ANAQO’s internal quality
framework and internal audit and quality
assurance arrangements.

The name of each body that is authorised to
review the auditor, and the date of the most
recent review of the auditor conducted by each
body

The ‘External scrutiny’ section in Part 4 details
the bodies that are authorised to review the
work of the ANAO and the external review
completed during the year.

Table 2.1 in Part 2 describes external reviews
of the ANAQO’s audits by the Joint Committee of
Public Accounts and Audit.

The names of the bodies for which the auditor
conducted an audit in the reporting year

The entities are listed in Auditor-General
Report No.14 of 2021-22 Audits of the
Financial Statements of Australian Government
Entities for the Period Ended 30 June 2021.
Information on all audit reports tabled by the

Auditor-General in the Parliament during 2021—
22 is available on the ANAO website.

Statement about the auditor’s independence
practices in the reporting year, including the
date on which the auditor most recently
conducted an internal review of its
independence compliance

The ‘Probity and independence’ section in
Part 4 details the ANAQO’s independence
framework for audit professionals.

Statement about the policy that the auditor
follows regarding the amount and nature of
professional education that members of an audit
team must undertake during the reporting year

The ‘Development’ section in Appendix D
details the ANAO’s education framework for
audit professionals.
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Appendix A — Transparency reporting

Prescribed information® Coverage in this annual report

Financial information for the auditor for the The ‘Report on financial performance’ section
reporting year in Part 3 provides an overview of the ANAO’s
financial results.

The ANAQ’s audited financial statements for

2021-22 are presented in Part 3.

Information on the basis for remuneration of the | Note 2.3 of the financial statements in Part 3
auditor’s senior managers details the ANAQO’s arrangements for
performance assessment and performance
pay, and senior executive remuneration.

(a) Based on the items set out in Schedule 7A of the Corporations Regulations 2001.
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by outcome

Entity resource statement
Table B.1: Entity resource statement 2021-22

Actual
available Payments Balance

appropriations made remaining
for 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22

($°000) ($°000) ($°000)

Departmental appropriation(@ 113,565 84,909 28,656

Auditor-General remuneration and
expense — Auditor-General Act 1997,
Schedule 1, sections 3 and 7

(a) Appropriation Act (No.1) 2021-2022, prior-year departmental appropriation, and retained revenue receipts
under section 74 of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013.
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Expenses by outcome

Table B.2: Summary of total expenses for Outcome 1, 2021-22

Departmental expenses

Budget®

2021-22

($7000)

Actual
expenses

2021-22
($°000)

Outcome 1: To improve public sector performance and accountability through independent
reporting on Australian Government administration to Parliament, the Executive and the public.

Appendix B — Entity resource statement and expenses by outcome

Variation

2021-22
($°000)

the budget year

Departmental appropriation(®) 48,527 45,696 2,831
Special appropriation 389 343 46
Expenses not requiring appropriation in 2,009 2,294 (285)

Departmental expenses

Departmental appropriation(®) 35,864 35,904 (40)

Special appropriation 389 343 46

tlixpenses not requiring appropriation in 1,732 1,803 (71)
e budget year

2021-22

2020-21

Average staffing level (number)

326

310

(a) Full-year budget, including any subsequent adjustment made to 2021-22 Budget.

(b) Departmental appropriation combines ‘Ordinary annual services (Supply Bill (No.1) and Appropriation Act
(No.1) and ‘Revenue from independent sources (section 74 of the PGPA Act)'.
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Table C.1: Staff coverage under employment instruments, at 30 June 2022

Number of employees Number of employees Number of employees with
covered by the ANAO covered by a common law an individual flexibility

Enterprise Agreement employment contract arrangement in place

2016-2019

350 26 12

Note:  Includes ongoing, non-ongoing and casual staff. All employees are covered by either the ANAO
Enterprise Agreement 2016—2019 or a common law employment contract. Employees covered by the
enterprise agreement may also have an individual flexibility arrangement in place. Information in this
table covers substantive classification of staff and does not include acting arrangements.

Table C.2: Ongoing, non-ongoing and casual staff, by classification and gender, at 30 June
2022 and 30 June 20

‘ Ongoing Non-ongoing Casual Total ‘
Female Male| X| Female Male| X| Female| Male| X

SES 3 2022 1 0o O 0 0 0 0 0 O 1
2021 1 0o O 0 0, 0 0 0o O 1

SES 2 2022 2 3, 0 0 0, 0 0 0 O 5
2021 2 11 0 0 0, 0 0 0 O 3

SES 1 2022 10 9/ 0 1 0 0 0 0| O 20
2021 11 10| O 1 0, 0 0 0o O 22

EL 2 2022 40 31 1 1 11 O 1 0o O 75
2021 37 23| 0 0 0 0 0 0o O 60

EL1 2022 44 26| 0 0 11 O 0 0 O 71
2021 32 23| 0 1 0, 0 0 0o O 56

APS 6 2022 43 32| 0 2 0, 0 0 0o O 77
2021 36 25| 0 3 0 0 0 0o O 64

APS 5 2022 25 21| 0 2 11 O 0 0o O 49
2021 33 26| 0 1 11 O 0 0o O 61

APS 4 2022 13 15| 0 2 0 0 0 0 O 30
2021 10 18| 0 0 0 0 0 0o O 28

APS 3 2022 1 11 O 0 0, 0 0 0o O 2
2021 1 0o O 1 0 0 0 0o O 2

APS 2 2022 0 0o O 0 0 0 0 0 O 0
2021 0 0o O 0 0, 0 0 11 O 1

APS 1 2022 0 0o O 0 0, 0 3 6| O 9
2021 0 0o O 0 0 0 1 3/ 0 4
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Ongoing Non-ongoing Casual Tota

Graduate 2022 21 16| O 0 0| O 0 0| O 37
2021 9 7, 0 0 0 0 0 0o O 16
Total 2022 200 154, 1 8 30 4 6, 0 376
2021 172 133 O 7 11 O 1 4, 0| 318

SES = Senior Executive Service; EL = Executive Level; APS = Australian Public Service;
X = indeterminate/intersex/unspecified (any person who does not exclusively identify as either male or
female).

Note: Includes all staff employed by the ANAO, including operative and inoperative staff. Inoperative staff are
defined as staff who are absent from work for more than 13 weeks. Information in this table covers the
headcount based on substantive classification of staff and does not include acting arrangements.

Table C.3: Ongoing, non-ongoing and casual staff, by attendance type, at 30 June 2022 and

30 June 2021
Employment Attendance type
type |
Full-time Part-time Casual Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Ongoing 321 277 34 28 0 0 355 305
Non-ongoing 11 6 0 2 0 0 11 8
Casual 0 0 0 0 10 5 10 5
Total 332 283 34 30 10 5 376 318

Note: Includes all operative and inoperative staff. At 30 June 2022, four full-time ongoing staff identify as
Indigenous. All ANAO positions are Canberra-based.

Remuneration

The ANAQO’s employment framework enables our ongoing investment in workforce capability and
remuneration. The ANAQO’s Enterprise Agreement 2016-2019 came into effect on 21 April 2016 and
covers the terms and conditions of employment at the ANAO, other than terms and conditions
applying under a relevant Commonwealth law or implied at common law.

On 22 April 2019, the ANAO implemented a section 24(1) determination made under the Public
Service Act 1999 to hold in place conditions of the ANAQO’s Enterprise Agreement 2016-2019. On 11
March 2022, the Auditor-General made a further section 24(1) determination, which continues to hold
the conditions of the agreement while enabling an annual pay increase tied to the private sector wage
price index for three years, commencing 22 April 2022.

The salary ranges for Senior Executive Service (SES) staff are determined by the ANAO’s SES
Remuneration, Performance and Development Policy. SES remuneration payments are set out under
Note 2.3 of the financial statements at Part 3 of this report.
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Table C.4: Salary ranges for APS employees, by classification, at 30 June 2022

Classification Salary range ($) i
EL 2 128,531-160,410
EL 1 111,928-126,131
APS 6 91,199-104,820
APS 5 82,318-89,701
APS 4 71,669-78,768
APS 3 65,927-71,298
APS 2 60,55-65,926
APS 1 49,817-60,558
Graduate 65,927-71,298

EL = Executive Level; APS = Australian Public Service.

Table C.5: Performance payments in 2021-22

|
Classification Number Total ($) Average ($) Minimum ($)

SES 8 64,425 5,979 5,025 9,937
EL 2 11 56,123 6,611 4,722 10,507
EL 1 5 21,336 4,267 3,295 4,951
APS 6 3 10,737 3,579 2,684 4,474
APS 5 1 3,231 3,231 3,231 3,231
APS 4 - - - - -
APS 3 - - - - -
APS 1-2 - - - - -
Total

SES = Senior Executive Service; EL = Executive Level; APS = Australian Public Service.

Table C.6: Summary of performance ratings for the period ending 31 October 2021

Classification Substantially Exceeds Meeting Not meeting Total
broadband exceeds expectations expectations expectations

ANAO bands 4 and 5 15 58 41 0 114
(EL 1 and EL 2)

ANAO bands 1to 3 5 37 70 2 114
(APS 1-6)

Total 20 95 111 2 228
Proportion of total 9% 42% 48% 1% | 100%
eligible staff

EL = Executive Level; APS = Australian Public Service.
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Non-salary benefits

The ANAO offers staff a number of non-salary benefits, which include:

annual influenza immunisation;

spectacles reimbursement;

mentoring and coaching programs;

in-house capability development programs;

a free, confidential employee assistance program for employees and their immediate families;
study assistance to eligible employees;

access to flexible working arrangements; and

contributions to relevant professional memberships.

The ANAO provides SES staff and — where there is a business need — some non-SES staff with a

mobile phone, tablet and/or airline lounge membership. All ANAO staff have laptops. Employees can
also make use of a range of salary sacrifice benefits, including additional superannuation and leased
motor vehicles.
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strategies

This appendix sets out the ANAQ’s strategies for recruiting, developing and retaining staff, and
building a productive and supportive workplace that encourages and engages employees.

In 2021-22, the ANAO developed its Workforce Plan 2022—-2025, outlining a strategic approach to
cultivating a high-performing workforce across the three key areas of attraction, development and
retention.

Attraction

The ANAO runs a graduate program and an intern program to attract talented individuals to the
organisation.

Graduate program

The ANAQO’s graduate program is open to university students who are completing their final year of
study or have completed a degree within the past seven years. During the 12-month program,
graduates undertake a robust development program, consisting of core and technical training.

In 2021-22, the graduate program recruited 39 graduates: 16 in the Assurance Audit Services Group,
16 in the Performance Audit Services Group, 3 in the Performance Statements Audit Services Group,
3 in the Systems Assurance and Data Analytics Group, and one in the Professional Services and
Relationships Group.

Intern program

The ANAOQ's intern program provides paid casual work experience for Canberra university students
who are currently completing an undergraduate degree in a relevant field of study. During 2021-22,
18 students participated in the intern program. The ANAO continued to foster productive relationships
with the Australian National University, the University of Canberra, and Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand to recruit students for the program.

Development

The ANAO recognises the importance of supporting the professional learning of its people — through
study assistance, learning and talent management programs — so the organisation can continue
delivering on its purpose.

Study assistance and learning program

The ANAQO’s learning and development program is underpinned by a progressive Studies Assistance
Policy that enables staff to undertake tertiary education and other study to obtain relevant
qualifications, including programs offered by Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand,
CPA Australia and ISACA (the professional association for IT audit specialists).

During 2021-22, ANAO workforce planning processes identified core capabilities to continue enabling
a high-performing audit and public service workforce, now and into the future (see ‘Workforce plan’ in
Part 2 of this report). The ANAO deployed diverse and blended learning programs across these
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capability areas in 2021-22, including training in integrity, communication, leadership, coaching,
change management and wellbeing support.

Talent management program

The 2021-22 talent management program offered the following opportunities to participants:

e keynote speakers;

o |eadership development opportunities;
e group coaching sessions;

o strategic projects;

e mentoring junior staff members; and

e shadow boards.

Talent retention

The ANAQO’s talent retention strategy includes fostering staff engagement, supporting the health and
wellbeing of staff, and recognising significant achievements.

Staff engagement

To deliver effectively and efficiently against our purpose, the ANAO requires high-quality, high-
performing people who are fully engaged with their work and workplace. Each year, the ANAO
participates in the Australian Public Service (APS) Employee Census. The 2021 census achieved an
ANAO staff response of 89 per cent, which was a further improvement on the 2020 response rate of
83 per cent.

The ANAQO’s employee engagement score of 75 per cent for 2021 was two percentage points higher
than the overall APS average, and our staff continue to be overwhelmingly committed to the goals,
purpose and objectives of the ANAO. In total, 94 per cent of our staff responded that they would be
happy to ‘go the extra mile’ when required, and 86 per cent expressed pride in working for the ANAO
— 10 percentage points higher than the APS average.

The ANAO organises regular events for our people that aim to foster a culture of engagement and
information sharing. Events raise awareness of ANAO priorities and contribute to the professional and
personal development of staff. ‘Town hall’ events inform staff of current organisational priorities, future
directions and relevant developments. The purpose is to foster a sense of cohesion across the
organisation and to recognise staff contributions and achievements. Two town hall events were held in
2021-22 and both were either live-streamed or recorded to support staff working flexibly or on leave.

Health and wellbeing

The ANAO is committed to promoting the health and wellbeing of its staff. We recognise that work-
based health and wellbeing programs contribute positively to morale, resilience and productivity by
reducing workforce absence and illness, and workplace injury. The ANAO participates in the
Australian Public Service Commission’s benchmarking on unscheduled absences across the APS,
which can provide information on staff wellbeing. The most recent report received, covering the period
1 July 2021 to 31 March 2022, shows the ANAQO’s unscheduled absence rate at 6.5 days compared to
the APS average of nine days.
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During 2021-22, programs we promoted include:

e diversity and harassment contact officers;

e the Reasonable Adjustment Passport for employees with an iliness, injury or disability;
o the Employee Assistance Program;

e an online mental health toolkit;

e return-to-work rehabilitation services;

e workstation safety and ergonomic assessments;

o formal and informal flexible working arrangements;
e coordinated wellbeing social events;

e COVID-19 pastoral care check-ins;

¢ flu vaccinations;

e annual health checks; and

e mental health first aid officers.

Recognition

The ANAO recognises and rewards individual staff and teams who make a significant contribution to
achieving the organisation’s business objectives in areas such as client service, people management,
business management, audit management and innovation. In 2021-22, a total of 35 employees were
recognised through formal ANAO awards, the Auditor-General’s Australia Day Awards and
Outstanding Achievement awards.
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Compliance with finance law

In 2021-22, the ANAO had no significant issues under paragraph 19(1)(e) of the Public Governance,
Performance and Accountability Act 2013 relating to noncompliance with the finance law.

Asset management

The ANAQ’s asset management policy is set out in the Auditor-General Instructions and supporting
financial management procedures. High-value assets are subject to whole-of-life management,
including formal tendering for acquisition, scheduled maintenance, and detailed accounting of
disposal or return at the end of the useful life of the asset. The ANAQO’s asset management practices
are designed to protect the interests of the Australian Government.

Purchasing and procurement

The ANAQ’s approach to procuring goods and services is consistent with, and reflects the principles
of, the Commonwealth Procurement Rules — in particular, the core rule of competition contributing to
demonstrating value for money. These rules are applied to activities through the Auditor-General
Instructions and supporting financial management procedures and guidelines.

The ANAQ’s procurement plan is published annually and is available on the AusTender website,
tenders.gov.au. The plan is updated when circumstances change.

The ANAQ'’s tender evaluation processes are designed to be fair and equitable and to enable
potential suppliers to compete for ANAO business. Before proceeding to a substantive evaluation, the
ANAO undertakes a check against all mandatory requirements that are listed in the tender
documentation.

All tenders and contractual arrangements undertaken in 2021-22 were carried out in accordance with
the Commonwealth Procurement Rules.

No contracts in excess of $10,000 (including GST) or standing offers were exempted by the Auditor-
General from being published on AusTender on the basis that they would disclose exempt matters
under the Freedom of Information Act 1982.

Reportable consultancy contracts

During 2021-22, three new reportable consultancy contracts were entered into, with total actual
expenditure of $0.027 million. In addition, 10 ongoing reportable consultancy contracts were active
during the period, with total actual expenditure of $0.646 million (Table E.1). Table E.2 shows the
organisations that received the five largest shares of the ANAO'’s total expenditure on reportable
consultancy contracts during 2021-22.
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Table E.1: Reportable consultancy contracts, 2021-22

Category Number Expenditure

$°000

(GST inc.)

New contracts entered into during the reporting period 3 27
Ongoing contracts entered into during a previous reporting

: 10 646

period
Total 13 673

Table E.2: Organisations receiving largest shares of reportable consultancy contract

expenditure, 2021-22

Total reportable consultancy contract expenditure in 2021-22 of $673,174.

Expenditure Proportion of
$°000 2021-22 total

Organisation

(GST inc.) spend (%)
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 218 32
Ernst & Young 166 25
ORIMA Research 140 21
KPMG 84 12
RSM Bird Cameron 48 7
Total of the largest shares 656 97

Annual reports contain information about actual expenditure on reportable consultancy contracts.
Information on the value of reportable consultancy contracts is available on the AusTender website.

The ANAO engages consultants as required to undertake a variety of tasks. The most common uses
of contracted consultants include the application of expert professional skills to:

e investigate or diagnose a defined issue or problem;
e provide independent advice, information or creative solutions; and
e provide specialised services, including assistance with actuarial calculations, probity services and

legal advice.

The major competitive tendering and contracting activities in 2021-22 were to obtain professional
skills to assist with certain financial statements audits and performance audits.

The decision to engage a consultant is made in accordance with the Public Governance, Performance
and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act) and related rules, including the Commonwealth Procurement
Rules, and relevant internal policies.

Reportable non-consultancy contracts

During 2021-22, 136 new reportable non-consultancy contracts were entered into involving total
actual expenditure of $5.992 million. In addition, 164 ongoing reportable non-consultancy contracts
were active during the period, involving total actual expenditure of $30.130 million (Table E.3).
Table E.4 shows the organisations that received the five largest shares of the ANAO’s total
expenditure on reportable non-consultancy contracts during 2021-22.
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Table E.3: Reportable non-consultancy contracts, 2021-22

Category Number Expenditure

$°000

(GST inc.)

New contracts entered into during the reporting period 136 5,992

Ongomg contracts entered into during a previous reporting 164 30,130
period

Total 300 36,122

Table E.4: Organisations receiving largest shares of reportable non-consultancy contract
expenditure, 2021-22

Total reportable non-consultancy contract expenditure in 2021-22 of $36,122,393.

Organisation Expenditure Proportion of
$°000 2021-22 total

(GST inc.) spend (%)

PricewaterhouseCoopers 4,883 14
Ernst & Young 4,091 11
ASG Group 3,968 1
KPMG 2,331 6
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 1,735 5
Total of the largest shares 17,008 47

Annual reports contain information about actual expenditure on reportable non-consultancy contracts.
Information on the value of reportable non-consultancy contracts is available on the AusTender website.

The major competitive tendering and contracting activities in 2021-22 were to contract out a number
of financial statements audits and performance audits, as well as to contract in staff to assist the
ANAO in delivering financial statements audits and performance audits. The ANAQO’s IT services are
managed by a third-party provider.

The decision to engage a supplier to assist the ANAO in the delivery of its mandate is made in
accordance with the PGPA Act and related rules, including the Commonwealth Procurement Rules,
and relevant internal policies.

Procurement initiatives to support small business

The ANAO supports small business participation in the Commonwealth Government procurement
market. Small and medium-sized enterprise (SME) and small enterprise participation statistics are
available on the Department of Finance’s website, finance.gov.au.

The ANAQO’s procurement practices support SMEs through use of the Commonwealth Contracting
Suite for low-risk procurements valued under $200,000. Practices also support the use of electronic
systems or other processes to facilitate on-time payment, including the use of payment cards.

The ANAO recognises the importance of ensuring that small businesses are paid on time. The results
of the survey of Australian Government payments to small business are available on the Treasury’s

website, treasury.gov.au.
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Advertising and market research

Under section 311A of the Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918, we are required to disclose payments
of $14,500 or more (inclusive of GST) to advertising agencies, market research organisations, polling
organisations, media advertising organisations and direct mail organisations.

The ANAO did not undertake media advertising campaigns and therefore did not make any payments
to advertising agencies in 2021-22. The ANAO did not make any payments to direct mail
organisations or polling organisations, and did not make any payments of $14,500 or more (inclusive
of GST) to media advertising organisations.

Payments over $14,500 (including GST) to market research organisations, incurred in the course of
client surveys on performance are set out in Table E.5.

Table E.5: Payments made to market research organisations, 2021-22

Organisation \ Purpose Payment $

(GST inc.)
ORIMA Research Client survey 38,500
ORIMA Research Client survey 25,603

Grant programs

The ANAO does not administer any grant programs.

Environmental performance

Section 516A of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act)
requires that Australian Government entities include a section detailing their environmental
performance and contribution to ecologically sustainable development in their annual report.

The EPBC Act requires Commonwealth agencies to report against two core criteria:
e how the agency accords with and contributes to the principles of ecologically sustainable

development; and

e the environmental performance of the agency, including the impact of its activities on the natural
environment, how these are mitigated and how they will be further mitigated.

Contribution to ecologically sustainable development

The ANAO contributes to ecologically sustainable development by actively taking steps to reduce our
environmental impact and adopting environmentally friendly options where practical.

In 2021-22, the ANAO continued to improve its environmental performance and mitigate the effects of
our impact on the environment through:

e the introduction of organic waste bins;

e procuring energy-efficient equipment and lighting solutions;

e using recycled copy paper;

o energy-efficient power management settings on office equipment, including motion sensor lighting;

e videoconferencing to reduce the need for local, interstate and international travel;
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e recycling of paper, cardboard, office furniture, batteries and printer cartridges; and

o fostering employee awareness of environmental issues, including reconsidering the need to print
documents in line with ‘paper-lite’ principles.

The integration of energy-efficiency practices into our organisation and planning processes allows us
to reduce our energy costs and decrease the consumption of resources.

Effect of activities on the environment

The ANAO monitors its energy and water usage and waste management as core indicators of the
effect of its activities on the environment. We will continue to improve our collection and monitoring of
data on energy use, water consumption and waste management in our office building.

Energy

The Australian Government’s Energy Efficiency in Government Operations policy aims to reduce the
energy consumption of Australian Government operations, with particular emphasis on building
energy efficiency. The policy sets an energy intensity target of no more than 7,500 megajoules (MJ)
per person per year for tenant light and power. During 2021-22, the ANAO met this target, using
1,649 MJ per person.

The ANAO has a Green Lease Schedule, which includes the obligation to undertake an annual
tenancy rating under the National Australian Built Environment Rating System (NABERS). The
ANAOQO’s tenancy was rated against the latest version of NABERS rules in June 2022 and achieved a
5.5-star rating, which demonstrates excellent performance against NABERS benchmarks and
exceeds policy requirements.

Waste

The ANAO segregates waste to ensure suitable items are recycled and to minimise landfill. Organic
waste bins were introduced in February 2022. From 1 July 2021, the ANAO has received monthly
reporting from waste vendors to support better understanding of consumption, identify areas for
improvement and support reduction of the total amount of waste sent to landfill. Approximately 65 per
cent of total waste generated by the ANAO in 2021-22 was sent to landfill, and 35 per cent was
recycled.

Disability reporting

Australia’s Disability Strategy 2021-2031 is the overarching framework for inclusive policies,
programs and infrastructure that will support people with disability to participate in all areas of
Australian life. The strategy sets out where practical changes will be made to improve the lives of
people with disability in Australia. It acts to ensure the principles underpinning the UN Convention on
the Rights of Persons with Disabilities are incorporated into Australia’s policies and programs that
affect people with disability, their families and carers. All levels of government have committed to
deliver more comprehensive and visible reporting under the strategy. A range of progress reports on
the strategy’s action plans and outcome areas will be published and available at
disabilitygateway.gov.au/ads.

In December 2020, the Australian Government released the Australian Public Service Disability
Employment Strategy 2020-2025, with the goal of increasing the employment of people with disability
across the Australian Public Service to 7 per cent by 2025. Disability reporting is included in the
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Australian Public Service Commission’s State of the Service reports and the APS Statistical Bulletin.
These reports are available at apsc.gov.au.

Work health and safety

Under section 38 of the Work Health and Safety Act 2011, the ANAO is required to notify Comcare of
any incidents arising out of the conduct of the ANAQO’s operations that result in death, serious injury or
serious illness of a person, or involve a dangerous incident. No incidents were reported in 2021-22.

Freedom of information

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides the Auditor-General with an exemption from the
provisions of the Act, and in 2015 the Australian Information Commissioner determined that the
Auditor-General's exemption extends to the ANAO.

Performance audit reports, financial statements audit reports and audit opinions are tabled in the
Parliament and/or published on the ANAQO’s website. Requests for audit from members of parliament
are published on the ANAQO’s website. Other corporate information is also published on the ANAQO’s
website, including:

¢ the Auditor-General’s expenses in the form of official credit card transactions;

e details of parliamentary briefings provided on request to parliamentarians and parliamentary
committees;

e Senior Executive Service remuneration policy and details;
o (ifts and benefits offered (whether accepted or refused);
¢ ANAO Workforce Plan 2022-25;

e Quality Assurance Framework and Plan 2022-23;

e ASIC Audit Inspection Report of the ANAO; and

e the ANAO’s risk management framework.

Audit fee methodology

For some financial statements audits, Commonwealth bodies are liable to pay fees. Subsection 14(1)
of the Auditor-General Act 1997 provides for the Auditor-General to determine a scale of audit fees.
The fees paid by Commonwealth corporate entities and companies for financial statements audits are
returned to the Official Public Account and are not available to the ANAO unless they relate to
additional services.

Paragraph 8(1)(k) of the Public Accounts and Audit Committee Act 1951 requires the Joint Committee
of Public Accounts and Audit to consider the level of fees determined by the Auditor-General under
subsection 14(1) of the Auditor-General Act 1997. Information relating to the methodology utilised to
determine the ANAO level of fees is outlined below.

Charge-out rates are used to determine the notional or actual audit fee in respect of financial
statement audits and to report the cost of performance audits. The audit fees for financial statements
audits of non-corporate Commonwealth entities are notionally calculated for information purposes and
inclusion in the notes of the agency’s financial statements. Other entities — mainly Commonwealth
statutory authorities and companies — are required to pay audit fees. The ANAO will continue to
consider the appropriateness of the current cost recovery arrangements to ensure they best support
the capacity of the office to support the delivery of its functions.
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Appendix E — Other management issues

Consistent with government policy, the ANAO aims to establish charge-out rates at a level sufficient
to recover the costs of its activities over time. An hourly charge-out rate is determined for each staff
classification. The establishment of charge-out rates is guided by a costing model that considers all
relevant costs, including the attribution of overhead costs, and is designed to achieve full notional cost
recovery of the ANAO operating budget. When determining the basis for allocating overhead costs,
the ANAO takes into account the nature of the expenditure and calculates the charge-out rate using
an accrual-based costing model.

Using the methodology outlined, the average hourly charge-out rate for the ANAO in 2021-22 was
$233.27, ranging from $151.76 per hour for a junior auditor through to $454.22 for a senior executive.

Service charter

As the ANAO does not provide services directly to members of the public, it does not have a service
charter. However, the ANAO recognises that it provides a service to the community through the
delivery of a range of audit services, and welcomes feedback. Comments and suggestions can be
made via the ANAO website, anao.gov.au, or by phone on (02) 6203 7300. Members of the public are
also invited to make contributions to specific audits, with each audit having a facility for contributions
to be received while the audit is in progress.
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Abbreviations and acronyms

ACAG Australasian Council of Auditors-General

AGD Attorney-General’s Department

ANAO Australian National Audit Office

APES Accounting Professional and Ethical Standard

APS Australian Public Service

ASA Australian Auditing Standards

ASIC Australian Securities and Investments Commission

ASOSAI Asian Organization of Supreme Audit Institutions

ASQC Australian Standard on Quality Control

ASQM Australian Standard on Quality Management

AUASB Auditing and Assurance Standards Board

BPK Badan Pemeriksa Keuangan [Republik Indonesia] (Audit Board of the Republic
of Indonesia)

CA ANZ Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand

CFO chief financial officer

CPA certified practising accountant

DevOps a portmanteau from ‘software development’ and ‘IT operations’

DFAT Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade

DSS Department of Social Services

DVA Department of Veterans’ Affairs

EPBC Act Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

FIPP Forum for INTOSAI Professional Pronouncements

GST goods and services tax

INTOSAI International Organization of Supreme Audit Institutions

IPP Institutional Partnerships Program (Australia and Papua New Guinea)

JCPAA Joint Committee of Public Accounts and Audit

MJ megajoules

NABERS National Australian Built Environment Rating System

PASAI Pacific Association of Supreme Audit Institutions
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Abbreviations and acronyms

PBS portfolio budget statements

PGPA Act Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013
PGPA Rule Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014
PNG Papua New Guinea

Prospera Australia—Indonesia Partnership for Economic Development
PSM Public Service Medal

SAl supreme audit institution

SES Senior Executive Service

SME small and medium-sized enterprise

WHS work health and safety
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List of requirements

Below is the table set out in Schedule 2 of the PGPA Rule. Section 17AJ(d) requires this table be
included in entities’ annual reports as an aid of access.

PGPA Rule

Description

Requirement

i Page

reference

17AD(g) Letter of transmittal
17Al A copy of the letter of transmittal signed and Mandatory iii
dated by accountable authority on date final
text approved, with statement that the report
has been prepared in accordance with
section 46 of the Act and any enabling
legislation that specifies additional
requirements in relation to the annual report.
17AD(h) Aids to access
17AJ(a) Table of contents (print only). Mandatory \
17AJ(b) Alphabetical index (print only). Mandatory 129
17AJ(c) Glossary of abbreviations and acronyms Mandatory 120
17AJ(d) List of requirements Mandatory 122
17AJ(e) Details of contact officer Mandatory iv
17AJ(f) Entity’s website address Mandatory iv
17AJ(9) Electronic address of report Mandatory iv
17AD(a) Review by accountable authority
17AD(a) A review by the accountable authority of the Mandatory 1,17
entity
17AD(b) Overview of the entity
17AE(1)(a)(i) A description of the role and functions of the Mandatory 6
entity
17AE(1)(a)(ii) A description of the organisational structure of | Mandatory 7,8
the entity
17AE(1)(a)(iii) A description of the outcomes and programs Mandatory iv, 7,17
administered by the entity
17AE(1)(a)(iv) A description of the purposes of the entity as Mandatory 6,7
included in corporate plan
17AE(1)(aa)(i) Name of the accountable authority or each Mandatory iv, 17
member of the accountable authority
17AE(1)(aa)(ii) Position title of the accountable authority or Mandatory 17
each member of the accountable authority
17AE(1)(aa)(iii) Period as the accountable authority or member | Mandatory 6
of the accountable authority within the reporting
period
17AE(1)(b) An outline of the structure of the portfolio of the | Portfolio N/A
entity departments
— mandatory
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PGPA Rule Description
reference

17AE(2)

Where the outcomes and programs
administered by the entity differ from any
portfolio budget statement, portfolio additional
estimates statements or other portfolio
estimates statements that were prepared for
the entity for the period, include details of
variation and reasons for change

List of requirements

|
Requirement \

Page

A

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A

17AD(c)

Report on the performance of the entity

Annual performance statements

17AD(c)(i) 16F

Annual performance statements in accordance
with paragraph 39(1)(b) of the PGPA Act and
section 16F of the PGPA Rule

Mandatory

17

17AD(c)(ii)

Report on financial performance

17AF(1)(a)

A discussion and analysis of the entity’s
financial performance

Mandatory

44

17AF(1)(b)

A table summarising the total resources and
total payments of the entity

Mandatory

46

17AF(2)

If there may be significant changes in the
financial results during or after the previous or
current reporting period, information on those
changes, including the cause of any operating
loss of the entity; how the entity has responded
to the loss and the actions that have been
taken in relation to the loss; and any matter or
circumstances that it can reasonably be
anticipated will have a significant impact on the
entity’s future operation or financial results

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A

17AD(d)

Management and accountability

Corporate governance

17AG(2)(a)

Information on compliance with section 10
(fraud systems)

Mandatory

iii, 97-98

17AG(2)(b)(i)

A certification by accountable authority that
fraud risk assessments and fraud control plans
have been prepared

Mandatory

17AG(2)(b)(ii)

A certification by accountable authority that
appropriate mechanisms for preventing,
detecting incidents of, investigating or
otherwise dealing with, and recording or
reporting fraud that meet the specific needs of
the entity are in place.

Mandatory

17AG(2)(b)(iii)

A certification by accountable authority that all
reasonable measures have been taken to deal
appropriately with fraud relating to the entity

Mandatory

17AG(2)(c)

An outline of structures and processes in place
for the entity to implement principles and
objectives of corporate governance

Mandatory

80

17AG(2)(d)—(e)

A statement of significant issues reported to
Minister under paragraph 19(1)(e) of the Act
that relates to non-compliance with Finance law
and action taken to remedy non-compliance.

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A
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PGPA Rule Description
reference

Audit committee

Requirement

Page

A

17AG(2A)(a)

A direct electronic address of the charter
determining the functions of the entity’s audit
committee

Mandatory

84

17AG(2A)(b)

The name of each member of the entity’s audit
committee

Mandatory

84

17AG(2A)(c)

The qualifications, knowledge, skills or
experience of each member of the entity’s audit
committee

Mandatory

84

17AG(2A)(d)

Information about the attendance of each
member of the entity’s audit committee at
committee meetings

Mandatory

84

17AG(2A)(e)

The remuneration of each member of the
entity’s audit committee

Mandatory

84

External scrutiny

17AG(3)

Information on the most significant
developments in external scrutiny and the
entity’s response to the scrutiny

Mandatory

35, 99

17AG(3)(a)

Information on judicial decisions and decisions
of administrative tribunals and by the Australian
Information Commissioner that may have a
significant effect on the operations of the entity

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A

17AG(3)(b)

Information on any reports on operations of the
entity by the Auditor-General (other than report
under section 43 of the PGPA Act), a
parliamentary committee or the Commonwealth
Ombudsman

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A

17AG(3)(c)

Information on any capability reviews on the
entity that were released during the period

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A

Management of human resources

17AG(4)(a)

An assessment of the entity’s effectiveness in
managing and developing employees to
achieve entity objectives

Mandatory

88-53

17AG(4)(aa)

Statistics on the entity’s employees on an
ongoing and non-ongoing basis, including the
following:

« statistics on full-time employees

« statistics on part-time employees

« statistics on gender

« statistics on staff location

Mandatory

106-107
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PGPA Rule Description
reference

17AG(4)(b)

Statistics on the entity’s APS employees on an
ongoing and non-ongoing basis, including the
following:

« statistics on staffing classification level

« statistics on full-time employees

« statistics on part-time employees

« statistics on gender

« statistics on staff location

« statistics on employees who identify as
Indigenous

List of requirements

|
Requirement \

E—

Mandatory

106-107

Page

17AG(4)(c)

Information on any enterprise agreements,
individual flexibility arrangements, Australian
workplace agreements, common law contracts
and determinations under subsection 24(1) of
the Public Service Act 1999

Mandatory

7, 80,
106-112

17AG(4)(c)(i)

Information on the number of SES and non-
SES employees covered by agreements, etc.
identified in paragraph 17AG(4)(c) of the PGPA
Rule

Mandatory

106-107

17AG(4)(c)(ii)

The salary ranges available for APS employees
by classification level

Mandatory

108

17AG(4)(c)(iii)

A description of non-salary benefits provided to
employees

Mandatory

109

17AG(4)(d)(i)

Information on the number of employees at
each classification level who received
performance pay

If applicable,
mandatory

108

17AG(4)(d)(ii)

Information on aggregate amounts of
performance pay at each classification level

If applicable,
mandatory

108

17AG(4)(d)(iii)

Information on the average amount of
performance payment, and range of such
payments, at each classification level

If applicable,
mandatory

108

17AG(4)(d)(iv)

Information on aggregate amount of
performance payments

If applicable,
mandatory

108

Asset management

17AG(5)

An assessment of effectiveness of asset
management where asset management is a
significant part of the entity’s activities

If applicable,
mandatory

113

Purchasing

17AG(6)

An assessment of entity performance against
the Commonwealth Procurement Rules

Mandatory

113

Reportable consultancy contracts

17AG(7)(a)

A summary statement detailing the number of
new reportable consultancy contracts entered
into during the period; the total actual
expenditure on all such contracts (inclusive of
GST); the number of ongoing reportable
consultancy contracts that were entered into
during a previous reporting period; and the total
actual expenditure in the reporting year on
those ongoing contracts (inclusive of GST)

Mandatory

113-115

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 125



PGPA Rule Description
reference

7AG(7)(b)

A statement that ‘During [reporting period],
[specified number] new reportable consultancy
contracts were entered into involving total
actual expenditure of $[specified million]. In
addition, [specified number] ongoing reportable
consultancy contracts were active during the
period, involving total actual expenditure of
$[specified million].’

Requirement

E—

Mandatory

Page

113-115

17AG(7)(c)

A summary of the policies and procedures for
selecting and engaging consultants and the
main categories of purposes for which
consultants were selected and engaged

Mandatory

45, 114

17AG(7)(d)

A statement that ‘Annual reports contain
information about actual expenditure on
reportable consultancy contracts. Information
on the value of reportable consultancy
contracts is available on the AusTender
website.’

Mandatory

114

Reportable non-consultancy contracts

17AG(7A)(a)

A summary statement detailing the number of
new reportable non-consultancy contracts
entered into during the period; the total actual
expenditure on such contracts (inclusive of
GST); the number of ongoing reportable non-
consultancy contracts that were entered into
during a previous reporting period; and the total
actual expenditure in the reporting period on
those ongoing contracts (inclusive of GST)

Mandatory

115

17AG(7A)(b)

A statement that ‘Annual reports contain
information about actual expenditure on
reportable non-consultancy contracts.
Information on the value of reportable non-
consultancy contracts is available on the
AusTender website.’

Mandatory

114

17AD(daa)

Additional information about organisations receiving amounts under
reportable consultancy or non-consultancy contracts

17AGA

Additional information, in accordance with
section 17AGA, about organisations receiving
amounts under reportable consultancy
contracts or reportable non-consultancy
contracts

Mandatory

113-115

Australian National Audit Office access clauses

17AG(8)

If an entity entered into a contract with a value
of more than $100,000 (inclusive of GST) and
the contract did not provide the Auditor-General
with access to the contractor’s premises, the
report must include the name of the contractor,
purpose and value of the contract, and the
reason why a clause allowing access was not
included in the contract

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A
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PGPA Rule Description
reference

Exempft contracts

List of requirements

Requirement

Page

A

17AG(9)

If an entity entered into a contract or there is a
standing offer with a value greater than
$10,000 (inclusive of GST) which has been
exempted from being published on AusTender
because it would disclose exempt matters
under the FOI Act, the annual report must
include a statement that the contract or
standing offer has been exempted, and the
value of the contract or standing offer, to the
extent that doing so does not disclose the
exempt matters

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A

Small business

17AG(10)(a)

A statement that ‘[Name of entity] supports
small business participation in the
Commonwealth Government procurement
market. Small and Medium Enterprises (SME)
and Small Enterprise participation statistics are
available on the Department of Finance’s
website.’

Mandatory

115

17AG(10)(b)

An outline of the ways in which the
procurement practices of the entity support
small and medium enterprises

Mandatory

115

17AG(10)(c)

If the entity is considered by the department
administered by the Finance Minister as
material in nature — a statement that ‘[Name of
entity] recognises the importance of ensuring
that small businesses are paid on time. The
results of the Survey of Australian Government
Payments to Small Business are available on
the Treasury’s website.’

If applicable,
mandatory

113

Financial statements

17AD(e)

Inclusion of the annual financial statements in
accordance with subsection 43(4) of the Act

Mandatory

47

Executive remuneration

17AD(da)

Information about executive remuneration in
accordance with Subdivision C of Division 3A of
Part 2-3 of the Rule

Mandatory

107

17AD(f)

Other mandatory information

17AH(1)(a)(i)

If the entity conducted advertising campaigns, a
statement that ‘During [reporting period], the
[name of entity] conducted the following
advertising campaigns: [name of advertising
campaigns undertaken]. Further information on
those advertising campaigns is available at
[address of entity’s website] and in the reports
on Australian Government advertising prepared
by the Department of Finance. Those reports
are available on the Department of Finance’s
website.’

If applicable,
mandatory

116

17AH(1)(@)(ii)

If the entity did not conduct advertising
campaigns, a statement to that effect

If applicable,
mandatory

N/A
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PGPA Rule Description Requirement Page
reference ‘
11187AH(1)(b) A statement that ‘Information on grants If applicable, 116
awarded by [name of entity] during [reporting mandatory
period] is available at [address of entity’s
website].’
17AH(1)(c) Outline of mechanisms of disability reporting, Mandatory 117
including reference to website for further
information
17AH(1)(d) Website reference to where the entity’s Mandatory iv
Information Publication Scheme statement
pursuant to Part Il of FOI Act can be found
17AH(1)(e) Correction of material errors in previous annual | If applicable, N/A
report mandatory
17AH(2) Information required by other legislation Mandatory iv
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Employee Assistance Program
employment

contract 1

framework 1

outside

strategy 1

type 1
enterprise agreement 99, 106, 1
entity resource statement 46, 1
Ernst and Young 1
estimates hearings
expenses

audit fees

Auditor-General's 1

by outcome 104, 1

disclosure

employee

infrastructure

professional development

reporting

total 45,
external scrutiny 35,

109, 1

F

Fiji 11,
financial statements
annual
auditing
auditing standards
audits
Australian Government entities
Commonwealth entities
independent audit
mandated audits
primary purpose
reports to the Parliament
required timeframe
financial statements audits
average cost
contracting 1
cybersecurity risks
fees 1
findings and recommendations
issues identified
mandated
monitoring process
professional skills 1
quality assurance review
shared learnings
freedom of information

18, 34,

18, 20, 21, 22,

100, 1
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